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CHAIRMAN'S SPEECH

Dear Shareholders,

It is my proud privilege to welcome you all to the 6th Annual General Meeting of
your Company. The Director's Report and the Audited Accounts for the Financial
Year 2018-19, the Statutory Auditor's Report along with comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon, have already been circulated to
all of you and with your permission, 1 take them as read.

2. The entire stretch of North South Corridor Phase -1 of Lucknow Metro Rail
Project having a route length of 22.878 Kms became fully operational during the
year under review comprising of 4 underground stations and 17 elevated stations
for public use with effect from 9th March 2019. You will be happy to know that
the project has been successfully commissioned much before its schedule target date of 01.04.2019. The
commuters of Lucknow have given overwhelming response to the Metro Services and is being appreciated
by all. Asaresult, the average daily ridership in Phase- | has shown a quantum jump.

3. The North-South corridor was flagged off by our Hon'ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi on 8th March,
2019 in the august presence of Shri Hardeep Singh Puri, Hon'ble Union Minister of State (Independent
Charge), Housing & Urban Affairs, Gol; Shri Ram Naik, Hon'ble Governor, Uttar Pradesh; Shri Yogi
Adityanath, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Uttar Pradesh.

4. Youwill be happy to know that Gol on 28 February 2019 has approved Kanpur and Agra Metro Rail Projects
which will connect major public nodes and city cluster areas of both the cities.

5. During the year under review the company has been awarded with the International Organisation for
Standardization (ISO) 14001:2015 certification for Environment Management System and the
Occupational Health & Safety Assessment Series (OHSAS) 18001: 2007 for Health & Safety Management
System for designing and construction of Metro Rail corridor from Chaudhary Charan Singh Airport Metro
station to Munshipulia Metro station, consisting 21 stations & one Depot of the Lucknow Metro Rail Project
Phase-1 A.

6. In line for implementation of common mobility card company has signed MoU with Lucknow Nagar
Nigam for facilitation of payment of house/property taxes through- GoSmart' card of Lucknow Metro at
Metro Stations and with BSNL for payment of bills.

7. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | express my sincere thanks for the goodwill and cooperation extended
to the Company by Gol & GoUP, Contractors, General Consultants, European Investment Bank (EIB), in
implementation of this project and lastly, | would like to compliment entire team of LMRC for their
dedication and hard work without which it would have not been possible to commence the revenue
operation of the entire North-South Corridor before stipulated time period along with maintaining high
standards of safety and quality.

Thankingyou,

Sd/-

(Durga Shanker Mishra)

Date : 06.09.2019 Secretary, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, GOI
Place : New Delhi & Chairman, LMRC
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MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

| take this privilege to welcome you all to the 6th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

It has been a landmark achievement by Lucknow Metro to complete the work of
entire North-South Corridor of Phase —1having a route length of 22.878 Kms from
CCS Airport to Munshipulia before stipulated time. The entire North-South Corridor
comprising of 4 underground stations and 17 elevated stations has been opened for
public usage with effect from 9th March 2019. Shri Narendra Modi, Hon’ble Prime
Minister of India flagged off the commercial run of North South Corridoron 08.03.2019.

| am happy to announce that during the year under review Lucknow Metro has achieved various milestones
some of which includes inauguration of the Centre of Excellence for training (CoET). It is the only one of its type in
Uttar Pradesh — with specialized training on Metro technology for imparting training to fresh recruits. This training
institute will also cater the requirements of all upcoming metro projects in various cities of Uttar Pradesh.

Lucknow Metro celebrated 5th September 2018 as ‘LUCKNOW METRO DIWAS’ and on this occasion Shri
Yogi Adityanath, Hon’ble Chief Minister, Uttar Pradesh inaugurated an exhibition at the Transport Nagar Metro
Depot to commemorate the successful completion of one year of Metro operations. He also unveiled Lucknow
Metro ‘Mascot’ and the Lucknow Metro ‘Mobile App’ on the occasion. This was the day i.e. on 5th September,
2017 when LMRC opened the commercial services on the priority section of North south corridor for the public
of Lucknow.

I would also like to inform that Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) & Lucknow Nagar Nigam (LNN) have
now joined hands by signing a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for facilitation of payment of
house/property taxes through ‘GoSmart’ card of Lucknow Metro at Metro Stations.

Apart from all these development, Lucknow Metro has one more feather in its cap by winning the International
‘Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA)- Silver Award’ for entire North-South corridor (Phase-1A) in
the Project/Infrastructure category in recognition of its safe practices and achievements in helping its staff
/customers/clients and contractors during the execution of this Project. The British Safety Council also bestowed
Lucknow Metro with “International Safety Award, 2019” in the category of the Project/Infrastructure for demonstrating
astrong commitment towards good health & safety management during the construction of the project.

| deeply appreciate and acknowledge the sincere efforts and dedication of all the Employees, Stakeholders
including the Central and State Governments and various Government Agencies, our Suppliers, Contractors
and Customers. | would like to take this opportunity to thank all those who have supported and guided us
during the year. | also thank all my colleagues on the Board for their continued support and guidance. The
transformation of a Company is continuous process. We have made tremendous progress, but we still have a
long way to go. Together, | am confident we will complete the transformation of LMRCL into a company that
creates significant value for all of its stakeholders

Thanking You
Sd/-
(Kumar Keshav)
Managing Director

—
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2018-19
19™ MAY, 2018
LMRC UNDERTAKES SPECIAL DRIVE TO CREATE AWARENESS ON THE BENEFITS OF

‘GOSMART’ CARD AMONG ITS COMMUTERS

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Mg Eaviann L G Man dasiat s Q5 Sigd T |

(LMRC) undertook a special drive at ﬁﬁ’;ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂm
its Metro stations to create & Bt of ot

% awareness on the benefits and
advantages of using a ‘GoSmart’
card among its daily commuters.

23™ MAY, 2018

LUCKNOW METRO FELICITATES STUDENTS OF AMITY UNIVERSITY, LUCKNOW
FOR DESIGNING ART WORK FOR METRO STATIONS

Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing
Director, Lucknow Metro Rail
Corporation (LMRC) felicitated 60
students of the Amity University, [
Lucknow by giving them ‘Certificate &
of Appreciation’ who outstandingly
designed marvellous art work.

2" JUNE, 2018

LMRC STARTS “CLEANLINESS DRIVE”; OBSERVING
‘WORLD ENVIRONMENT WEEK, 2018’ FROM
2ND JUNE TO 8TH JUNE

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) started a “cleanliness drive” around all
its eight operational Metro stations between Transport Nagar & Charbagh and
the Transport Nagar Metro Depot.

21°" JUNE, 2018
LUCKNOW METRO CELEBRATES INTERNATIONAL YOGA DAY, 2018

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation [l
S (LMRC) celebrated the International |
Lo Yoga Day, 2018 with its top
! Management, officials and staff at the

Transport Nagar Metro Depot.

28™ JULY, 2018

LUCKNOW METRO COMPLETES THE WORK OF
TRACK LAYING BETWEEN HUSSAINGANJ AND
SACHIVALAYA METRO STATION

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) has completed the work of track laying
for the UPLINE Metro tunnel between the Hussainganj and the Sachivalaya
Metro Stations.
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30™ JULY, 2018

LMRC & BSNL SIGN MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING (MoU) FOR FACILITATION OF
CUSTOMER SERVICES AT METRO STATIONS

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) and Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. (BSNL)
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for facilitation of customer
services for the benefit and convenience of all ‘GoSmart’ Metro travellers.

13™ AUGUST, 2018

LMRC MD INAUGURATES CoET LIBRARY
AT TRANSPORT NAGAR METRO DEPOT

Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director, Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation
(LMRC) inaugurated the CoET Library at the Centre of Excellence for Training,
Transport Nagar Metro Depot.

15™ AUGUST, 2018

LMRC CELEBRATES 72ND INDEPENDENCE DAY;
MD MOTIVATES EMPLOYEES TO MARCH AHEAD ON

THE IDEALS OF ‘MAHATMA GANDHYF
Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director, LMRC, hoisted the National Flag to

mark the 72nd Independence Day of the Nation and celebrated this occasion
with the officers and staff of the company.

5™ SEPTEMBER, 2018

HON’BLE CHIEF MINISTER INAUGURATES EXHIBITION

ON THE OCCASION OF ‘LUCKNOW METRO DIWAS’, 2018;

UNVEILS LUCKNOW METRO MASCOT’ & ‘MOBILE APP’;
¥ LAUDS LUCKNOW METRO FOR BEING EXCELLENT IN

- | QUALITY & SERVICE

Shri Yogi Adityanath, Hon’ble Chief Minister, Uttar Pradesh inaugurated an exhibition
on the occasion of ‘Lucknow Metro Diwas’, 2018 at the Transport Nagar Metro Depot to
commemorate the completion of one year of Metro operations. He also unveiled
Lucknow Metro ‘Mascot’ and the Lucknow Metro ‘Mobile App’ on the occasion.

8™ SEPTEMBER, 2018

LUCKNOW METRO WINS ICI (LUCKNOW) - ULTRATECH AWARD FOR OUTSTANDING
% CONCRETE STRUCTURE, 2018 >

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) {
won the prestigious Indian Concrete E&
Institute (ICI) (Lucknow) - Ultratech award
for outstanding concrete structure, 2018 in
the category of Infrastructure Project.
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29™ SEPTEMBER, 2018

LMRC REPEATES HISTORIC FEAT; SUCCESSFULLY
COMPLETES THE ERECTION OF 60 METRE SPECIAL
STEEL SPAN NEAR NISHATGANJ

Lucknow Metro today repeated its historic feet by successfully completing the
erection of a 60 Meter Special Steel Span near Nishatganj over the main line
Railway operational track at the location.

22"° OCTOBER, 2018

20TH & THE LAST METRO TRAIN SET DESPATCHED
FROM SRI CITY; MD FLAGS OFF IT IN GRAND STYLE

Lucknow Metro’s 20th & the last train set has today been despatched for
Lucknow from M/s Alstom’s train manufacturing plant at Sri City by Shri Kumar
Keshav, Managing Director/LMRC, in a grand style in the presence of Mr. Henri
Poupart Lafarge, CEO, Alstom (France) and other officials.

5" NOVEMBER, 2018

LMRC & LUCKNOW NAGAR NIGAM JOIN HANDS
FOR FACILITATION OF HOUSE/PROPERTY TAXES
THROGH GOSMART

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) & Lucknow Nagar Nigam (LNN) joined
hands by signing a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for facilitation of
payment of house/property taxes through ‘GoSmart’ card of Lucknow Metro at
Metro Stations.

16™ NOVEMBER, 2018

INTEGRAL UNIVERSITY CONFERS SHRI KUMAR KESHAV
WITH HONORARY D.LITT (DOCTOR OF LETTERS);

ADDS A NEW FEATHER IN HIS CAP

Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director, Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC)
was honored with one of the prestigious award-Doctor of Letters (Honoris Causa)
by the Integral University, Lucknow for his extraordinary leadership quality, talent
and capability displayed during successful execution of different ‘Metro’ Rail
Projects & ‘Railway’ Projects in the Country throughout his professional career.

19™ DECEMBER, 2018

LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION
LIMITED OBSERVES ‘NIRBHAYA CHETNA WEEK’

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation in association with ‘Red Brigade’ an NGO
observed “Nirbhaya Chetna Week” to emphasize woman safety particularly in
Public Transport. On this occasion, Nirbhaya’'s parents addressed newly
recruited trainees at Transport Nagar Metro Depot for creating awareness about
safety of women, women rights and their empowermentin all spheres of life.
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21°" DECEMBER, 2018

LMRC ORGANISES WORKSHOP ON INCLUSIVE PUBLIC TRANSPORT FOR DIFFERENTLY ABLE;
A DRIVE TO SENSITISE SECURITY AND STAFF DEPLOYED AT THE METRO STATIONS

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation organized
aworkshop on ‘Inclusive Public Transport’in
association with Handicare Foundation at
Transport Nagar Metro depot today. An
interactive session was conducted in the
auditorium of Centre of Excellence for [#&*
Training (CoET) with the frontline staff of |

Lucknow Metro to cater sensitize about the
needs of differently able passengers.

9™ JANUARY, 2019

LUCKNOW METRO COMMENCES SIGNALLING & INTEGRATED TESTING TRIALS

FOR THE WHOLE NORTH-SOUTH CORRIDOR (PHASE-1A)

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC)
™ successfully commenced the signalling&
J integrated testing trials by moving the Metro
4 train in the balance section upto  _ge==
@ Munshipulia. The integrated testing of
different systems, signalling, track and
traction was performed at different speeds
on the elevated viaduct and inside the tunnel
under different operating scenario.

10™ JANUARY, 2019

LMRC AWARDED WITH ISO 9001: 2015, 1ISO 14001: 2015
AND OHSAS 18001: 2007 CERTIFICATES FOR ITS
OPERATIONAL METRO STATIONS AND METRO DEPOT

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation, awarded with the International Organisation for
Standardization (1ISO) 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 & the Occupational Health &
Safety Assessment Series (OHSAS) 18001:2007 certificates in recognition of the
operation and maintenance of its priority Corridor (from Transport Nagar to
Charbagh) and Metro Depot.

18™ FEBRUARY, 2019

LUCKNOW METRO OBTAINS FIRE SAFETY CLEARANCE FOR ALL THE 13 METRO
STATIONS OF THE BALANCE SECTION OF THE NORTH-SOUTH CORRIDOR (PHASE-1A)

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) has yet again achieved another accomplishment by obtaining Fire Non Objection
Certificate (NOC) for all the 13 Metro stations of the balance section of North-South corridor (phase 1-A). Lucknow Metro has got
fire safety clearances from the Uttar Pradesh Fire Services before the commencement of commercial run from CCS Airport to
Munshipulia.

23* FEBRUARY, 2019

CMRS GIVES CERTIFICATION TO LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION AFTER

3 DAY SUCCESSFUL INSPECTION FROM CCS AIRPORT TO MUNSHIPULIA

Shri AK Jain, Commissioner Metro Railway Safety (CMRS) gave his certification to Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) for
commencing the revenue/ commercial operations of its Metro services for public ridership on entire corridor from CCS Airport to
Munshipulia.

= ]
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5™ MARCH, 2019

LMRC OBSERVES NATIONAL SAFETY WEEK, 2019;
LMRC OFFICERS AND STAFF TAKE PLEDGE
TO TAKE SAFETY AS ‘FIRST PRIORITY’

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) is observing the National Safety
Week, 2019 from 4th March, 2018 to 10th March, 2019. In this connection, all
LMRC officers and staff today participated in a safety ‘pledge’ at
administrative office (Gomti Nagar) and Metro depot in order to adopt and
follow safety measures and practices at workplace i.e. both at the project site
and during operations

8™ MARCH, 2019

LMRC STARTS METRO SERVICES ON ENTIRE NORTH-SOUTH CORRIDOR
OF (PHASE- 1A) FROM CCS AIRPORT TO MUNSHIPULIA

- ol s 3 -2 Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Ltd. started the Metro Services

: for the public of Lucknow on entire North-South corridor (Phase
1A) from Chaudhary Charan Singh Airport to Munshipulia. Shri
Narendra Modi, Prime Minister, India inaugurated the project on
8th March, 2019 and flagged-off the Metro train via video
conferencing from Kanpur in the auspicious presence of Shri
Hardeep Singh Puri, Hon'ble Union Minister of State
(Independent Charge), Housing & Urban Affairs; Shri Ram Naik,
Hon’ble Governor, Uttar Pradesh; Shri Yogi Adityanath, Hon’ble
Chief Minister, Uttar Pradesh; Prof. Rita Bahuguna Joshi,
Minister, Women Welfare, Family Welfare, Government of Uttar
Pradesh; Shri Brijesh Pathak, Minister of Law & Justice, Govt. of
UP.; Shri. Ashutosh Tandan, Minister of Technical Education,
Govt. of UP; Shri Suresh Pasi, Minister of Housing, Vocational
Education & Skill Development, Govt. of UP and Shri Kaushal
Kishor, MP, Mohanlalganj (Lucknow), UP.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 6th Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Accounts, Auditors’ Report and comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2019.

1. Financial Results and Performance

The financial position of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For FY 2018-2019 For FY 2017-2018
Total Income 10890.14 7487.35
Less: Operating Expenses 2818.53 1616.72
Less: Depreciation 8582.34 4430.84
Less: Financial Expenses 211.46 82.64
Less: Exceptional Items 344.82 (216.54)
Profit (Loss) Before Tax (7211.16) (2677.07)
Add / (Less): Tax Expense - 355.33
Net Profit (Loss) After Tax (7211.16) (2538.28)
Transfer to General Reserves - -
Profit Carried Forward to the Balance Sheet - -

Transfer to General Reserves:
The Board has not recommended to transfer any amount to the General Reserve.
Dividend for the Financial Year 2018-19

During the year under review i.e. FY 2018-2019, company have incurred losses so the Board of Directors
have not recommended any Dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company.

2. Status of the Lucknow Metro Rail Project

The Company is a Joint Venture of Government of India (Gol) & Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP) for
implementation of Lucknow Metro Rail Project as an Integrated Rapid Mass Public Transport System in
Lucknow. It is a 50:50 jointly owned Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) of Government of India (Gol) and
Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP) and incorporated under the Companies Act 1956.

—
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Hon’ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi flagged
off the commercial run on North-South corridor on
8th March, 2019 in the august presence of Shri
Hardeep Singh Puri, Hon’ble Union Minister of State
(Independent Charge), Housing & Urban Affairs, Gol;
Shri Ram Naik, Hon’ble Governor, Uttar Pradesh; Shri
Yogi Adityanath, Hon’ble Chief Minister, Uttar
Pradesh in addition to this other Hon’ble dignitaries
were present. Hon’ble Prime Minister also laid the
Foundation stone for Agra Metro Rail Project as an
Integrated Rapid Mass Public Transport System.

The entire North-South Corridor (Phase 1A) has

become fully operational for general public from 9th March 2019 before stipulated time, comprising of 21
stations (4 underground and 17 Elevated) from Chaudhary Charan Singh Airport to Munshipulia. All the 4
underground and 17 Elevated metro stations have been awarded the Platinum Certificate by Indian Green
Building Council. The commuters of metro have given overwhelming response to the commencement of
Metro Services in whole corridor of N-S and the service is being well appraised for its quality, punctuality,
artwork and design which depicts the culture of Lucknow at various underground stations. As a result, the
average daily ridership in Phase-1 has shown a quantum jump.

Inaugration ceremony of North-South Corridor

Lucknow Metro is the first Metro in the country which has tied up with Radio City 91.1 FM and launched its
very own FM Radio. It is now providing specialized content, public announcements, jingles and
melodious music at all Metro stations for the commuters of Lucknow Metro. In order to provide a push to
government’s ‘Digital India’ campaign and an extended benefit for the Metro commuters, Lucknow Metro
started providing free Wi-Fi facility to its ‘Go Smart’ card users at all its operational Metro stations. Your
Company has also taken up various initiatives to make its station facilities for differently able person.

3. Rolling Stock

Ason 31st March 2019, the Company has a total of 80
coaches having designed speed of 90 kmph &
schedule speed of 32 to 35km per hour including
dwell time/stoppage of 30 seconds per station and
design headway of 100 second.

LMRC trains are energy efficient, reliable and provide
better comfort to passengers in terms of riding quality,
lower- noise level and environment friendly. The
body shell of cars made of stainless steel are
lightweight. The highly energy efficient Trains are
with regenerative braking to feed the energy back to
overhead electrical energy system during braking. All
systems in the train are monitored & selectively
controlled by a microprocessor based Train Control & Management System (TCMS).

- -._.'-_.": ‘-i"j“.-‘:\‘
Rolling Stock at Depot

Metro trains have fast acceleration/deceleration and maximized energy efficiency with advance features
such as Automatic Train Protection (ATP), Automatic Train Operation (ATO), Train Integrated

—
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Management System (TIMS)/ Train Control Management System (TCMS) for continuous monitoring of
critical sub-systems, secondary air suspension and microprocessor controlled regenerative braking that
pumps back electricity in to the system during braking. Least reliance on friction braking, which is not only
energy intensive but also reduces the life of wheels, has been a focus area while formulating specifications.
The state-of-the-art lightweight, stainless steel, fully vestibule air-conditioned coaches are equipped with
electronic Passenger Announcement and Information Display System for pre-informing passengers about
the arrival of platforms, passenger alarms and communication system in case of emergency, Closed Circuit
Television (CCTV) surveillance and the Automatic Electric door opening and closing operation. Further,
the Phase Il rolling stock is proposed with control system designed to ensure accurate energy
measurements, so as to use the data for claiming carbon credits.

4. Signaling and Train Control

The state of art signaling system Based on
“Communication Based Train Control” (CBTC) with
Continuous Automatic Train Control System (CATS)
has been applied. The main features of Train Control
& Signaling system for Lucknow MRTS are Automatic
Train Protection (ATP) with Cab Signalling with Track
to train communication through Coded Audio
Frequency Track Circuits, Automatic Train Operation
System (ATQO), Automatic Train Supervision System
(ATS) with Automatic Route Setting and Automatic
Train Regulation.

CCTV system is based on the latest technology in the Signalling and train control system

world. It consists of high-end resolution Cameras, IP

based and Infra-Red enabled cameras. This help in accessing camera even from a remote location. CCTVs
are enabled in surveillance even during the night. A large video wall has been installed at DCC building to
monitor all the cameras at single point.

A help phone has been installed at middle of the platform to help passengers. If any passenger picks the
help phone, a CCTV popup will appear in station controller CCTV screen and Controller will be able to see
the person along with talking to passenger.

In case of any power failure, LMRC has installed a separate UPS (Uninterrupted Power Supply) with
minimum two hours backup. This UPS will provide Regulated Power supply to Signal System, Telecom
Sub System and Automatic Fare Collection System. Separate battery banks are installed in redundancy.

5. Automatic Fare Collection System

Automatic Fare Collection System (AFC) an innovative implementation model has been adopted. HDFC
Bank has issued co-branded smart cards of EVM standards, which can be used as tickets for Lucknow Metro
and assorted value cards at other Points of Sale (PoS). AFC equipment, both on site and on cloud has been
installed and commissioned for all the stations from CCS Airport to Munshipulia.

6. Operations and Augmentation of Customer Facilities

The vision of the Company is to make commuting experience of customers delightful. In this direction, the
following initiatives have been undertaken during the year:

—



Q LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION

e Modern entry/ exit gates, interior & exterior
painting, construction of event corners for
providing spaces for organizing campaign,
development of parking area, etc.

e Addition of Customer Facilitation/ Equipment
viz. Automatic Fare Collection Gates, Token
Vending Machines, Point of Sale Machines, Lifts,
Escalators, etc.

e Launching of High Speed Free Wi-Fi facility at
various Metro Stations of the company

Facility for specially abled at Ticket Counters

e Collaboration with Google maps to make
commutation easier

¢ [Introduction of discounted fares for smart card users
® Improvements at station surroundings

e Setting up of a dedicated help line for safety & security of women, children & specially abled
passengers

e the company is collaborating with state transport authorities, various other Government authorities
and private transport agencies to provide feeder services for first and last mile connectivity to and from
metro stations.

e In addition to the above company has executed the MOU with Uber for providing cab services as
feeder service at various metro stations.

e Supporting the Gol’s efforts towards promoting a cashless digital economy, the Company continued
its efforts for cashless transactions and smart cards. The Company has taken the following initiatives
during the year:

- To widen the digital payment options for commuters to recharge their metro cards directly from
the LMRC App and website also

- Implementation of cashless token sale/smart card recharge facility by using Credit/Debit Cards at
the Token Vending Machines (TVMs) installed at the metro stations

- Launching cashless token sale/smart card recharge facility by using the Bharat Quick Response
(QR) Code displayed at the Token Counters & Customer Care Centres of Metro stations

- In line to go for Common Mobility Card Company have tied up with Lucknow Municipal
corporation for payment of various taxes with go smart card. In addition, Lucknow Metro and
BSNL have also joined hands to provide additional mode of payment for various BSNL services
with the help of Go Smart Card.

- Lucknow Metro has introduced unattended Point of Sale (POS) terminals with Debit/Credit card
facility. These state-of-the-art TVMs are also equipped with CCTV cameras to ensure safety &
security at the unattended POS terminals

—
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Under Swachh Bharat Abhiyan of Prime Minister of India, the Company has provided toilet blocks at
all stations of the company free of cost to all the commuters of Lucknow Metro. To keep the
surroundings clean & hygienic; cleaning of the coaches at the terminal stations before trains start their
next journey. Nukkad Nataks (Street Plays) were also performed at Metro stations to sensitize the
commuters about the importance of cleanliness and hygiene

7. Alternate Revenue Initiatives

With a view to shoreup its bottom line, your Company is exploring ways to leverage the indirect
beneficiaries and other sources for alternate incomes. The avenues for non-fare box revenue have been
identified and explored which includes the following:

e Advertisements

e Commercial Development & Rentals of spaces
e  Property Development

o Leasing of Optic Fiber Cables

e  Leasingoftowerspaces

e  Parking

Company is getting revenue from Advertisement, Commercial Development, Rental, parking and leasing
of tower spaces.

8. Execution of Metro Projects in various cities of Uttar Pradesh

The Union Cabinet in its meeting on 28 February 2019, chaired by the Hon’ble Prime Minister Shri
Narendra Modi has approved Kanpur and Agra Metro Rail Projects having two corridors respectively
which will connect major public nodes and city cluster areas of both the cities. Kanpur and Agra Metro Rail
Projects will be implemented by Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC) , existing 50:50 jointly owned
company of Gol and GoUP which is being reconstituted as Uttar Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Limited
(UPMRC). Completion period of the projects is 05 years from the date of approval.

The Agra Metro project will have two corridors connecting to all key points. The 14-kilometre corridor
between Sikandara to Taj East Gate will have 13 stations, six elevated and seven underground while
another 15.40-km Agra Cantt to Kalindi Vihar corridor will have 14 stations, all of those elevated, with total
estimated cost of Rs 8,379.62. In Agra Under Corridor-1, Priority Corridor of approx. 6 Km length from Taj
East Gate to Jama Masjid including 03 elevated and 03 underground stations has been selected.

The Kanpur Metro will also be comprising of two corridors namely; 1IT,Kanpur to Naubasta corridor
(23.785km) is partly elevated and partly underground and comprises of 22 Stations and Agriculture
University to Barra-8 corridor (8.60 km) comprises of 4 Elevated & 4 Underground stations. Estimated cost
of the project is Rs 11,076.48 Cr. and both these projects are estimated to be completed in 5 years. In
Kanpur -Under Corridor-1, Priority Section of approx. 9 Km length from IIT Kanpur to Moti Jheel with 09
elevated stations has been selected.

Tenders for System contracts like Track, Traction, Telecom, Rolling Stock and Signaling etc. can be floated
after tying up funding from external funding institution/Banks. The proposal regarding funding agency has
been forwarded to the Government.
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9. Workshop cum Maintenance Depot

The Company Workshop cum Maintenance
Depot of the North-South Metro corridor
(Phase 1A) has been constructed at 32nd g
Battalion, P.A.C. campus, Transport Nagar
Lucknow in approximately 52 acres of  land.
The Depot have world class modern state-of-
the-art facilities at Workshop Cum Inspection
Bay Lines, Stabling Yards, Automatic Train
Wash Plant, Depot Control Centre, Receiving
Sub-Station (RSS), Training Centre (Centre for
Excellence for Training) and other facilities.
This Depot is going to be Pioneering Depot of
LMRC and is first of its kind in Uttar Pradesh.

10. Centre of Excellence for Training (CoET) at the Transport Nagar Metro Depot

The LMRC'’s Centre of Excellence for Training (CoET)
has become functional. This building has been
constructed inside the premises of the Transport Nagar
Metro Depot and has been equipped with state-of-the-
art Metro training facilities to train fresh recruits to
LMRC. The center has capacity to cater the training
needs of all upcoming metros in Uttar Pradesh. The
main facilities include CBT Class rooms, Desktops
Simulators, Motion Simulators and state of art library.
CoET has seven state of art classrooms capable of
imparting training to 300 plus trainees. Further adjoining
to CoET there is a canteen equipped with most modern
facilities to serve food to more than 300 persons.

Metro Depot
It has played a crucial role in developing the staff capabilities and competence of the employees to
improve soft-skills for excellent client service CoET conduct regular courses on communication and soft
skill with reputed institutions like Amity Business
School, Lucknow; Regional English Language Office US
Embassy and other reputed free-lance trainers. It will be
a role model for all other upcoming Metros in other
important cities of the State like Kanpur, Varanasi,
Meerut, Agra, Allahabad and Gorakhpur.

11. Safety

All stations of the N-S Corridor have installed the CCTVs,
detectors, scanners, metal detectors etc. to monitor
Metro Stations for 24 Hours. All the Metro Stations of the
Priority Section are earthquake resistant and have been
designed to sustain seismic force.
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All 21 Metro stations of the company and Depot at Transport Nagar have been certified as per ISO 14001
and OHSAS 18001.

LMRC is fully prepared with highest safety and security norms and for this the company has undertaken
various safety awareness campaigns for its staff, commuters, general public and contractors” employees
working with us. Project, safety training has been made mandatory for all contractors’” workers and site
staff. Competence Assessment based training has been organized on key trades like Lifting Engineers, Scaff
olders, Drivers & Operators, Pick and Carry Crane Operators etc.

Celebration of National Safety Day

Lucknow Metro undertakes various safety awareness campaigns for its staff, commuters, general public
and contractors’” employees working with us. Safety Awareness Week was organised from 4th - 10th
March, 2019 wherein the Company employees participated in the events like safety quiz, safety slogan
competition, other safety promotional activities, etc. In addition, Nukkad Natak were also organized at our
various sites wherein large number of contractors’ staff as well as workmen participated.

Efforts have been made to ensure that all site staff and contractors” workers get mandatory minimum hours
training on Safety and Health Environment (SHE) to create safe working environment at site. Competency
Assessment based training has also been organized on key trades like Lifting Engineers, Scaffolders,
Vehicle Drivers & Plant Operators, etc. for ensuring safety during critical works and incidence free
operation of construction plant & machineries

Celebration of World Environment Day (5th June, 2018):

Lucknow Metro right from its inception has taken a number of measures to significantly arrest the process
of climate change. It has taken the following to control the pollution.

Installation of low Green House Gas emitting rolling stock in metro system
e Metro Lucknow, India (Modal Shift)

e The MRTS Programme of Activities (PoA)

e SolarPV Project

e Energy Efficiency measures in MRTS in N-S Corridor

The Company has also undertaken a special plantation drive on World Environment Day, under which
close to 1000 saplings were planted at various metro stations, depots and distributed to Commuters.
Environment Awareness Training was imparted to LMRC Employees by Programme Director, Centre for
Environment Education. Quiz competition among the LMRC employees were conducted to raise
awareness about environmental issues at CoET. Slogan and Poster making competition was conducted to
encourage participation in conservation of environment and Awards and Certificates were given to winner
of various competitions.

12. Awards & Accolades for Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

e The British Safety Council bestowed Lucknow Metro with “International Safety Award, 2019” in the
category of the Project/Infrastructure for demonstrating a strong commitment to good health & safety
management during the construction of entire 23 km long North-South Corridor (Phase 1A).
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e The Indian Green Building Council (IGBC) —
one of the apex body in India to rate and certify
a system as a ‘Green’ system — has certified
LMRC a “Green Metro Rail System”, thereby,
awarded platinum certificate to all its 21 Metro
stations on the ‘North-South Corridor’ from
CCS Airport to Munshipulia. All 8 stations of
the priority section of North-South corridor
from Transport Nagar to Charbagh had already
been awarded with ‘Platinum Certificate’ in

2017. LMRC Team with platinum certificate

e On 10th January, 2019 LMRC was awarded with the International Organisation for Standardization
(ISO) 9001:2015 certificate in recognition of the organisation’s Environmental Management System,
ISO 14001:2015 in recognition of the organisation’s Environmental Management System and
Occupational Health & Safety Assessment Series (OHSAS) 18001:2007 certificate for the operation
and maintenance of its priority Corridor (from Transport Nagar to Charbagh) and Metro Depot.

e The International Royal Society for the Prevention
of Accidents (RoSPA) has given Silver Award to
Lucknow Metro for its Phase 1A (North-South
Corridor) in the Project/Infrastructure category for
year 2018. With this, Lucknow Metro has become
the first ever Metro project from India to receive this
award in recognition of its safe practices and
achievements in helping its staff/customers/
clients/contractors while they worked in the project
during its execution.

13. Share Capital ROSPA Award

Your Company has received Rs. 418.35 Crore towards equity during the year from the Government of
India and Government of Uttar Pradesh. The total paid up Share Capital as on 31st March 2019 is Rs. 2000
Crore. As per the financing pattern approved from Government of India, Rs. 3502 crores are to be arranged
through Foreign Funding Agency. EIB (European Investment Bank) has agreed to Finance EURO 450
Million. The Finance Contract for Tranche A of EURO 200 Million was signed on 30.03.2016 and Finance
Contract for Tranche B of EURO 250 Million was signed on 3 1st March, 2017. Gol has disbursed Rs. 3502
Cr.to LMRCHtill FY 2018-19.

14. Human Resource Management

The Management of LMRCL always feels that motivated, contented and satisfied workforce is the key for
the successful achievement in its organizational goals. Keeping this objective in view, the Company is
giving paramount importance for human resource development and realization of its potential. The
employer-employee relationship continues to be cordial throughout the year and LMRCL was able to meet
the targets. The Company’s employment practices are aligned to attract and retain talent.
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The recruitment process is completely online since 2016. As on 31st March 2019, the employees strength
of the Company was 753 (156 in Project and 597 in Operations & Maintenance). Towards competency
building of employees, the Company imparts trainings, conducts workshops, quiz competitions,
excursions, yoga & mediation Courses, etc.

Observations of reservation guidelines in recruitment:

The recruitment guidelines regarding reservation of services for SCs/STs/PH/OBCs issued by the GoUP,
from time to time, are being followed meticulously. Liaison officers have been appointed for SC/ST and
PWD (Person with Disabilities) employees of the Company. A grievance register is being maintained by
the company.

Prevention of sexual harassment at workplace:

Lucknow Metro is committed towards providing a safe working environment to its women employees. In
this regard, a lecture on gender sensitization has been included in the induction training curriculum to
inculcate the culture of righteous behavior among new recruits. Complaint Committees are in place for
executive and non-executive women employees, with external member having adequate knowledge and
experience in the field of law and women welfare.

The Company has a policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. The Company has
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in line with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 consisting of the following members to look
into the cases pertaining to sexual harassment of women and to facilitate a safe working environment free
from sexual harassment.

Composition of the Internal Complaints Committee:

Ms. Pushpa Bellani - Presiding Officer

Ms. Deepti Agarwal - External Member (Practicing Company Secretary)
Mr. S.A.Raza - Member

Mr. Brajesh k. Chaturvedi - Member

15. Corporate Social Responsibility

CSR policy of LMRC is aimed at demonstrating care for the community through its focus on education and
skill development, health & Wellness and environmental sustainability including bio diversity, energy and
water conservation. Also embedded in this objective is support to the marginalized cross section of the
society by providing opportunities to improve their quality of life. The projects undertaken will be within
the broad frame work of schedule VII of the Company Act 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of Shri Nitin
Ramesh Gokarn, Principal Secretary, Housing & Urban Planning Department, Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi,
Director (Finance), Shri Mahendra Kumar (Director RS & S).

During the year under review Company does not have any CSR liability on account of the losses in
previous three financial years. Accordingly, company has not undertaken any CSR activity during the
currentyear.
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16. Training

During the year under review O&M employees have been imparted various training matched to their
position, group and department, at Training Institute. Training Institute also conducts various Management
Development Programme and Training Programme on Signalling, Train Control System, Fare Collection
System and Ballast less Track for O &M staff. The Training Institute has been imparting customized training
programmes in the field of Construction, Operations, Maintenance and Customer Care.

17. Right to Information

The Company has implemented the provisions of the Right to Information Act, 2005. Total 106 RTI
applications and appeals were processed during the year in time.

18. Vigilance

The Vigilance Department in the Company is headed by the Chief Vigilance Officer, who reports to
Managing Director, Lucknow Metro. The Vigilance Unit follows the Central Vigilance Commission
guidelines, internal guidelines concerning the business and affairs of the Company. Prevention rather than
punitive action is the sole thrust in the preventive checks. Outcome of the checks is carefully drafted into
system improvement circulars for plugging the loopholes.

19. Deposit from Public

The Company has neither invited any deposits from Public under Section 2(31), 73 and 74 of the
Companies Act, 2013 nor accepted or received any deposits from the public.

20. Particulars of Employees

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are not applicable.

21. Board of Directors

As on 31st March 2019, the Board of Directors of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited comprises of
13 Directors, of whom 5 Directors are nominees of the Government of India, 4 Directors are nominees of
the Government of Uttar Pradesh and 4 are Functional Directors. The Secretary, Ministry of Housing &
Urban Affairs, Government of India is the Chairman while the Managing Director is a nominee of the
Government of Uttar Pradesh. A detailed note on the Board of Directors is provided under the section
‘Corporate Governance Report’.

22. Number of Meetings of the Board

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 4 times i.e. on 6th June
2018, 23rd July 2018, 28th November 2018, and 27th March 2019.

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted various committees of board commensurate with the size and nature of the
operations of your Company and legal provisions. These are the Audit Committee & the Investment
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee. Each
of these sub-Committees has clearly spelt out Terms of Reference which is duly approved by the Board.
These committees meet according to the requirements of your company from time to time. The details of
the committees of the Board are provided under the section ‘Corporate Governance Report’.
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23. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In compliance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state that:

® In the preparation of the annual accounts applicable Indian Accounting Standards has been followed
along with proper explanations for material departures;

e the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for
that period;

e the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going-concern basis;

e the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

24. Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has no Independent Directors on its Board presently, as a Joint-Venture Company is
exempted from appointment of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company.

25. Extract of the Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 of the Companies Act,
2013 is available on the website of the Company, link of which is given as under:
http:/Imrcl.com/resource/downloads/

26. Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments
During the year under Report, the Company has not:-
e givenany loanto any person or other body corporate;

e given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any loan to any other body corporate or
person; and

e Acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, as
prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.
27. Related Party Transactions
Duringthe year under report, the Company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements with related

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013.

28. Material changes and commitments

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company,
that have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this Report.
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a) Waste Management:

LMRC considers today’s waste as tomorrow’s raw material. The aim is to minimize waste generation
and to recycle the waste. The following measures have been adopted to identify and recycle waste:

a. 100% waste segregation is ensured at sites.

b. Trainingand awareness on minimization of waste generation at source itself.

b) Water Management:

Lucknow Metro is very much concerned with water conservation in construction and operation &
maintenance activities. Concerted efforts are being made to reduce water consumption. The following
initiatives have been taken:

a. Rain water harvesting structures have been installed at stations, depots, residential colonies, along
viaduct, etc.

b. Reuse of Effluent Treatment Plant/Sewage Treatment Plant treated water.

c. Using sewagewater and Reverse Osmosis reject relaying of pipework and useof low flow
plumbing

d. Use of efficient dual flush toilets and use of lower capacity flushing tank for toilet, encouraging
waterless urinals

e. Encouraging mopping for station cleaning instead of washing

c¢) Conservation of Energy:

Lucknow Metro is taking several energy conservation measures, such as, the use of regenerative
braking in the trains which will result in saving of 30 to 35 per cent traction energy, thereby resulting in
reduction in emission of Green House Gases (GHG), using Variable Voltage Variable Frequency
(VVVF) drive for all lifts and escalators, provision of LED lights at stations, use of energy efficient
equipment for Environmental Control System (ECS) and Tunnel Ventilation System (TVS) for the
underground station etc.

Currently, TMWpcapacity roof mounted photo voltaic cells installed on train stabling shed and
inspection line sheds has been commissioned by Lucknow Metro under the RESCO model. Because
of all these novel measures, society will be able to recover the entire investment cost of the project in
5 years, its Economic Internal Rate of Return (EIRR) of the Project being 19.46%.

d) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

During the year details of foreign exchange outgo is given below:-

Amount in Rupees (in Lakhs)

S. No. | Particular FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
1. Professional and consultancy fee 2157.48 3468
2. Tours and Travels 28.26 15
3. Contracts 22191.76 22190
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29. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Directors appointed duringthe F.Y. 2018-19

Sr. No.|Name of Director DIN Date of Designation
appointment

1 Shri Sushil Kumar 08271108 | 24/10/2018 | Whole time Director
(Operation)

2 Shri Sanjay Mishra 08102041 | 02/04/2018 | Whole time Director
(Works & Infrastructure)

3 Shri Rajesh Kumar Singh 06459343 | 23/07/2018 | Nominee Director, GoUP

4 Shri Ajay Kumar Shukla 08150406 | 23/05/2018 | Nominee Director, GoUP

5 Shri K Sanjay Murthy 03532374 | 10/10/2018 | Nominee Director, Gol

6 Shri Pradeep Madhumangal Sikdar | 08178025 | 23/07/2018 | Nominee Director, Gol

Directors ceased duringthe F.Y. 2018-19

Sr. No. [Name Of Director DIN Date Of Cessation | Designation

1 Dr. Anup Chandra Pandey 00267876 | 01.07.2018 Nominee Director, GoUP
2 Shri Manoj Kumar 00415180 | 10.10.2018 Nominee Director, GoUP
3 Shri Ajay K. Shukla 08150406 | 30.03.2019 Nominee Director, GoUP

30. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows:
» Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director

 Shri Mahendra Kumar, Whole Time Director (Rolling Stock & Systems)
 Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi, Whole Time Director (Finance) and CFO

» ShriSanjay Mishra, Whole Time Director (Works & Infrastructure)

*  ShriSushil Kumar Whole Time Director (Operations)

e Smt. Pushpa Bellani, Company Secretar

Remuneration and other details of the Key Managerial Personnel for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2019 are mentioned in the extract of the Annual Return.

31. Significant and Material orders:

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or any courts or tribunals impacting the
going-concern status of the Company and affecting its operations.

32. Risk Management Policy:

Your Company is committed to identify potential risks before they occur so that the risk management
activities may be planned and invoked as and when needed across the life of the project and to mitigate its
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adverse impacts on achieving the larger objectives for this your Company has identified the following
specific areas for Risk Management:

1. to ensure that all the current and future material risk exposures of the Company are identified,
assessed, quantified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and managed on time;

2. toensurethathigh priority risks are aggressively managed and eliminated;
to ensure that all risks are cost-effectively managed throughout the project;

4. to promote information sharing at all levels of the management to make informed decisions on issues
critical to the success of the project;

to ensure compliance with the appropriate regulations, wherever applicable.
6. Your Company has adopted the following measures to achieve and improve the specific objectives :-

e Conducting quarterly internal audit by independent auditors; their observations are reviewed by
the Audit Committee and corrective actions taken wherever found appropriate.

e Physical verification of assets at regular intervals by a team constituted for the purpose and by the
internal auditors.

33. Internal Financial Control

The Board has adopted robust policies and procedures to ensure the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company'’s business by safeguarding its assets, preventing and detecting errors and frauds, ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation and submission of
reliable financial disclosures.

34. Corporate Governance

Your Company adheres to impeccable Corporate Governance standards and pursues transparency,
integrity and accountability in all its activities. A separate section entitled ‘Corporate Governance Report’
has been annexed to this report.

35. Auditors

a. Statutory Auditor

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 M/s D S Shukla & Co, Chartered Accountants were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
(C&AG) who shall continue in office till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting. Report of
the Statutory Auditors forming a part here of has been annexed suitably.

b. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s Dileep Dixit & Co.,
Practicing Company Secretaries, was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the
year 2018-19. The report from the secretarial auditor and the explanations or comments to every
qualification made by the Company Secretary in practice in his Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to
this Report.

c. Internal Auditor

M/s. S N Kapoor &Associates, Chartered Accountants, Lucknow, were appointed as the Internal
Auditors of the Company to conduct Internal Audit and their report is reviewed by the Audit
Committee from time to time.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited
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Date: 27-07-2019 Managing Director Director Finance
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance policy of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (LMRCL) is evolved from the
philosophy of adherence to impeccable Corporate Governance practices by ensuring transparency,
accountability and standards of fair dealing and ethics for attaining its corporate objective of providing a safe,
reliable, efficient, viable and customer-friendly Metro system for the city of Lucknow. LMRCL pursues the
highest standards of ethics and maintains core values of integrity and trust in the entire arena in which it
operates.

In the performance of its functions, LMRCL is guided by the CVC guidelines, the Articles of Association (AoA) of
the Company, the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, applicable accounting standards, regulations
prescribed by authorities like the C&AG, provisions of the Right to Information Act 2005 and Rules made there
under. In addition, all the applicable statutes governing the functioning of the organization in respect of safety,
health, environment, welfare of the employees and those engaged through contractors, provision for fair
compensation, rehabilitation and resettlement of project affected persons etc. are appropriately complied with.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Composition of the Board of Directors

As on 31st March 2019, the Board of Directors of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited
comprises of 13 Directors, of whom 5 Directors are nominees of the Government of India, 4
Directors are nominees of the Government of Uttar Pradesh and 4 are Functional Directors. The
Secretary, Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs, Government of India is the Chairman while the
Managing Director, is a nominee of the Government of Uttar Pradesh.

The Composition of the Board ason 31.03.2019 is as follows:

Name Designation

Shri Durga Shanker Mishra Chairman, Secretary, Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs
(MoHUA)

Shri Kumar Keshav Managing Director, LMRC

Smt. Jhanja Tripathy Nominee Director, GOI

Joint Secretary & FA,MoHUA

Shri Vinay Kumar Singh Nominee Director, GOI
Managing Director, National Capital Region Transport
Corporation Limited

Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn Nominee Director, GoUP

Principal Secretary, Housing and Urban Planning Department, GoUP
Shri Anil Garg Nominee Director, GoUP

Commissioner, Lucknow
Shri K. Sanjay Murthy Nominee Director of Gol, Additional Secretary (D) MoHUA
Shri Pradeep Madhumangal Nominee Director of Gol ED/Sig. (Dev), Railway Board
Sikdar
Shri Rajesh Kumar Singh Nominee Director of GoUP Principal Secretary, Infrastructure

and Industrial Development Department
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Shri Sanjay Mishra Whole-time Director (W & 1), LMRC

Shri Sushil Kumar Whole-time Director (Operations), LMRC
Shri Mahendra Kumar Whole-time Director (RS & S), LMRC
Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi Whole-time Director (Finance), LMRC

During the period under report, the following Directors were inducted based on nomination
received from Government of India and Government of Uttar Pradesh are:-
1. ShriPradeep Madhumangal Sikdar
2. Shri Ajay Kumar Shukla
3. ShriRajesh Kumar Singh
4. ShriKSanjay Murthy
2. Note of Appreciation
The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable services rendered and the expert advice
provided by following Directors whose tenure ceased during the year under review;

Sr. No. | Name Of Director Date Of Cessation Designation

1 Dr. Anup Chandra Pandey [ 01.07.2018 Nominee Director, GoUP
2 Shri Manoj Kumar 10.10.2018 Nominee Director, GoUP
3 Shri Ajay K. Shukla 30.03.2019 Nominee Director, GoUP

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises professionals with proven administrative and
execution capabilities, committed to the objective of the company, who collectively direct the affairs
of the Company.

3. Board Procedure

Board Meetings are conducted regularly for critical evaluation and review of the performance of the
Company and for ensuring effective implementation of management decisions. The Company has
streamlined a procedure for holding the Board and its Committee Meetings, as explained below: -

Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board/Committee Meetings:

The meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice after obtaining approval of the Chairman of
the Board. To address specific urgent needs, meetings are also called at short notice. The Board also
passes Resolutions by Circulation, but only for such matters, which are of utmost urgency and which
are permissible in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

The agenda papers are prepared by the Heads of Departments concerned and submitted to the
Managing Director. Duly approved detailed agenda notes, management reports and other
explanatory statements, backed by comprehensive background information, are circulated in
advance amongst the members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the
meetings.

In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary item(s), not on the agenda are
taken up for discussion with the permission of the Chair. The Board is also informed of major
events/items of approvals taken whenever necessary. The Managing Director at the Board Meetings
keeps the Board apprised of the overall performance of the Company. The Board are of the view that
status of actions taken on the directives of the Board in earlier meetings also forms part of the agenda
of next Board Meeting.
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The members of the Board have complete access to all information of the Company. Also, the Board
meetings are conducted in line with the Secretarial Standards-1.

Briefing by the Managing Director:

At the beginning of each meeting of the Board, the Managing Director briefs the Board members
about the key developments including the status of the project and other important achievements/
developments relating to the Company in various areas.

Recording Minutes of proceedings at the Board meeting:

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board meeting are recorded and are entered in the Minutes Book.
The minutes of the Board Meetings are submitted for confirmation at its next meeting after these are
signed by the Chairman. The minutes of the meetings of the Sub-committees of the Board are placed
before the Board for its information.

Compliance:

The Heads of Departments, while preparing agenda notes ensure adherence to all the applicable
statutory requirements including the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the Articles of
Association and the CVC guidelines.

The employees of the Company pursue the duties and responsibilities entrusted to them. They
always maintain high moral standards and values in contributing towards corporate functioning, and
the appropriate and timely guidance from the management, helps them to discharge their duties
effectively.

Meeting of shareholders

The Fifth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company was held on 29th September
2018 at registered office of the company at Lucknow.

Board Meetings

During the year FY 2018-2019, Four Board meetings were convened and held. The attendance
details of Directors at the Board meetings held during their tenure is as given below:

S.No | Name No. of Meetings No. of Board
held in 2018-19 during meeting attended

the tenure of their Directorship

No. of Board meetings attended

1 Shri. Durga Shanker Mishra 4

Shri. Kumar Keshav

Smt. Jhanja Tripathy

Shri Vinay Kumar Singh

Shri K Sanjay Murthy

Shri Pradeep Madhumangal Sikdar

N[O |u| | WD
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Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn

—
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8 Shri Ajay Kumar Shukla
9 Shri. Anil Garg

10 Shri Rajesh Kumar Singh
11 Shri. Mahendra Kumar
12 Shri. Ajai Kant Rastogi
13 Shri. Sanjay Mishra

14 Shri Sushil Kumar

(NSRS N S B N N
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6. Committees of the Board
The Board has constituted Five Committees, commensurate with the size and nature of operation of
the Company. These are Audit Committee & Investment Committee, Internal Complaint Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee. Each of
these committees has clearly spelt out Terms of Reference duly approved by the Board. These
Committees meet according to the requirements of the Company from time to time.

a. Audit Committee

The composition of the Audit Committee of the Company as on date is:

S. No. | Name of the Director Designation Date of appointment
at Member of the
Committee

1 Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn[ Nominee Director, GoUP 27.03.2018

Principal Secretary, Housing
and Urban Planning
Department, GoUP

2 Shri Ajay Kumar Shukla Member, Secretary, 02.05.2018
Finance Department, GoUP

3 Smt. Jhanja Tripathy Member, Joint Secretary & 24.08.2017
FA, MoUD

4 Shri Mahendra Kumar Member, Director (RS &S), 24.08.2017

Director (RS&S) LMRC LMRC

The Committee met four times during the year under review.

Meeting No. Date of Meeting
14th 24.05.2018
15th 13.07.2018
16th 26.11.2018
17th 19.03.2019

= |
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General Manager (Finance), Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors of the Company were
also invited to attend the meetings of the committee. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are as approved by the Board in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act
2013 and rule made thereunder :-

S. No. | Name of the Member of the Meetings held in 2018-19 Meetings

Audit Committee during the tenure of their | Attended
Membership

1. Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn 4 4

2. Shri Ajay Kumar Shukla 4 3

3. Smt. Jhanja Tripathy 2 2

4 Shri Mahendra Kumar Director 4 4
(RS&S) LMRC

Investment Committee:

The composition of the Investment Committee of the Company is as follows as on date.

S No | Name of the Member Designation
1. Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director Chairman
2. Shri Mahendra Kumar, Director (RS&S) Member

3. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi, Director (Finance) Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company was formed on 9-2-2018 and
composition of the committee as on date as mentioned below:

S No | Name of the Member Designation

1. Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn | Principal Secretary, Housing & Urban Planning
Department and Nominee Director, GoUP

2. Shri Mahendra Kumar Director ( Rolling Stock & System), LMRC

3. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi Director (Finance), LMRC

Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company as on date is:-

S No | Name of the Member Designation

1. Shri Nitin Ramesh Gokarn Principal Secretary, Housing & Urban Planning
Department and Nominee Director, GoUP

2. Shri Kumar Keshav Managing Director, LMRC

3. Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi Director (Finance), LMRC

—
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B. DISCLOSURES

¢ There have been no materially significant related party transactions i.e., transactions of the
Company of a material nature with its promoters, the directors or the management,
subsidiaries or relatives etc.

e That may have potential conflict of interest with the interest of the Company at large.

e There were no cases of any statutory non-compliances by the Company or any instances of
penalties imposed or structures against the Company by any Statutory Authority.

e There were no items of expenditure debited in the books of accounts, which were not for the
purpose of the business of the Company.

C. COMPANY’S WEBSITE

The Company’s website is www.Imrcl.com.All major information pertaining to the Company,
including the project, contracts, job recruitment processes etc are given on the website to
disseminate timely information about all procurement of goods and services. The website also
provides information on all important events, activities and progress of the Metro Rail project and
other significant developments.

Address for correspondence:

Registered Office:

Administrative Building,

Vipin Khand, Gomti Nagar,

Lucknow-226010

Ph-0522-2304011

Email. csimrcl@gmail.com Website: www.Imrcl.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Kumar Keshav Ajai Kant Rastogi
Place : Lucknow Managing Director Director Finance
Date: 27.07.2019 DIN-02908695 DIN-07228424
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Annexure-|
Dileep Dixit & Co. Email ID : cs.dilipdixit@gmail.com

Company Secretaries Contact Nos. : +91 8354980010

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

CIN: U60300UP2013SGC060836

Reg. Office: Administrative Building Vipin Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Near Dr. Ambedhkar Samajik,
Parivartan Sthal Lucknow -226010 Uttar Pradesh
E-mail id: csimrcl@gmail.com

1. We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (hereinafter called
“the company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

2.  We have examined the registers, records, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st Day of March, 2019 according to
the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under and various allied acts warranting
compliance;

ii.  The Metro Railways (Construction of works) Act,1978 and Rules thereof;

iii.  The Metro Railways (Operation and Maintenance) Act, 2002 and Rules thereof; and

iv. TheMemorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

3. Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st Day of March, 2019
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder:

i.  maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;
ii.  forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies;

iii. service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies;

—
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iv. notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors;

v. meetings of Directors and all the Committees of Directors;

vi. notice and convening of Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2018;

vii. minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings, Committee and Members Meetings;

viii. approvals of the Board of Directors, Committee of Directors, Members and Government authorities,
wherever required;

ix. constitution of the Board of Directors, Committees of Directors and appointment and reappointment
of Directors;

X.  payment of remuneration to Directors and Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel;
xi. appointmentand remuneration of Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and Internal Auditors;
xii. transfer of Company's shares, issue and allotment shares;

xiii. contracts, registered office and publication of name of the Company;

xiv. report of the Board of Directors;

xv. investment of Company's funds;

xvi. generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules there under;

xvii. The Company has, in our opinion, proper Board-processes and compliance machanism and has
complied with the applicable statutory provisions, Act(s), rules, regulations, guidelines, applicable
secretarial standards, etc., mentioned above and as stipulated under the Memorandum and Articles
of Association the Company.

4. We further report that:

i.  the Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in
contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in other Companies and interest in
other entities;

ii. the Company has obtained all necessary approvals under various provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 wherever necessary;

iii. there was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company during the
year under review the Companies Act, 2013 and rules, regulations and guidelines there under.

5. We further report that during the year:

The status of the Company remains as a Government Company with 50:50 Joint Venture of State
(Government of Uttar Pradesh) and Central Government. Further, we are of the view that the Company is
regular in complying with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Metro Railways
(Construction of Works) Act, 1978 and the Metro Railways (Operation and Maintenance) Act, 2002 (Being
specific acts governing the Company).

i.  The compliance to that effect have been made, this fact has been examined from the perusal of
various records maintained by the Company.

ii.  Duringthe period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted and the
appointment and cessation of Directors has been made in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements.

—
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We further report that the applicable financial laws, such as Direct and Indirect Tax Laws have not been
reviewed under my audit in its entirety as same falls under review of the statutory audit and by other
designated professionals and we relied upon the reports of such statutory auditor and other designated
expert professionals.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)

Place: Lucknow
Date: 24.07.2019

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

Para wise Report on specific observations / audit qualification, reservation or adverse remarks in
respect of the applicable laws are provided in the “Annexure A” attached with this report (forming
integral part of report).

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act and as per the orders issued by the concerned regulatory body and government in this regard.

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance in most of the meetings, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

For M/s. Dileep Dixit & Co.

Sd/-
Dileep Kumar Dixit
FCS No. 6244
CP No. 6770
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Annexure A

Observation of gap of more than 120 (one hundred and twenty) days between two consecutive Board
meetings particularly between 2nd and 3rd meeting of the Board of Directors for the Financial Year 2018-
19 conducted during the audit period pursuant to the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act,
2013

Place: Lucknow

Date: 24.07.2019 For M/s.Dileep Dixit & Co.

Dileep Kumar Dixit
FCS No. 6244
CPNo.6770
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Di|eep Dixit & Co. Email ID : cs.dilipdixit@gmail.com

Company Secretaries Contact Nos. : +91 8354980010

To,

The Members,

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

CIN: U60300UP2013SGC060836

Reg. Office: Administrative Building Vipin Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Near DR Ambedhkar Samajik,
Parivartan Sthal Lucknow -226010 Uttar Pradesh
E-mail id: csimrcl@gmail.com

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company so far it is not concerned with our audit related matters.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/s. Dileep Dixit & Co.

Sd/-
Dileep Kumar Dixit
Place: Lucknow FCS No. 6244
Date: 24/07/2019 C P No. 6770

—
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Comment by Secretarial Auditor

Reply

1. Observation of gap of more than 120 (one hundred
and twenty) days between two consecutive Board
meetings particularly between 2nd and 3rd meeting
of the Board of Directors for the Financial Year 2018-
19 conducted during the audit period pursuant to the
provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act,
2013

33rd Board Meeting was held on 23.07.2018 &
34th Board meeting was held on 27/11/2018.
There was delay of 7 days due to pre -occupied &
unavoidable reasons, the members of the Board
were not available for the meeting hence the
meeting could not be conducted within the
stipulated days.
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Annexure-Il

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of the Company
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN U60300UP20135SGC60836
2. | Registration Date 25th November, 2013
3. | Name of the Company Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited

4. | Category/Sub-category of the Company Government Company

5. | Address of the Registered Administrative Building, Vipin Khand

office & contact details Gomti Nagar, Near Samajik Parivartan Sthal,
Lucknow- 226010

Phone: 0522-2304010

Fax: 0522-2304013

Email: csimrcl@gmail.com
Website: www.Imrcl.com

6. | Whether listed company Not Listed

7. | Name, Address & contact details of the NA
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

I1.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sr. Name and Description of Main NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
No. Products/ Services Product/ Service Company
1. |Land transport via Railways & Pipelines H2 100

I1l. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. | Name and address of the CIN/GLN [ Holding/Subsidiary/ % of Application
No. [ Company Associate share held section
1. Not Applicable

“
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)
a) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of shares held at the No. of shares held at the %Change
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year during
[As on 1st April, 2018] [As on 31-March, 2019] the year
Demat | Physical Total % of |Demat| Physical Total [ % of
Total Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

(@) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -

b) Central Govt. -| 65160000 65160000]41.20% -| 100300000 [ 100300000 [50.15% | 8.95%

c) State Govt(s) -| 93005000| 93005000|58.80% -1 99700000 99700000 49.85% | (8.95%)

d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

e) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - - R

f) Any other - - - - - - - - _

Total 158165000 (158165000 100% 200000000 | 200000000 | 100% -
shareholding of
Promoter (A)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - i -

b) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - i -

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - _ -

d) State Govt(s). - - - - - - - R

e) Venture - - - - - - - i -
Capital Funds

f) Insurance - - - - - - - - -
Companies

g Flis - - - ; - ] - _

h) Foreign - - - - - - - i -
Venture Capital
Funds

v
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i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - R - - - -

2. Non-Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian - - - - - - - - -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individual - - - - - - - - -
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual - - - - - - - - -
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - ,

i) Non Resident
Indians

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
Corporate Bodies

iii) Foreign Nationals - - - - - - - - -

iv) Clearing Members - - - - - - - - -

v) Trusts - - - - - - _ .

vi) Foreign Bodies - - - - - - - - -
-DR

Sub-total - - - - - - - - -
(B)(2):-

Total Public - - - - R - - - -
Shareholding (B)
=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held - - - - - - - - -
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
A+B+0O)

—

158165000/ 158165000 ( 100% -| 200000000 ( 200000000 | 100%
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b) Shareholding of Promoter-

Sr. | Shareholder's Shareholding at beginning Shareholding at the end % Change in
No. | Name of the year of the year shareho-
Iding during
the year
No. of % of total| % of Shares No. of | % of total| % of Shares
Shares Shares Pledged/ Shares Shares Pledged/|
of the| encumbered of the| encumbered
company | to total shares company | to total shares|
1. Govt. of India | 65160000 41.20% - | 100300000 50.15% - 8.95%
Increased
2. Govt. of UP 93005000| 58.80% - 99700000 49.85% 8.95%
decreased
Total 158165000 100% - | 200000000 100% - -
¢) Change in Promoters' Shareholding:
SI. Name She.lrel:noldmg at the Date Increase/Decrease Cumu.latlve .
No. of beginning of the year - Shareholding during
> Shareholding
Shareholder (i.e. 01/04/2018) the year
I\:10. of %hof tot;;l No. of %hof tote:'_l No. of %hof tote;l
shares shares o shares shares o shares shares o
the the the
company company company
1 | Govt. of U.P | 93005000| 58.80% | 06.06.2018 6695000 8.95% | 99700000 49.85%
Right Issue decreased
2. | Govt. of India] 65160000| 41.20 % | 06.06.2018 | 35140000 8.95% |100300000 50.15%
Right Issue Increased
TOTAL 158165000 100% 100% 41835000 20000000 100%

d) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GD Rs and AD Rs) :

For Each of the Top 10

Shareholding at the

Cumulative Shareholding

Shareholders beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of
company the company

Atthe beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

Not Applicable

Atthe end of the year

—
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e) SHAREHOLDING of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding of each Directors and each Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
key Managerial Personnel beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of total No. of % of total

shares shares of the shares shares of

company the company

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year - - - -

V) INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans | Unsecured Loans | Deposits Total

excluding deposits Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
i) Principal Amount Nil 275405000000 Nil 275405000000
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil 22403688 Nil 22403688
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil 6849079 Nil 6849079
Total (i +1ii+iii) Nil 275434252767 Nil 275434252767
Change in Indebtedness during - - - -
the financial year
Addition Nil 18619972619.57 Nil 18619972619.57
Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Change Nil 18619972619.57 Nil 18619972619.57
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount Nil 293985000000 Nil 293985000000
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil 59066682.62 Nil 59066682.62
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil 10158703.95 Nil 10158703.95
Total (i +ii + i) Nil [ 294054225386.57 Nil [ 294054225386.57

—



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. | Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager (Amt in Rs.) Total
No. | Remuneration Amount
Managing WTD WTD WTD WTD
Director (Finance) (W&I) (RS&S) | (Operation)
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per 44,58,064 47,74,814 | 39,98,286 42,55,257 36,57,381 2,11,43,802,

provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of 5,49,980 2,16,373 87,496 3,64,193 2,62,054 14,80,096
perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary - - - - -
under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - - -

Commission - as % of - - - - -
profit - others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify 3,78,930 583,830 3,39,070 | 3,55,233 1,88,190 1845253
Total (A) Rs. 53,86,974 | 55,75017| 44,24,852 | 49,74,683| 41,07,625| 2,44,69,151

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors

Sr. | Particulars of Name of Directors Total
No.| Remuneration Amount
1. | Independent Directors - - - - -

Fee for attending board - - - - -
committee meetings

Commission - - - - -

Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (1) - - - _ _
2 Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending - - - - -~
board committee meetings

Commission - - - - -

Others, please specify - - - - -
Retainer ship fee
Total (2) - - - , _
Total (B)=(1+2) - - - ; -
Total Managerial - - - - -
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No.| Remuneration
CS Total
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 21,36,634 - - 21,36,634

contained in section 17(1)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 3,04,580 - - 3,04,580
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary - - - ;
under section 17(3)
Income Tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option - - - -

Sweat Equity - - - -

4, Commission - - - -

- as % of profit - - - -

others, specify... - - - .

5. | Others, please specify 1,66,682 - - 1,66,682
(Contribution to Provident Fund
and other Funds, Gratuity

& Group Insurance)

Total 26,07,896 - - 26,07,896

VII.  PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty/[  Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description Punishment [RD / NCLT/ if any
Act Compounding COURT] (give Details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

—
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lucknow Metro Railway Corporation Limited (the
‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs
(financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

1) Note No.1 to the Ind AS financial statement, regarding non execution of tittle deed of Land in favor of the
company.

2)  Note No. 14 and 29.18 to the Ind AS financial statement, regarding recognition of Interest free
subordinate Government loan at historical value presented as financial liability has not been measured
in accordance with Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments, due to uncertainty in period of repayment of the
subordinate debt.

3)  Note No. 29.9 to the Ind AS financial statement, European Investment Bank (EIB) loan outstanding INR
350200 lakhs & interest accrued of INR 692.25 Lakhs, Government of India arranged Pass Through
Assistance (PTA) of these loan disbursements for execution of the metro rail project in lucknow (U.P) .
Exchange rate fluctuations gain/loss has not been provided in the Ind AS financial statements as required
by Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, and shall be provided on transaction
basis on advice of Gol.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Actand
the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

_
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Responsibilities of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
(financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
explaining our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
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conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement based on the directions
issued and matters specified by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books

c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d)  Inouropinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act

e)  Since, the company is a Government Company, section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding
obtaining written representations from the directors of the Company, is not applicable to the company in
terms of notification no. GSR-463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

g)  With respectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements which would impact its financial position in its Notes No. 30 (1) to Ind AS
Financial Statement.

—
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses, if any.

iii. There is no amount which is, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):As per
Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
of India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Government Companies. Accordingly, reporting
in accordance with requirement of provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable on the
Company.

For D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. : 000773C)

Sd/-

Shreeharsh Shukla

Partner

Place : Lucknow Membership number : 408990
Date : 27/07/2019 UDIN: 19408990AAAAAA8402
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independents
Auditor’s Report of even date)

i In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program, fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the
year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

c. Asperthe information and explanation given to us, title deeds of immovable properties are held in
the name of the Company except for the cases as disclosed in Note No. 1 to the Ind AS Financial
Statement.

ii.  The Company is engaged in the business of Metro Rail Infrastructure and Maintenance and does not have
any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting under Clause3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given loan or made
Investment or given guarantee and security for the persons specified under provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence not commented upon.

v.  The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at
March31,2019 and therefore, the provisions of the clause3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

vi.  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of Cost Records under section 148(1) of the
Actfor any of the services rendered by the company hence not commented upon.

vii.  Accordingto the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities.

b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March31,2019 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues of income tax, outstanding on
account of any dispute are as under.
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Nature of Nature of Dues | Forum where Period to which | Amount INR
the Statue Dispute is Pending | amount relates In Lacs
Income tax Tax Deducted CIT (Appeal) 2013-14 18.24
Act 1961 at Source
Income tax Tax Deducted CIT (Appeal) 2014-15 0.41
Act 1961 at Source
Income tax Tax Deducted CIT (Appeal) 2015-16 47.64
Act 1961 at Source
Income tax Tax Deducted CIT (Appeal) 2016-17 108.47
Act 1961 at Source

viii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of dues to any financial institution and government during the year.

ix.  As per explanation provided to us, the company raised monies by way of further offer of shares to the
existing shareholders or term Loans and the amount were used for the purpose for which they were raised.

X.  Tothe best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

xi.  As per notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, Section 197 is not applicable to the Government Companies. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xii. The Company is not a nidhi company and hence, reporting under Clause3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

xiv. Duringthe year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence, reporting under Clause3 (xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xv. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence provisions of Section192 of the Companies Act,2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

For D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. : 000773C)

Sd/-

Shreeharsh Shukla

Place: Lucknow Partner
Date: 27/07/2019 Membership number : 408990

UDIN: 19408990AAAAAA8402
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report

[Referred to in paragaraph 2, under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in
the Independent Auditor's Report of even date]

According to the information and explanations given to us we report as under:

1.  Whether the Company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity on the accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated?

The company has IT system in place to process accounting transaction; further the company has installed
ERP System as well, which is pending implementation.

2.  Whether there is any restructuring of any existing loans or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by lender to the Company due to the Company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated?

We generally observed no cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest, etc. during the year under
audit.

3.  Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/State agencies
were properly accounted for / utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of
deviations?

Funds received by the company are as per the Finance Model in approved DPR which have been
generally properly accounted for/utilized. However As per MOU dated 23/March 2016 between GO,
GOUP and LMRC, the debt servicing liability of LMRC with regard to EIB, the loan portion shall be
reckoned based on the repayment schedule of EIB in rupee terms along with exchange rate fluctuation of

loan currency, which the company has not provided for the effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates, and shall be provided on transaction basis on advice of Gol.

4. Whether the system in vogue for identification of project to be taken up under Public
Partnership is in line with the guideline/policies of the Government? Comment on
deviation if any?

As per information and explanation provided to us, during the year under audit, the company has
selected HDFC Bank as Merchant Acquirer Bank for Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation (LMRC), Fare

Collection system, agreement for six years and provision of Allied Banking Applications under PPP
model, no deviation in compliances of Government guidelines/policies was reported.
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5. Whether system for monitoring the execution of works vis-a-vis the milestones
stipulated in the agreement is in existence and the impact of cost escalation, if any
revenues/losses from contracts, etc., have been properly accounted for in the books.

The system for monitoring the execution of works vis-a-vis the milestones stipulated in the agreement is
appropriate. The Technical Executives f Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (LMRC) along with
General Consultants (GC) engaged by LMRC examines the claims and works in accordance with the
milestones stipulated in the agreement and continuously monitor it. Any revenues/losses from contracts,
etc. have been properly recorded in the books.

6. Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/State agencies
were properly accounted for/utilized? List the cases of deviations?

Funds received by the company are as per the Finance Model in approved DPR which have been
generally properly accounted for/utilized. However As per MOU dated 23 March 2016 between GO,
GOUP and LMRC, the debt servicing liability of LMRC with regard to EIB, the loan portion shall be
reckoned based on the repayment schedule of EIB in rupee terms along with exchange rate fluctuation of
loan currency, which the company has not provided for the effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates, and shall be provided on transaction basis on advice of Gol.

7.  Whether the bank guarantees have been revalidated in time?
Bank guarantees have been generally validated in time.

8. Comment on the confirmation of balances of trade receivables, trade payables, term
deposits, bank accounts and cash obtained.

The company has received balance confirmations for its banks balances and term deposit which are
reconciled with books of accounts for any difference, further non confirmation of most of the balances of
trade payable and the consequent effect on the book balances and the actual balance over the
profitability/loss to the company is subject to reconciliation if any, the company has no trade receivables
for which confirmation need be obtained.

For D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No. : 000773C)

Sd/-

Shreeharsh Shukla

Place : Lucknow Partner
Date : 27/07/2019 Membership number : 408990

UDIN : 19408990AAAAAA8402
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditor’s Report

[Referred to in paragraph 4, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation
Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Ourauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
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(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2)  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the
Management and directors of the Company; and

(3)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls OverFinancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForD.S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No.0007730)

Sd/-

(Shreeharsh Shukla)

Place : Lucknow Partner
Date:27.07.2019 Membership No.-408990

UDIN: 19408990AAAAAA8402
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING, VIPIN KHAND, GOMTI NAGAR, LUCKNOW
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2019

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 5,92,709.05 2,02,612.25
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 11,941.70 2,07,386.48
(c) Intangible assets 3 4,876.67 3,569.89
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development 4 - 565.45
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Loans -
(ii) Other Financial Assets 5 358.65 185.97
(f)  Other non-current Assets - -
Current Assets
(@) Inventories 6 7.78 8.23
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 7 202.95 -
(ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 8 1,26,792.43 1,19,127.86
(iii) Others 9 1,389.79 464.41
(c) Current Tax Assets 10 17.00 2.72
(d) Other Current Assets 11 1,656.03 21,296.52
7,39,952.05 5,55,219.78
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 2,00,000.00 1,58,165.00
(b) Other Equity 13 (9,218.21) 43,536.56
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 4,61,205.00 2,75,405.00
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 1,208.41 834.01
(c) Provisions 16 605.78 623.62
(d) Other Non Current Liabilities 17 47,232.55 47,927.61
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17(a) - -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 18 823.85 361.57
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 19 27,579.79 25,278.30
(b) Other current liabilities 20 8,958.55 1,814.50
(c) Provisions 21 1,556.33 1,273.61
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,39,952.05 5,55,219.78
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 29 & 30

Audit Report of even date attached

For : D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN - 000773C

Sd/-

(Shreeharsh Shukla)

Partner

Membership No: 408990
UDIN: 19408990AAAAAA8402

Place: Lucknow
Date: 27.07.2019

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

(Kumar Keshav)
Managing Director
DIN: 02908695
Sd/-

(Pushpa Bellani)
Company Secretary
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Sd/-

(Ajai Kant Rastogi)
Director Finance
DIN: 07228424
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019
(INR in lakhs)

Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. Ending 31.03.2019 Ending 31.03.2018
Income

i)  Revenue From Operations 22 1,504.00 555.40
ii)  Other Income 23 9,386.14 6,931.95
Total Income 10,890.14 7,487.35

Expenses
i)  Operating Expenses 24 2,818.53 1,616.72
ii)  Employees' Benefit Expenses 25 4,917.12 2,778.27
iii)  Finance Cost 26 211.46 82.64
iv) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 27 8,582.34 4,430.84
v)  Other Expenses 28 1,916.68 1,255.95
Total expenses 18,446.13 10,164.42
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (7,555.98) (2,677.07)
Profit Before Tax (7,555.98) (2,677.07)

Tax expense
Current Tax

Deferred Tax 17(a) - 355.33
Profit/(Loss) for the year (7,555.98) 2,321.74)
| Profit for the year (7,555.98) 2,321.74)

Other Comprehensive Income

i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 344.82 (216.54)

- Income Tax effect - -
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 344.82 (216.54)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (7,211.16) (2,538.28)
(1) Basic (Rs.) (3.75) (1.70)
(2) Diluted (Rs.) (3.57) (1.60)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to 29 & 30

Financial Statements

For D. S. Shukla & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 000773C

Sd/-
Sdr- (Kumar Keshav) Sd_/ -, i
(Shreeharsh Shukla) Managing Director (Ajai Kant Rastogi)
Partner DIN: 02908695 Director Finance
Membership No: 408990 DIN: 07228424
UDIN: 19408990AAAAAA8402 Sd/-
Place: Lucknow (Pushpa Bellani)
Date: 27.07.2019 Company Secretary
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LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE: ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING, VIPIN KHAND, GOMTI NAGAR, LUCKNOW

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

(INR in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/Loss after Tax (7,211.16) (2,538.28)
Adjustment for :-
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 8,582.34 4,430.85
Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) - (355.33)
Grant Allocated from LDA - (418.37)
Interest Received From FDRs (7,972.06) (6,449.83)
Gain on Disposal of Mobile Handsets - (0.01)
Interest & Finance Charges 211.46 82.65
Deffered Government Grant - (4,436.88)
Income Tax Refund - 8.85
Fair Value Adjustment (1.40) (3.47)
SOCIE (3.47) (163.86)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (6,394.30) (9,843.68)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (202.95) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 19,640.49 20,237.35
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax Assets (14.28) (2.72)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (1,098.05) (263.90)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 0.45 (8.23)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 264.88 (2,511.18)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 6,448.99 916.68
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 462.26 12,110.11
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 2,675.89 4,162.51
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Cash Generated from Operations 21,783.37 24,796.94
Tax paid - -
Net Cash flow from operating activities 21,783.37 24,796.94

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment including Capital
Work-in-Progress and Intangible Assets

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets

Interest Income Received

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share Capital and share Application Money
Grants Received/(adjusted) during the year
Loans raised during the year

Loans repaid during the year

(2,03,975.69)

7,972.06

(1,96,003.63)

14,308.00
(18,013.14)
1,85,800.00

(2,19,893.79)
0.77

6,449.83

(2,13,443.19)

59,127.00
19,034.84
1,28,973.00




Q LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION

Interest & Finance Charges (211.46) (82.65)
Fair Value Adjustment 1.41 3.47
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 1,81,884.82 2,07,055.66
D. Net Changes in cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 7,664.57 18,409.42
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Op. Balance) 1,19,127.86 1,00,718.46
F Cash and Cash Equivalents (Cl. Balance) 1,26,792.43 1,19,127.86

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents include :

(i) Cash on hand and balances with bank 1,424.12 15,090.81
(ii) Short Term Investments 1,25,368.31 1,04,037.05
1,26,792.43 1,19,127.86

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements
The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash

Flows

For : D. S. Shukla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Membership No : 408990

Sd/-

(Shreeharsh Shukla)

Partner

Membership No: 408990
UDIN: 19408990AAAAAA8402

Place: Lucknow
Date: 27.07.2019

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-

(Kumar Keshav) (Ajai Kant Rastogi)
Managing Director Director Finance
DIN: 02908695 DIN: 07228424
Sd/-

(Pushpa Bellani)
Company Secretary
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Q LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION

Note - 15 Other Financial Liabilities

(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2019 Asat April 1,2018
Long Term
Performance Guarantee Received 516.15 541.48
Interest on EIB Loan 692.25 292.53
Total 1,208.41 834.01
Note 16 - Provisions
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2019 AsatMarch 31,2018
Long Term
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 605.78 623.62
Total 605.78 623.62
Note 17 - Other Non Current Liabilities
(INRin Lakhs)
Particulars AsatMarch 31,2019 AsatMarch 31,2018
Non-Current
Government Grant 47,232.55 47,927.61
Total 47,232.55 47,927.61

Note 17(a) - Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets

(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars

As on 31st March 2019

As on 31st March 2018

i) Deferred Tax Assets

a)  Unabsorbed Depriciation as per Income Tax

b)  Provisionforemployee benefitschemes & others

Sub Total (i)
ii)  Deferred Tax Liabilities
a)  Depriciation/ Amortisation
b)  Preliminary Expenses W/ Off
Sub Total (ii)
Add/ Less: Opening Balance

355.33

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) (Net)

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable
income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. Thus deferred tax asset has not been recognised.




ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

Note 18 - Trade Payables

(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31st, 2019

As at March 31st, 2018

Total outstanding dues of micro and small scale
Industrial Undertaking(s). (Due over 30 days % Nil/-)

Total outstanding dues of Medium scale Industrial
Undertaking(s). (Due over 30 days % Nil/-)

TA Payable - 0.58
Professional & Other services Payable 20.46 20.33
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 803.39 340.66
Total 823.85 361.57

Note 19 - Other Financial Liabilities

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31st, 2019 | As at March 31st, 2018
Short term

Deposit/Retention Money From Contractors & Others 7,354.14 6,959.34
Creditors for CWIP & Capital Goods 20,225.65 18,318.96
Others* (Expenses Payable) - -
Total 27,579.79 25,278.30

Note 20 - Other Current Liabilities

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31st, 2019 | As at March 31st, 2018
Current

Duties & Taxes Payable 1,495.02 1,020.93
Payable for employees 252.68 146.04
Advance from Customers 285.00 87.60
Advance for Recruitment - 541.34
Security Deposits from Customers 57.33 18.59
Payable against Land (Barter)# 6,868.52 -
Total 8,958.55 1,814.50

# For Fair Valuation of Land under Barter the expected cost to be incurred over completion of the project (Staff Quarter).

Note 21 - Provisions

(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Short Term

FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Leave Encashment 21.91 0.64
Others* 1,534.41 1,272.97
Total 1,556.33 1,273.61

*Others include Provision for Custom Duty Reimbursement, Provision for Gratuity Contribution, Provision for Pension Contribution etc.




Q LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION LTD.

LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION

Note 22 - Revenue from Operations

(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ending For the year ending

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Fare Box Revenue 1,079.96 435.45
Non Fare Box Revenue 424.05 119.95
TOTAL 1,504.00 555.40

Note 23 - Other Incomes

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Other Income:-
Miscellaneous Income 713.40 34.98
Interest Income :-
Term Deposits / FDR 7,365.83 5,765.80
Flexi Deposits 129.01 396.03
Interest on E Net A/c 477.22 288.00
Deferred Revenue Grant 695.06 418.37
Fair Value Adjustment 5.62 28.77
TOTAL 9,386.14 6,931.95

Note 24 - Operating Expenses

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Security Expenses 702.95 666.13
Electricity Expenses 1,447.45 660.82
Equipment Running & Maintenance Expenses 57.36 15.13
Housekeeping Expenses 298.43 164.05
Depot Running & Maintenance Expenses 70.18 21.30
Station Running & Maintenance Expenses 218.34 70.62
Stores and Consumables 9.57 5.18
Insurance expenses 14.24 13.49
Total 2,818.53 1,616.72

Note 25 - Employees' Benefit Expenses

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Salaries, Wages & Other Benefits 4,008.12 2,042.37
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 452.27 287.38
Leave Encashment Expenses 346.93 314.96
Contribution Towards Gratuity 109.79 133.56
Total 4,917.12 2,778.27
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Note 26 - Finance Cost

(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Bank Charges 2.25 1.25
Interest on EIB Loan 209.21 81.39
Total 211.46 82.64

Note 27 - Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ending  [For the year ending
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Depreciation/ Amortization for the year

a)  Tangible Assets 8,383.11 4,276.82

b)  Intangible Assets 199.23 154.02

Total 8,582.34 4,430.84

Note 28 - Other Expenses

(INRin Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Printing & Stationery Expenses 161.15 115.98
Telephone , Internet & Communication Expenses 57.95 88.36
Books,Periodicals,Newspapers & Magazines Expenses 0.73 0.71
Auditors Remuneration 3.79 3.79
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 144.09 123.18
Office Running & Maintenance Expenses 52.41 95.08
Postage & Courier Expenses 0.85 0.81
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.85 50.93
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 186.93 130.36
Training & Recruitment Expenses 692.10 11.16
Hospitality & Refreshment Expenses 94.32 74.10
Outsourcing & Job Work Expenses 156.14 142.52
Statutory Expenses 0.19 0.05
Seminar, Ceremony, Conference Expenses 151.97 233.55
Commission & Brokerage 0.49 0.14
Licence, Legal & Other Expenses 11.81 9.11
Professional & other services 151.39 107.19
Rent, Rates & Taxes 45.16 43.63
Fair Value Adjustments 4.22 25.29
Effect of Forex Fluctuations 0.13 0.01
Total 1,916.68 1,255.95
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LUCKNOW METRO
RAIL CORPORATION

Notes to Accounts

Note No. 29 Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies

29.1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited (referred to as “the Company”) is domiciled and
incorporated in India (CIN: U60300UP2013SGC060836) with 50:50% equity participation of the
Government of India (GOI) and the Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP). The registered office of
the company is located at Administrative Bhawan, Gomti Nagar, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh. It was
formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) on 25th November 2013 to execute Mass Rapid Transit
System (MRTS) in Lucknow city by providing Metro Rail. Government of India (Gol) -MoUD gave
its approval for the implementation of Lucknow Metro Rail Project Phase -1A vide communique no.
K-14011/27/2013-MRTS-1V dated 25th January 2016.

29.2. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Standards issued but not yet effective In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 via notification dated 30
March 2019 to further amend Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, notifying a
new lease standard Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’. This amendment replaces Ind AS 17, ‘Leases’. An insertion
of Appendix C, ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ to Ind AS 12, ‘Income taxes has also been
notified. These amendments are applicable to the Company from April 1,2019.

A. INDAS 116 “Leases”
This standard replaces Ind AS 17, Leases. Key changes include:

a. Eliminates the requirementto classify a lease as either operating or finance lease in the books of
lessee.

b. Introduces a single lessee accounting model, whereby requires lessee to recognize assets and
liabilities for all leases. Entity may elect not to apply this accounting requirement to short term
leases and leases for which underlying asset is of low value.

c. Requires lessee to classify cash payments for principal and interest portion of lease
arrangement within financing activities and financing/operating activities respectively in the
cash flow statements.

d. Requires entities to determine whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset to assess whether that contractis, or contains, a lease.

B. IND AS 12 “Insertion of Appendix C to Income Taxes”

Ind AS 12 provides the recognition and measurement principles for current and deferred tax
assets and liabilities. However, it does not provide guidance in relation to accounting of an
uncertain tax treatment, pending decision by a relevant taxation authority or court, while
measuring current and deferred taxes. The entities would now be required to assess the effect
of uncertainties on income tax treatment of items or transactions and depending on the
likelihood of the taxation authorities accepting the treatment in the tax return, the entity would
either disclose the uncertainty in the financial statements or include an adjustment for the
same in the tax provision for that year.
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The insertion does not introduce any new disclosure requirements but strengthens the need to
comply with the significant disclosure requirements under Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements, and Ind AS 12.

The insertion is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments
underInd AS 12.

Furthermore, if an entity considers a particular amount payable or receivable for interest and
penalties, associated with uncertain tax treatment, to be an income tax, then that amount is
within the scope of this Interpretation and where a company instead applies Ind AS 37,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, to these amounts, then it does not
apply this Interpretation. The Interpretation would also apply to uncertainty affecting deferred
tax assets and liabilities arising out of business combinations.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendments and its impact if any, on the
financial statements.

29.3.  BASISOFACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind. AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(asamended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were authorised and approved for issue
by the Board of Directors onJuly 27, 2019.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below..

Going Concern Assumption

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as it is considered by the
board that the company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and meet
its liabilities as they fall due for payment.

Use of Estimates and Management Judgment

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind. ASs that also requires
estimates and assumptions to be made by the management which affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and
disclosures of contingent liabilities / Assets on the date of financial statements. Actual results could
differ from these estimates. The estimates are reviewed periodically and revisions to the accounting
estimate are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised and future period is affected.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results
are crystallized.

_
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In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is as under:

A. Property, plant and equipment

Represent a significant proportion of asset base of the company. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining the estimate of an assets expected useful life,
the expected residual value at the end of its life and depreciation method. The useful lives and
residual values of company’s assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end along with
depreciation method and adjusted prospectively if appropriate. The lives are based on
historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may
impact their life, such as changes in technology.

B. Provisions: Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses. Provisions are determined based on management estimate required
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

C. Contingent liabilities/Assets: Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible
obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of
resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities /
assets are disclosed based on judgment of management/independent experts, wherever
required. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate.

D. Defined Benefit obligation: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The Company
funds the Plan through annual contributions to Life Insurance Corporation of India under its
Employee Group Gratuity Scheme. Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of each year.

E. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses: The effect of asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re- measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

F. Impairment test of PPE: The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
to assess if there is any indication of impairment based on internal and external factors. An
impairment loss on such assessment will be recognized wherever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the assets is net selling price
or value in use, whichever is higher. While assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to the present value by using weighted average cost of capital. A
previously recognized impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes
in the circumstances and to the extent that carrying amount of the assets does not exceed the
carrying amount that will be determined if no impairment loss had previously been
recognized. Impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
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G. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized
is based on an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against
which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. In addition, a significant judgment is required in
assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

The carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period in respect of the above is referred in
respective notes.

29.4. The principal accounting policies are set out below:
A. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees - INR (), which is the
Company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the
prevailing exchange rates in INR (%) on the transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on
settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss or
Capital Work in Progress to whichever the same may relate to.

B. Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment including intangible assets are shown at their acquisition cost
/historical cost. Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs and other directly
attributable costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which takes substantial period to get
ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets
are ready to be put to use. Fixed Assets are eliminated from financial statements, either on
disposal or when retired from active use.

C. Assets & Systems common to more than one section of the project is capitalized based on
technical estimates/ assessments.

D. Allthe costs directly attributable to bring the asset to intended use have been included in the
cost of assets in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 16.

E. Contracts are capitalized on completion based on statement of account received from
executing agencies and in its absence based on technical assessment of the work executed.

F. Capitalization of the assets for new section to be opened for public carriage of passengers is
done after ensuring its completeness in all respect as per Standard operating procedures as
defined in the company, administrative formalities and compliance of requirements stipulated by
Commissioner of Metro Railway Safety imperative for the opening of such section for public use.

In the case of assets put-to-use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be
affected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the year
of final settlement.

G. Payments made towards permissions for construction of Station Entry and Exit from various
land-owning agencies is capitalized as intangible asset and amortized over the useful life of
the asset.

H. Expenditure on major inspection, overhauls and replacing part of an item of property, plant
and equipment shall be capitalized, if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied in it will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably.
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[.  Gain and losses on disposal of an item of Property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item and are recognized
net within miscellaneous/ other income and loss in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

29.5 Land

A.  Amount received for buying land for the company as part of interest-free Subordinate Loan for
Land sanctioned to the Company, is treated as interest-free subordinate loan for land.

B. Payments made provisionally / liability provided towards cost or compensation related to the
land including lease-hold land in possession, are treated as cost of the land or Lease-hold land.
Payment made provisionally / liability provided towards land acquired on temporary basis has
been amortized over the possession period of the land.

C. The pieces of land purchased by LMRC for which possession has been obtained pending
registration have been accounted for based on payment made for them.

D. LMRC has received few pieces of land free of cost from Government of Uttar Pradesh. These
have been capitalized as freehold land at a token amount of INR 1/- per piece of land. As these
parcels of land were received prior to implementation of Ind AS, the same have been continued
atnominal value of INR 1/-in accordance with the exemptions permitted in Ind AS 101.

E. Land received in exchange of assets is recognized at the Fair value of the land received.
Difference between fair value of land received and cost of asset given is recognized as
applicable govt. grant. These grants are accounted under the head of Deferred Income and the
same are amortized as per the provisions of Ind AS 20.

F. Compensation, replacement etc. relating to the cost of rehabilitation of Project Affected
Persons (PAPs) is booked to CWIP and on completion is added to the cost of related assets.

G. Land if any received from Government at free of cost, ownership of which vests with LMRC is
to be recognized at fair value of the land received. Fair Value is to be calculated based on circle
rates of that area effective on the date of receipt of such land.

29.6. Capital Work-in-Progress

A. Cost of capital assets which are under construction and not ready for intended use, include
other direct and indirect expenditure directly attributable to the project/ asset.

B. Administrative, indirect and general overheads (net of income) directly attributable to the
projects are allocated in the ratio of assets capitalized.

C. Amounts pertaining to construction period such as Price Variation, Final Penalty (other than
interest received from temporary deployment of funds received by way of equity, interest free
subordinate-debt and grant), etc. have been adjusted against the expenditure during
construction.

D. Claims including price variation are accounted for on approval and acceptance. Liquidated
Damages are accounted for on settlement of final bill.

29.7. Allocation of Interest during Construction

Interest During Construction (IDC) in respect of qualifying assets commissioned during the year, is
allocated in the ratio which the value of commissioned assets bears to the qualifying CWIP as at the
end of the month of commissioning. In other cases, IDC is allocated based on the date of
capitalization of the last section.
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29.8. Depreciation/Amortization

A. Depreciation on Property, Plant &Equipment has been provided following the Straight-
LineMethod on the basis of useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013 except in respect of following assets/components of assets, where useful life is
determined based on technical assessment by the company:

S.No. | Asset Useful life (In years)
A. Rolling Stock 30
Al Components of Rolling Stock- Power supplies, Auxiliaries, 18

Brakes, Air-conditioning system, Interriors, On board
controls, Announcement and CCTV system

B Escalators 30

B1 Components of Escalators- Handrail 7

B2 Components of Escalators-Step and Chain Roller, 8
Relay, Timers and Control Gear

B3 Components of Escalators- Remaining Components 15

C Elevators 30

C1 Components of Elevators-Traction Machine /Motor, 20
Governor, Anti Creep Device

C2 Components of Elevators-Safety Gear Rope, 8
Hoisting Chain/Rope

C3 Components of Elevators-Contactors,Relays 10

C4 Components of Elevators-Remaining Components 30

D Components of AFC

D1 CSC(Contactless Smart Card) 7
D2 CST(Contactless Smart Token) 5
D3 Reamining Components 10
E Mobile Handset

F Signages 2
G Tubewells 15

Parameters considered for identification of components of assets:

e  Assets having value of INR 10 Lakhs & above and components of value more than 10 % in
relation to the main asset have only been considered for componentization.

e Themaximum life of component has been restricted to the life of principal asset.

e Significant components of assets having same useful life have been clubbed together
irrespective of the percentage in relation to principal asset. Remaining components or
insignificant items have combined with the principal asset.
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29.9.

29.10.

e land, Track Work (Permanent Way) and Intangible Assets are not componentised as
identification of separate components is not possible.

e Vehicles. Temporary Structures, Survey/ Safety Equipment, IT System, Office equipment,
Furniture and Fixture and related assets have not been componentized as their value in relation
to the total assets of the company is quite insignificant.

e Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets costing INR 5000/-or less have been
depreciated/amortized fully in the year of purchase considering the materially aspect.

e Theresidual value of 5% of the original cost of the asset has been considered and deducted for
charging depreciation as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

e Depreciation has been provided on pro-rata basis from the day on which assets were ready for
use. Depreciation on addition to / deduction from an existing asset which forms integral part of
main assets is charged over the remaining useful life of that assets.

e Major overhaul and inspection costs, which have been capitalized, are depreciated over the
period until the next scheduled outage or actual major inspection/ overhaul, whichever is
earlier.

e Considering the future economic benefits from software, they have been capitalized as
Intangible Assets and amortized over a period of 5 years on Straight Line Method.

e Expenditure on the items, ownership of which is not with the Company is charged off to
revenue in the year of incurrence of such expenditure.

Foreign Currency

A. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of transaction.

B. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated in functional currency at
closing exchange rates as at the reporting date.

C. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in
profit or loss/ CWIP in the year in which it arises.

D. The loan from European Investment Bank (EIB) has been received as Pass through assistance
(PTA) from Government of India (Gol) in INR. Any forex fluctuation on repayment will be
recognized on transaction basis on advice from Gol.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to assess if there is any
indication of impairment based on internal and external factors. An impairment loss on such
assessment will be recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of the assets is net selling price or value in use, whichever is
higher. While assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present
value by using weighted average cost of capital. A previously recognized impairment loss is further
provided or reversed depending on changes in the circumstances and to the extent that carrying
amount of the assets does not exceed the carrying amount that will be determined if no impairment
loss had previously been recognized. Impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.
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29.11. Revenue Recognition (Ind AS 115)

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is to be recognized. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11
Construction Contracts. The company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative catch-up
transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance
with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively
adjusted. ‘Revenue from fixed-price, fixed-time frame contracts, where the performance obligations
are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of
consideration, is recognized as per the percentage - of - completion method. When there is
uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards
completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Maintenance revenue is
recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance arrangement. The adoption of the
standard did not have any material impact to the financial statements of the Company.

A. Revenue from tickets/tokens are recognized on the date of its purchase and in case of smart cards
based on money value of the actual usage.

Income from sale of scrap is accounted on realization basis.

C. Theinterestincome on Flexi Deposits and TDRs/FDRs has been recognized on time proportion
basis, considering the amount invested, rates applicable and interest accrued as per the interest
certificates issued by the banks. The interest earned on FDRs has been recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

D. Rental Income in case of property and space let out has been recognized based on terms and
conditions of the contract agreement with licensee/lessee/concessionaire, etc.

E. Revenue accrued from advertisement for the space utilized is accounted for on accrual basis
based on the contract terms.

29.12. Inventories

Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Stores and Spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. The costs of inventories comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. The costs of purchase consist of the purchase
price including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing
authorities), freight inward and other expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition. Trade
discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

29.13.  Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shortterm
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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29.14.  Employee Benefits

Contribution towards provident fund and employee state insurance is made to the regulatory
authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined
Contribution Plans as the company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis. Such contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the period of service rendered by the employees.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The Company funds the Plan through annual
contributions to Life Insurance Corporation of India. Company's liability is actuarially determined at
the end of each year.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCl in the period in which they occur. Re- measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Accumulated leaves, which are expected to be availed or en-cashed within twelve months from the
end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost of accumulating leaves as the additional amount expected to be paid
as aresult of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated leaves, which are expected to be availed or en-cashed beyond twelve months from
the end of the year are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company's liability is
actuarially determined at the end of each year.

29.15. Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are accounted for bases on acceptance of claims.

29.16. GrantsinAid

Grants from the Government/Non-Government or other authorities towards Capital Expenditure for
creation of assets are initially shown as ‘Deferred Revenue’. These are subsequently recognized as
income each year over the life of the relevant assets in proportion to depreciation on those assets.

Grants from the Government/Non-Government or other authorities towards revenue has been
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss under the head ‘other income’.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at fair
amounts and released to the income statement over the expected useful life and pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

The Financial Assistance received from Government of Uttar Pradesh for State Taxes has been
adjusted/ deducted from Capital work in Progress (CWIP).
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29.17. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on the basis of effective interest rate.

Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

The loan from European Investment Bank (EIB) has been received as Pass through assistance (PTA)
from Government of India (Gol) in INR. The Pass-Through Assistance (PTA) provided by
Government of India is based on the finance contract signed between EIB and Government of India
(Gol) for Euro 450 Million (equivalentto INR 3,50,200 Lakh) as the borrower. The loan is secured by
sovereign guarantee by the Gol. The loan shall be disbursed in through tranches as per budgetary
provisions of Government of India. Gol gave the loan from their Plan Budget of Ministry of Urban
Development (MoUD) in INR. Any forex fluctuation on repayment will be recognized on
transaction basis on advice from Gol. During the year, the company has received an amount of INR
1,68,000 Lakh (PY 98100 Lakhs) as Pass through assistance from Gol. The company has provided
forinterest of INR 399.72 Lakhs (PY 259 Lakh) during the year.

Borrowing cost that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

29.18. Subordinate Debt

Interest free subordinate debts received from Gol & GoUP are repayable after the repayment of all
Non-Government Debts (i.e. Senior Debts). These debts have been recognized as long-term
borrowings. The subordinate debts are interest free. As per Government Order, Company is
required to make repayment of subordinate debt only after repayment of entire Senior Term Debt
availed for the project. In view of the uncertainty of repayment period, the company has not
considered necessary for fair valuation of Government subordinate debt.

29.19.  Taxation
Income Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax credits (MAT Credit entitlement) or
deductible temporary difference will be utilized against future taxable income.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Income tax expense, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or
equity, in which cases it is recognized in OCl or equity.
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29.20.

29.21.

29.22.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based
on management best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are not
discounted to present value. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted
to reflect the current management estimate. Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in
the financial statement.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) — 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

Financial Instruments

A. Recognition, Initial Measurement and De-Recognition:

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are recognized when company becomes party to the
contractual provision of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transaction costs, except for those financial assets which are classified at Fair Value Through
Profit & Loss (FVTPL) atinception.

Financial assets are De-Recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled
orexpires.

B. Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following
categories upon initial recognition:

e Financial assets at amortized cost using effective interest method (EIR)
e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All the financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at
each reporting date. There are no Financial Assets, which are designated at FVTPL in the
company.

C. Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried
subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All derivative
financial instruments are accounted for FVTPL. There are no financial liabilities, which are
designated at FVTPL in the company.

—



ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

29.23.

29.24

D. Effective Interest Rate (EIR) is calculated as follows:

e Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities, which are, interest bearing at market rates: EIR in
these cases are equivalent to instrument’s interest rate.

e For other financial assets or financial liabilities: SBI-MCLR/ Base rate at beginning of
financial year for highest available period.

Segment Reporting:

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Managing Director of the Company has been
identified as CODM and he is responsible for allocating the resources, assess the financial
performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decision. The Company has
identified one reportable segment "running and maintenance of metro rail facility in Lucknow"
based on the information reviewed by the CODM.

Current versus non-current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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30. Notes to Financial Statements

1. Contingent Liabilities:
(INR in Lakhs)

S. No. | Particulars As at As at
31.03.19 31.03.18
1. Crossing Charges demanded by Northern Railway 124.00 124.00
Penalty Charges claimed by BSNL 21.00 21.00
Land acquisition related court case by Dinesh Kumar NIL 4.00

Pathak (The court case has been dismissed)
4. Additional compensation for Land @ 100% of 2554.00 2554.00

circle rate and annual concession fees for 30 years.
amounting to INR 2554.00 Lakhs being demanded by
U.P. State Road Transport Corporation, Lucknow for the
Land transferred to LMRC for Metro Rail Project.

5. Additional compensation for Land @ 100% of NIL 108.00
circle rate being demanded by U.P. Cooperative Union
Limited, Lucknow amounting to INR 108.00 Lakhs for the
Land transferred to LMRC for Metro Rail project.

The same is not payable vide UP Govt. Letter No. 692/
Eight -7 -2019 dated 14-6-2019.

6. The rent of land for Casting Yard at Lucknow Airport 2211.00 2440.00
amounting to INR 2440.00 Lakhs.

(The amount of INR 228.62 Lakhs has been booked as
confirmed liability vide Letter No. 3905/LMRC/CPM/1/
AAl/Land/2019 dated 16.07.2019. The difference of the
same has been shown as contingent liability.)

7. Letter of Credit(s) in USD as per LC arrangement with 1220.85 2960.00
HDFC Bank

8. Letter of Credit(s) in EURO as per LC arrangement with 1894.33 2231.00
HDFC Bank

9. M/s Delhi Metro Rail Corporation on a/c of Revision of 9.00 9.00
DPR for E-W Corridor of Lucknow Metro Rail Project

10. The charges payable to North Eastern Railway for 1.67 14.00

temporary use of railway land during construction period
was disclosed as Contingent Liability amounting to INR
14.00 Lakhs. The Amount was revised to INR 10.17 Lakhs
by North Eastern Railways during the year. The amount
of INR 8.50 Lakhs was paid against the demand of

INR 10.17 Lakhs during the year. The difference between
the demand and the amount paid has been disclosed as
Contingent Liability.
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11. The charges payable to North Eastern Railway for 175.00 895.00
permission to cross railway land was disclosed as

Contingent Liability amounting to INR 895.00 Lakhs.
The Amount was revised to INR 955.00

Lakhs by North Eastern Railways during the year. The
amount of INR 780 Lakhs was paid during the year. The
difference between the demand and the amount paid has
been disclosed as Contingent Liability.

12. The demand for additional compensation for Land 285.00 285.00
@ 100% of circle rate amounting to INR 285.00 Lakhs by
U.P. Cooperative Bank Limited, Lucknow for the Land
transferred to LMRC for Hazratganj Ramp.

13. Regarding the court case pending before Consumer forum. 5.00 5.00

14. Regarding the pending Court Case - Prabhu Sahani v. 0.89 Nil
Qumar Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. & LMRC Ltd.

15. The Contingent liability regarding the land use Hazratganj 29.53 Nil
at DRM Office, Railway. The amount demanded by the
Northern Railway amounts to INR 161.19 Lakhs. The
amount of INR 131.65 Lakhs has been admitted as
confirmed liability. The difference between the amount
demanded and amount admitted has been recognised as
contingent liability.

16. Regarding the supervision charges demanded by North 26.00 Nil
Eastern Railway. The Supervision Charges was demanded

at 6.25% by North Eastern Railway and paid at 3.125%.
The difference is due to the difference in land rates. The
difference between the amount demanded and amount
paid is disclosed as Contingent Liability.

17. Income Tax Appeals (PY 2013-14 to 2016-17) 174.76 Nil

# The issue regarding the rent payable to U.P. Co-operative Union Limited for temporary usage of
Sahkarita Bhawan Land has been referred to the District Magistrate, Lucknow vide letter no. 3729/LMRC
—L-6/2014 dated 21-6-2019 for decision. The same will be accounted for when the same is finalised.

Contingent Assets: There are no contingent assets as on date with the company.

2.  Commitments: Estimated amounts of contracts including foreign currency contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for is 55,000.00 Lakhs (PY 169725.00 Lakhs) as on March
31st,2019.
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3.  Payment to the Statutory Auditors: -

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Audit Fees 2.00 2.00
Tax Audit Fees 0.80 0.80

Reimbursement:

Total 2.80 2.80

4. The Company has accounted for State reimbursable taxes which has been adjusted in the carrying
amount of PPE including CWIP to the tune of INR 17100.00 Lakhs (INR 11053.00 Lakhs) based on
details provided by the Contractors. Further the company has received reimbursable taxes from GoUP to
thetune of INR 17100.00 Lakh till 31.03.2019.

5. Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31st March 2019
(INR in Lakhs)
Sr. No. | Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
1. Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
a) Principal Amount NIL NIL
b) Interest due thereon NIL NIL
2. Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small NIL NIL

and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006, along with
the amount paid to the supplier beyond the appointed day;

3. Amount of interest due and payable for the Period of delay NIL NIL
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act,2006

4. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid NIL NIL

5. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even NIL NIL
in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises,

for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and medium Enterprises
Development Act,2006
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Disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards

6. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-1: Presentation of financial Statements:

Capital Management.

The Primary Objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The
company monitors capital using Debt: Equity ratio, which is Long Term debt divided by total owner’s
capital, The Debt equity ratio are as follow:

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat March 31,2019 | AsatMarch31,2018
(a) Total Debt 4,61,205.00 2,75,405.00
(b) Total Capital 2,04,100.00 1,89,792.00
Debt: Equity 2.259 1.451
Ratio (a/b)

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and share
application money pending allotment. Debt includes long term loans and borrowings.

7.  Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-17 “Leases”

a. The Company has taken on lease/rent premises for employees. These Lease arrangements are
usually renewable on mutually agreed terms, during the year the company has paid lease rent
amounting to INR 183.53 Lakh (P.Y INR 206.87 Lakh) and included under the head of Expenditure
Lease rent for Staff Accommodations

(INR in Lakhs)

Operating Lease Not Later Later than one year Beyond five years
than one Year and up to five years

Current Year (2018-19) 51.86 12.00 66.00

Previous Year (2017-18) 120.49 78.10 69.00

b. The company has leased out its various assets to parties on operating lease basis. Future minimum
lease rent receivable under non-cancellable operating lease are given as under:

(INR in Lakhs)

Operating Lease Not Later Later than one year Beyond five years
than one Year and up to five years

Current Year (2018-19) 961.98 3531.49 3846.64

Previous Year (2017-18) 0.09 259.31 2605.93

c. The project office of the company is in the premises of Lucknow Development Authority (LDA)
situated at 1st Floor, Janpath Market, Hazratganj, Lucknow. The issue regarding the rent of the
aforesaid premises is still under consideration by LDA. Under these circumstances, no rent has
been charged and will be accounted for as and when the issue is finalized by them.

d. Company has taken land on temporary lease / rent for implementation of the Project and during this
Accounting period, INR 100.65 lacs (PY 113.92 Lacs) has been paid towards lease/rentin FY 2018-19.
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8.  Disclosure inrespect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19” Employee Benefits”

General description of various defined employee’s benefits schemes is as under:

a)

b)

Provident Fund:

The company’s Provident Fund is managed by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The
company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at pre-determined rate. The liability is
recognized on accrual basis.

Gratuity:

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered continues
service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity @ 15 days salary (15/26* last drawn basic pay
plus dearness pay plus dearness allowance) for each completed year of service on superannuation,
resignation, termination and disablement or on death. A policy has been formed for this purpose.

This scheme is being managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for which the
company has taken a Master Policy.

The scheme is funded by the company. The disclosure of information as required under Ind AS-19
have been made in accordance with the actuarial valuation and liability is recognized based on
Actuarial valuation.

However, the company is making contribution to the fund as per the demand made by life
Insurance Corporation of India.

Regarding the LMRC employees excluding those on deputation, the Company has procured
gratuity plan through LIC wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen
days’ salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of
service or retirement whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service.
The fund is managed by LIC. The total liability recognized based on contribution payable to the
Insurer amounting to INR 133.73 Lakhs PY INR 188.93 Lakhs during FY 2018-19, details given as
below:

Particulars Amount (Lakh) Amount ( Lakhs)
FY 18-19 FY 17-18
Current Service Cost 126.76 185.16
LIC Premium 6.36 3.77
Total 133.12 188.93

c) Pension:

Employee’s National Pension Scheme is managed by Stockholding Corporation of India. This
scheme is optional, and company’s obligation is limited to pay 2.5 % of Basic pay of the enrolled
employee.

The contribution to the scheme for the period is grouped under Employee Cost on accrual basis.
In respect of deputationist employees, pension contribution is calculated as per lending
organization/Govt. of the India Rules and is accounted for on accrual basis.

d) Leave:

The company provides for earned leave benefits (included compensated absence) and half-pay
leave to the employees of the company, which accrue annually at 30 days & 20 days
respectively. Only the leave in the encashable leave account is encashable once in a calendar
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year while is service and a maximum of 300 days (including non-encashable portion and half
pay leaves without commutation) on superannuation.

The liability on this account is recognized based on actuarial valuation. In respect of
deputationist employees, leave salary contribution is payable to their parent departments @
11% of pay drawn (Basic pay including Dearness Pay & Special Pay) and is accounted for on
accrual basis.

In relation to LMRC employees excluding those on deputation, the actuarial valuation of leave
encashment was carried out by an Actuary and appropriate provisions have been made in books
of accounts and financial statements accordingly as following :-

The results of the calculations of Gratuity & Leave Encashment are as under:

Net Defined Benefit obligation

Particulars Gratuity Leave (Non-
Funded) (Funded)

(in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Present value of the defined benefit obligation C.Y. 246.45 627.69
P.Y. 265.98 624.26

Fair value of the plan assets C.y. 437.07 -
P.Y. 286.01 -

Surplus or (deficit) in the plan C.Y. 190.61 -627.69
P.Y. 20.03 -624.26

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities C.y. -152.72 -343.50
P.Y. 76.63 139.91

Total Net Defined Benefit obligation C.Y. -42.94 3.42
P.Y. 210.19 442.56

Movement in Plan Assets

Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Non-Funded)

(in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Fair value of assets at beginning of year C.Y. 286.01 -
P.Y. 94.93 -

Adjustment to opening fair value of plan assets C.Y. 0 -
P.Y. -1.63 -

Interest income (+) C.Y. 21.45 -
P.Y. 6.17 -

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts of interest| C.Y. 1.96 -
(+/-) P.Y. 1.23 -
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Change in asset ceiling, excluding amounts C.y. - -
included in interest expense (+/-)
P.Y. - -
FX rate gains (+) and losses (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Contributions by the employer (+) C.Y. 127.64 -
P.Y. 185.32 -
Contributions by plan participants (+) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Benefits paid (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Business combinations (+) and disposals (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - ,
Settlements (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -
Fair value of assets at end of year C.Y. 437.07 -
P.Y. 286.01 -
Movement in Defined Benefit Obligations
Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Non-Funded)
(in Lakh) (in Lakh)
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year C.y. 265.98 624.26
P.Y. 48.38 181.71
Current service cost (+) C.Y. 111.28 300.11
P.Y. 136.59 290.84
Interest cost (+) C.Y. 19.94 46.81
P.Y. 3.15 11.81
Gain (-) / loss (+) from change in demographic C.Y. -116.36 -241.56
assumptions
P.Y. 60.87 129.83
Gain (-) / loss (+) from change in financial C.Y. -110.04 -263.60
assumptions
P.Y. 108.41 177.31
Experience adjustment (+/-) C.Y. 75.64 161.66
P.Y. -91.41 -167.23
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FX rate gains (-) and losses (+) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Contributions by plan participants (+) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Benefits paid (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Business combinations (+) and disposals (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Settlements (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Defined benefit obligation at end of year C.Y. 246.45 627.69
P.Y. 265.98 624.26

Benefit expense recognised in profit or loss

Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Non-Funded)

(in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Current service cost (+) C.Y. 111.28 300.11
P.Y. 136.59 290.84

Interest cost (+) C.Y. 19.94 46.81
P.Y. 3.15 11.81

Interest income (+) C.Y. 21.45 -
P.Y. 6.17 -

Net interest on net defined benefit liability C.Y. -1.50 46.81
P.Y. -3.03 11.81

Past service cost (+) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Settlement gains (+) or losses (-) C.Y. - -
P.Y. - -

Total expense recognised in profit or loss C.y. 109.78 346.93
P.Y. 133.56 302.65
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Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) |Leave (Non - Funded)
(in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Total Amount recognised in Other C.Y. -152.72 -343.50

Comprehensive Income P.Y. 76.63 139.91

Category of investment in Plan assets

Category of investment

% of fair value of plan assets

Total Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

100%

Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave (Non - Funded)
Method used C.Y. |Projected Unit Credit Method |Projected Unit Credit Method
P.Y. [Projected Unit Credit Method | Projected Unit Credit Method
Discount Rate C.Y. 7.50% p.a. 7.50% p.a.
P.Y. 7.50% p.a. 7.50% p.a.
Salary escalation rate| C.Y. 8% p.a. 8% p.a.
P.Y. 10% p.a. 10% p.a.
Employee Attrition / | C.Y. 3.5% p.a. 3.5% p.a.
withdrawal rate
P.Y. 0% p.a. 0% p.a.
Mortality C.Y. 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult
P.Y. 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult 100% of IALM 2006-08 Ult

Sensitivity Analysis and Expected Benefit Payments:
1. Sensitivity Analysis

Assumption Change in Financial Year Ending Financial Year Ending
Assumption 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018(in Lakh)

(in Lakh) - Gratuity - Leave Encashment

Discount Rate 0.50% (20.91) (49.06)
-0.50% 23.69 55.50

Salary Growth Rate 1.00% 49.93 116.59
-1.00% (39.57) (92.92)

Price Inflation Rate 1.00% - -
-1.00% - -

Medical Inflation Rate 1.00% - -
-1.00% - -

Mortality Rate + 3 years (0.12) (0.29)
-3 years 0.08 0.21
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2. Expected Benefit Payments

Sr. No. Year of Payment Leave Encashment Gratuity
1 31-Mar-20 21.91 0.86
2 31-Mar-21 40.02 8.71
3 31-Mar-22 23.01 7.76
4 31-Mar-23 23.98 8.43
5 31-Mar-24 25.00 10.54
6 31-Mar-2025 to 31-Mar-2029 159.97 64.97
9 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 21) “The Effects of changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates”:

a. The amount of exchange differences (net) credited to the statement of Profit & Loss is INR 0.13278
Lakhs (PY INR0.01287 Lakhs).

b. Adjustment in PPE/ CWIP includes INR 1010.46 Lakh (PY INR 824 Lakh) on account of exchange
differences due to translation of Monetary ltems

10 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”

(@ KeyManagement Persons:

1. Shri Kumar Keshav, Managing Director
Shri Sanjay Mishra, Whole Time Director (Works & Infrastructure)
Shri Mahendra Kumar, Whole Time Director (Rolling Stock & Systems)
Shri Ajai Kant Rastogi, Whole Time Director (Finance)
Shri Sushil Kumar, Whole Time Director (Operations) (w.e.f. 25-10-2018)
6. Smt. PushpaBellani, Company Secretary

ok W

(b) Disclosure of transactions of the company with related parties (Key Management Persons):

Particulars 2018-19 (in Lakh) 2017-18 R in Lakhs)
Salaries & Allowances 232.80 123.16
Contribution to Provident Fund and other 20.12 18.11
Funds, Gratuity & Group Insurance

Other Benefits 17.85 16.32
Total (included in Employees Cost) 270.77 157.58

C. Inaddition to the above remuneration,

1.  The whole time Directors have been allowed to use the Company owned car (including for
private journeys) subject to recovery as per the Company’s rules.

2. Noothertransaction with any other related parties was carried out duringthe FY 2018-19
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11 DISCLOSUREIN RESPECT OF (Ind. AS)-33: EARNING PER SHARE:

A. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period should be adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Particulars 2018-19 (in Lakhs) 2017-18 (in Lakhs)
Profit after taxation, prior period adjustments -7211.16 -2538.28
for the earlier years as per Statement of Profit

& Loss (INR in Lakhs)

Weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding:

Basic 1923.21 997.45
Diluted 2021.79 1586.62
Basic Earnings Per Share (INR) (Face value -3.75 -1.70
of INR 100/- per share

Diluted Earnings Per Share (INR) (Face -3.57 -1.60
value of INR 100/- per share)

12  Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets”:
SSets (INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Opening balance | Additions/Transfers | Utilization during Closing
as at 01.04.18 During the Year the Year balance as
at 31.03.2019
Retirement 696.97 85.71 74.19 708.49
Benefits
Expenses 1259.20 1378.63 1139.42 1498.41
Total 1956.17 1464.34 1213.61 2206.90
Particulars Opening balance | Additions/Transfers | Utilization during Closing
as at 01.04.17 During the Year the Year balance as
at 31.03.20178
Retirement 231.31 514.39 48.72 696.97
Benefits
Expenses 4245.60 1147.80 4134.19 1259.20
Total 4476.90 662.18 4182.92 1956.17
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13 Disclosures in respect of IND 107- “Financial Instruments: Disclosure” Financial Instruments
1. Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying values of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

Particulars As on 31st March, 2019 As on 31st March, 2018
Amortized FVT PL FV OCl Amortized cost FVT PL

cost (in Lakh) | (in Lakh) | (in Lakh) (in Lakh) (in Lakh)

Loans - - - - -

Other Financial
Assets (Refer Note-5) 1748.43 - - 650.38 -

Trade Receivables - - - R -

Cash & Cash Equivalents| 126792.43 - - 119127.86 -
(Refer Note-8)

TOTAL - - - - -
Borrowing 461205.00 - - 275405.00 -
(Refer Note -14)

Other Financial 28789.60 | 28788.20* - 25905.39 | 25901.92*

Liabilities (Refer
Note - 15 & 19)

Trade Payable 823.85 - - 361.57 -
(Refer Note - 18)

TOTAL - - - - -

* The other financial comprises of security deposits from contractors and customers.
2. Fair Value Hierarchy:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are
categorized into three levels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the
observability of significant inputs to the measurement as follows:

Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of relevant observable market input and
minimise use of unobservable inputs.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on the observables market inputs, the
instrument is categorised in level 3 of fair value hierarchy.
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3. Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at amortized cost for which Fair Value are disclosed:

(INR in Lakh)

Particulars Level As on 31st March, 2019 As on 31st March, 2018
Amortized Fair | Amortized cost Fair
Cost Value Value

Financial Assets:

Loans Level 2 - - - -
Other Financial Level 2 1748.43 1748.43 650.38 650.38
Assets (Refer Note-5 & 9)

TOTAL - - - -

Financial Liabilities:

Other Financial Level 2 28789.60 | 28788.20 25905.39 25901.92
Liabilities (Refer
Note - 15 & 19)

4. Valuation techniques and process used to determine fair values

1. The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities with the maturities less than 12 months are
representative of their fair value.

2. Fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost is determined by
discounting of cash flows using a discount rate which is defined as per Accounting Policy No.
29.22

13.2 Financial Risk Management
A. Financial risk factors
The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The company’s
financial asset and liabilities by category are summarized above. The main types of risks are
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s Risk Management focus on actively
securing the Company’s short to medium term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to

volatile financial markets. The most significant financial risks to which the company is exposed
are described below:

B. Market Risk

The Company has foreign exchange risk as Market Risk. The Company does not have any
interest rate risk since the loans to the company are at either NIL rate of interest or at fixed rate of
interest as per disbursement notice of each tranche of loan received from EIB. Also, company
does not have price risk since company is not having derivative financial asset.

The exchange fluctuation risk is due to import of Property Plant and Equipment from outside
India. The company does not have any hedging instrument to cover the foreign exchange risk.

C. CreditRisk

Credit Risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a
financial loss. The company exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example
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by granting advances to the employees, receivables from customers, security deposits etc. The
maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from carrying amount of
following types of financial assets.

- Cash and Cash equivalents
- Tradereceivables
- Otherfinancial assets measured at amortized cost.

The company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counter parties, identifies
either individually at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and
the other counterparties are obtained and used.

Credit risk Management
Cash and cash equivalent

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalent is managed by placing funds in schedule commercial
banks which are subject to the regulatory oversight of the Reserve Bank of India, and these banking
relationships are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Other financial assets

Otherfinancial assets are measured at amortized cost and there is no impairment.
Expected credit losses

Company provides expected credit losses based on the following:

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are impaired when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the recovery
analysis performed by the company for individual trade receivables. The company considers that
all the above financial assets that are not impaired and past due for each reporting dates under
review are of good credit quality.

Other financial assets measured at amortized loss

Credit risk related to employee loans are considered negligible since loan is secured against the
property for which loan is granted to the employees. Credit risk related to these other financial assets
is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time
internal control system in place ensure that the amounts are within the defined limits. There are no
impairment provisions as at each reporting date against these financial assets. We consider all the
above financial asset as at the reporting dates to be of good credit quality.

D. Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored based on monthly and yearly projections. The Company’s
principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, revenue generated from operations,
Longterm loan from EIB, Interest free subordinate debt, share capital and grant.

We manage our liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash inflows and by monitoring
cash and cash equivalents, Net cash requirements are compared to available cash in order to
determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirement consists of mainly of sundry creditors, expense payable,
employee dues, retention and deposits arising during the normal course of business as of each
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reporting date. We maintain a sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet our short-
term liquidity requirements.

We assess long term liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manage them through
internal accruals. Our non-current liabilities include EIB loan, Interest free subordinate debt,
retention & deposits and liabilities for Employee benefit.

14. Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108)

The Company’s operations comprise only one business segment — Running & Maintenance of
Metro Rail Facility in the context of reporting business/geographical segment as required under Ind
AS 108 - Operating Segments.

Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on
an analysis of various performance indicators by business segment. Accordingly, information has
been presented along these business segments which have been defined based on the Quantitative
thresholds in paragraph 13 of Ind-AS 108-Operating Segments:

(INR in lakhs)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Fare Box Revenue 1079.96 435.45
Non-Fare Box Revenue 424.05 119.95

Geographical Segment

The Company operates within India and does not have operations in economic environments with
different risks and returns. Hence, it is considered operating in single geographical segment.

Information about major customers.

Revenue from one customer -Jagran Prakashan Limited contributed INR 221.47 lakhs 10% or more to
the company’s revenue for year ended on 31.03.2019

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ rearranged/ reclassified, wherever necessary, to make
them comparable to the current year’s presentation.

As per our report of even date annexed

For D.S. Shukla & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 000773C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Shreeharsh Shukla) (Kumar Keshav) (Ajai Kant Rastogi)
Partner Managing Director Director Finance
Membership No: 408990 DIN: 02908695 DIN: 07228424
UDIN: 19408990AAAAAA8402

Sd/-
Place: Lucknow (Pushpa Bellani)
Date: 27.07.2019 Company Secretary
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Indian Audit & Accounts Department
Office of the Principal Accountant General
(Economic & Revenue Sector Audit), U.P.,
"Audit Bhawan" TC-35-V-1,Vibhuti Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Lucknow - 226010

(amfi UG XTSI <IETaRIE), S
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AT TR, oET19—226010

e - 991 /s @1/ LMRC /2018—19 / 188 fadi®: 28 RiawR, 2019
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G-I — 226 010
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Tq ST &I S 38! & | HUAT a1 ATHII 96% & FHeT S SIdb—{CwfOrll & URd {63 S &1 arefaes
INREAR RIS

The Report has been prepared on the basis of information furnished and made
available by the auditee. The Office of the Principal Accountant General (Economic and
Revenue Sector Audit), Uttar Pradesh, disclaims any responsibility for any misinformation
and/or non-information on the part of auditee.

HUAT IF B U1 ¥ |
JEua— JATIR |
ECEpI
FHT
9. SUMRTAETHR

QXHTY/Tel. : 0522-2970549, 2970559, haRd/Fax : 0522-2722106
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE ACCOUNTS OF LUCKNOW METRO RAIL CORPORATION
LIMITED FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH, 2019.

The preparation of financial statements of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited. Lucknow for the
year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory
Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) or 139(7) of
the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under Section 143 of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
27 July 2019.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a Supplementary Audit
of financial statements of Lucknow Metro Rail Corporation Limited, Lucknow for the year ended
31 March 2019 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily
to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of
the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under
Section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my attention and, which in my view, are necessary
for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report:

A. Comments on Financial Position :

Balance Sheet

Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities: (Note No. 20:389.59 crore)

(1) Northern Railway (NR) vide its letter dated 28 February 2018 demanded crossing charges of
% 34.30 crore from the Company for permission to cross Railway land at four locations. Out
of that, the Company had deposited ¥ 33.06 crore to NR during 2015-16. The remaining
pending balance of ¥ 1.24 crore has been shown as Contingent Liability. Since, the
Company is bound to pay this amount to NR and the same has also been accorded by the
Management in its records, showing the same as contingent liability in books of accounts is

not appropriate. This has resulted in understatement of current Liabilies as well as Capital
Work in Progress by X 1.24 crore each.
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Despite being commented on the accounts for the Year 2017-18, no corrective action has been
taken by the Company

Equity and Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities (Note No. 19:%275.80 crore)

(2)()) Northern Railways demanded crossing charges for railway land between Badshahnagar
and Daliganj Railway station amounting to T 9.55 crore from the Company as per
Railway Board's policy. However, the Company paid ¥ 7.80 crore during the year and
accounted for the remaining¥ 1.75 crore as Contingent Liability.

As the Company is bound to pay these charges to Northern Railways, the Company should
have booked the entire amount of ¥ 9.55 crore instead of ¥ 7.80 crore. This has resulted
in understatement of Intangible Assets (Rights for using land) and Current Liabilities by
% 1.75 crore each.

Despite being commented on the accounts for the Year 2017-18. only partial corrective
action has been taken by the Company.

(ii) Northern Railways demanded the permission charges of of ¥ 1.61 crore for use of land for
Charbagh-Hazratganj underground stretch by the Company in Divisional Railway
Manager Office Campus. Hazratganj as per the policy guidelines issued by Railway
Board. The Company has unilaterally accepted a liability of of ¥ 1.32 crore and
capitalized the Right for using land as Intangible assets during the year. The remaining
0f%0.29 crore has been depicted as contingent liability.

As the company is bound to pay the charges to Norther Railways, the company should
have booked the entire amount of ¥ 1.61 crore instead of % 1.32 crore. This has resulted
in understatement of Intangible Assets (Rights for using land) and current liabilities by
% 0.29 crore.

3) Other Current Assets: (Note No. 11): ¥ 16.56 crore

The above includes ¥ 8.86 crore incurred by the Company on behalf of Agra Metro.
Allahabad Metro, Gorakhpur Metro, Kanpur Metro, Meerut Metro, Varanasi Metro
which would be recovered by LMRC from these entities on their incorporation. Since,
this amount is recoverable in cash or in form of another financial asset from another
entity. hence, the same should have been shown under Other Financial Assets (Note-9)
instead of Other Current Assets (Note-11) as required by Ind 32. This has resulted in
overstatement of Other Current Assets and understatement of Other Financial Assets by
3 8.86 crore.

Despite being pointed out in the report of Comptroller and Auditor General of India for
the Year 2017-18. no corrective action has been taken by the Company.
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B Comments on Disclosure
Notes to Financial Statements (Note No. 30)
Contingent Liabilities

4)

The Uttar Pradesh Awas Evam Vikas Parishad (UPAEVP) has allotted land sector 9 and
Sector 19 for casting yard of five hectares and 38, 268 sq. mtrs. respectively to the
Company for four years. The land was allotted to the Company on monthly rental of %
4.04 lakh and % 6.18 lakh on 15.01.2016 and on 01.07.2016 respectively. The
UPAEVP continuously demanded for execution of agreement and clearing of dues but
the Company neither executed agreement nor paid any amount so far. The Company
has taken the matter of fixation of rent through Additional District Magistrate who is the
final authority for the same.

As the Company has a present obligation for payment of rent to UPAEVP, the
same should have been depicted as Contingent Liability in terms of paragraph
10 of Ind AS 37.

Notes to Financial Statements

Other Equity (Note No. 13): 392 crore)

)

The above includes % 16.00 crore received (February 2018) by the Company from
Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP) towards Share Capital Contribution for allotment
of Equity Shares of the Company. The authorized Capital is divided into 20 crore shares
of ¥ 100 each which have already been allotted by the Company in entirety. Thus, the
Company would not be able to issue the shares until the Authorized Capital of the
Company is revised. The fact should have been disclosed by the Company in Notes to
Accounts.

For and on the behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place : Lucknow (Jayant Sinha)
Date : September 2019 Principal Accountant General
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Management Replies in reference to CAG report under
Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act 2013 vide letter No.
ES-1/Company Accounts/LMRC/2018-19/188 Dated : 28-9-2019

Sr.No.

Audit Observation

LMRC Reply

(A) Comments on Financial Position

Balance Sheet

Equity & Liabilities

Current Liability

Other Current Liabilities : (Note no. 20: Rs. 89.59

Cr)

Northern Railway (NR) vide its letter dated 28
February 2018 demanded crossing charges of Rs.
34.30 Cr from the Company for permission to cross
Railway land at four locations. Out of that, the
Company had deposited Rs. 33.06 Cr to NR during
2015-16. The remaining pending balance Rs. 1.24
Cr has been shown Contingent Liability. Since, the
Company is bound to pay this amount to NR and
the same has also been accorded by Management
in records, showing the same as contingent liability
in books of accounts is not appropriate. This has
resulted in understatement of current liability as
well as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) by Rs. 1.24
Creach.

Despite being pointed out in the report of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the
Year 2017-18 no corrective action has been taken
by the company.

Reference may kindly be drawn on the definition of
Contingent Liabilities as mentioned in Ind. AS 37.
A contingent liability is:

(@) apossible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but
is not recognized because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; or

(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

LMRC is of the view that these obligations are more
covered under the definition of the contingent liabilities
as the substance reflects Contingent nature, the facts are
not sure at this stage. The same are reflected as well.
Northern Railway after considering the LMRC's request
to charge LMRC for permission to cross Railway Land at
different locations, for the land to be utilised by LMRC
for operational purposes (not for Commercial use) at the
rates as published in the D. M’s list of land rates, reduced
the charges for crossing Railway Land to INR 34.30 Cr.
including GST charges. LMRC had paid INR 33.06 Cr. to
NR for permission to cross Railway land during 2015-16
when service tax @ 15% was applicable. In the
Meantime, GST came into force w.e.f. 01-07-2017 so
the difference of amount of INR 1.24 Cr. pertains to GST
which as per LMRC was not payable to railways since
payment was made in 2015-16 itself. Management in
LMRC is of the view that the matter be reviewed. The
matter is still under consideration. The charges demanded
by NR have so far not been accepted by LMRC. Hence,
the amount of INR 1.24 Cr. demanded by Northern
Railway, was shown as contingent liability and not as
current liability as on 31.03.2018 pending final
decision. As and when the issue is finalized the same shall
be taken to confirmed liability.

The same is disclosed as Contingent Liability in current
Financial Year 2018-19. (Refer page no. 12 Note to
Accounts)
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Equity and Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities (Note no. 19 Rs. 275.80 Cr)

(i) Northern Railways demanded crossing charges for railway
land between Badshahnagar and Daliganj Railway station
amounting to Rs. 9.55 Cr from the Company as per Railway
Board’s policy. However, the Company paid Rs. 7.80 Cr
during the year and accounted for the remainingRs. 1.75 Cras
Contingent Liability.

As the Company is bound to pay these charges to Northern
Railways, the Company should have booked the entire
amountof Rs. 9.55 Crinstead of Rs. 7.80 Cr. This has resulted
in understatement of Intangible Assets (Rights for using land)
and Current liabilities by Rs. 1.75 Cr.

Despite being commented upon in the report of Comptroller
and Auditor General of India for the Year 2017-18 no
corrective action has been taken by the company.

(ii) Northern Railways demanded the permission charges of
Rs. 1.61 Cr for use of land for Charbagh-Hazratganj
underground stretch by the Company in DRM Office
Campus, Hazratganj as per the policy guidelines issued
by Railway Board. The Company has unilaterally
accepted a liability ofRs. 1.32 Cr and capitalized the
Right for using land as Intangible assets during the year.
The remaining Rs.0.29 Cr has been depicted as
contingent liability.

As the Company is bound to pay these charges to
Northern Railways, the Company should have
booked the entire amount ofRs. 1.61 Cr instead of Rs.
1.32 Cr. This has resulted in understatement of
Intangible Assets (Rights for using land) and Current
liabilities by Rs 0.29 Cr.

Northern Railway is considering enhancement
of 7% per annum on circle rate issued by
DM/Lucknow in 12/2015 in view of Railway
Boards Policy Letter No.2005/LML/18/8 dated
10.02.2005 on licensing of railway land para
5.2(Annexure-A).

Railway Board above circular para 5.3 states that
licence fee should be fixed after obtaining the
current value of land. As per Sub Registrar letter
no. 198/Sub Registrar(ii)/2019 dated
21.06.2019(Annexure B), the rate of land is still
same as in 12/2015. Further it does not specify
forany enhancement

Therefore, while calculating the land cost,
LMRC is not accounting the enhancement of
increase in rate @7 % perannum.

But since Railway is not agreeing to the
statement of LMRC, the amount has been shown
as contingent Liability.

It is brought to the notice of Audit that the
company has accounted for INR 7.80 Cr. as
Intangible Assets (Permissions). However, the
claim by N.R is not in line with railway board
letter date No0.2005/LML/18/8 dated
10.02.2005 also elaborated in point above. The
illegitimate demand of INR 1.75 Cr. by N.R
rebutted by company and subject to settlement
hence rightfully disclosed as Contingent
liabilities. Therefore, the audit may kindly
appreciate that correct position is taken by
company as it was earlier commented upon by
CAG also.

Other Current Assets: Note No. 11): Rs.16.56 Cr

The above includes Rs. 8.86 Cr incurred by the Company on
behalf of Agra Metro, Allahabad Metro, Gorakhpur Metro,
Kanpur Metro, Meerut Metro, Varanasi Metro which would be
recovered by LMRC from these entities on their incorporation.
Since, thisamounts are recoverable in cash or inform of another
financial asset from another entity, hence, the same should
have been shown under Other Financial Assets (Note-9) instead
of Other Current Assets (Note-11) as required by Ind AS 32.

This has resulted in overstatement of Other Current Assets
and understatement of Other Financial Assets by Rs. 8.86 Cr.
Despite being pointed out in the report of Comptroller and
Auditor General of India for the year 2017 — 18, no corrective
action has been taken by the company.

The amount of INR 8.86 Cr. incurred by
company on behalf of other metros is not
considered as financial asset as this is not
recoverable as per current changes in structure
of the agreement. As LMRC will now be
converted to UP Metro this amount will form
part of asset and is not recoverable. Since this
amount is not recoverable in cash or another
financial asset thus have been shown under
Other Current Assets instead of Other Financial
Assets.
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(B) Comments on Disclosure
Note to Financial Statement (Note no. 30)
Contingent Liability

The Uttar Pradesh Awas Evam Vikas Evam Parishad
(UPAEVP) in compliance of the decision taken by
GoUP/Parishad has allotted land in sector 9 and Sector 19 for
casting yard of five hectare and 38.268 sq.mtr. respectively to
the corporation for four years. The land was allotted to the
corporation on monthly rental of Rs. 4.04 Lacsand Rs. 6.18
lacs on 15.01.2016 and 01.07.2016 respectively. The
UPAEVP continuously demanded for execution of agreement
and clearing of dues but the corporation neither executed
agreement nor paid any amount so far. The company has
taken the matter of fixation of rent through Additional District
Magistrate who is the final authority for the same.

As the company has a present obligation for payment of rent
to UPAEVP, the same should have been depicted as
contingent liability in terms of paragraph 10 of Ind AS 37

That the matter regarding non provision of
rental payable to Uttar Pradesh Awas Evam
Vikas Evam Parishad to the tune of INR 2.52 Cr.
as observed by the Audit.

The audit may kindly appreciate that liability as
defined by IND AS 37 on Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A liability is a present obligation of the entity
arising from past events, the settlement of which
is expected to result in an outflow from the entity
of resources embodying economic benefits.

It is noteworthy that the rents demand raised by
Uttar Pradesh AwasEvamVikasEvamParishad is
without any formal rent agreement and was
completely unilateral.

On the contrary LMRC has escalated the fixation
of rent through Additional District Magistrate
(vide letter no. 377 /LMRC - L-6/2014 dated 07-
03-2018 who being endorsedas the final
authority for the same upon which rent payable
by the company only crystallizes. Furthermore,
the same is pending for any fixation of rent
payable for land in sector 9 and Sector 19 from
the proper authority.

The company shall account for the same as and
when the rent is being fixed by ADM.

Notes to Financial Statements
Other Equity (Note No 13): Rs. 92 Cr.

The above includes Rs. 16.00Cr received (February 2018) by
the Company from Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP)
towards share capital contribution for allotment of Equity
shares of the Company. The authorized Capital of the
Company is divided into 20 Cr shares of Rs.100 each which
have already been allotted by the Company in entirety. Thus,
the Company would not be able to issue the shares until the
Authorised Capital of the Company is revised. The fact should
have been disclosed by the company in notes to Accounts.

The Audit may kindly appreciate that the
increasing the Authorised Share Capital shall
entail compliance of section 61 and section 64
and other applicable rules which requires
alteration/ amendment to MOA which is a
business of EGM/AGM which the company has
put forward as a business to be transacted in the
upcoming AGM/EGM. Therefore, without
obtaining consent of the members reflecting the
same in the Financial Statements would defeat
the provision of Companies Act, 2013. Since the
BOD has agreed to the same subject to the
approval of the same in general meeting of the
company, the facts is disclosed in the Directors
Report.

Further Director’s report forms an integral part
of the Annual Account of the Company and it
has been mandated by the section 134(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013 that financial statement
shall be issued, circulated or published along
with the Board’s report.
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2 HAR BerE, FEY e, daETs
Al Nel BURYHE (LMRC) - U
AR, aTs & 60 BEI DI i
TR THIOTOS Sh) TR fhaT, ﬂ

| e 9MER Farefadl AR
P |

02 S, 2018

TAuHAIRYl gRT fawd yafaRor |z, 2018 4 2 9 9
8 S A& AWIg IAMAAT B YBIATA
RIS HET N HIARIE (LMRC) 7 SRIUIE TR | ARANT & 1 310+ T 3116

PRIRT HEI WM R TIRUIE TR gl ¥l & U “w@ead] 3w I
o |

21 9, 2018
oGS Al A ST?Rfl%ﬁ'H i feaw, 2018 HTAT

<, 2018 AT |

28 TS, 2018

AEES gl gRT gA-ol AR Afaray Agl ¥ &
4= ¢& 9B &1 oM g1 fHar =

TEAS WG XA PRI (LMRC) 7 Aol iR Afearad Agl werdl &
AT HET G B for 26 fIs™ o7 B 1 o forar 2 |
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30 S[elg, 2018

Agl WIHEl R YTed A48l &I gfaaree 99M 2q
TAUHARAT 3R Igqe-al gRT wHsiiar =g
(MoU) U} e

RIS HET Xl DA (LMRC) 3R wRa war fm faafies (BSNL) 5 A
Pre YoRi B GAEN USH A & Iqa¥d A UH GHSIT 99 (MoU) W
FRIER fHY |

13 3, 2018

yee fe9T®, TauHRHl gRT ¢iauie R Al feur

H el arsdd &1 SgUred

3N HAR BTG, TdeT (3278, TETS, JGT el DRUNIH (LMRC) 7 HeR it vadiea
BR ST, giaard TR AgT feut # W) ArgsRY o Sure fhar |

15 34, 2018

g% Hel | 724d1 wadadr fead g+,
ysel e 9 dHaRAl &1 g e & et w®
IF 984 & forv aRa fear

3 AR B, Tae (2P, TATHARHT 7 I & 724 W=l (a4 W IS eae
HETT 3R BT & STABIRAT 3R HHATRAT & H1eT 39 I DI AT |

05 frawx, 2018

A J&EAl gRT @S, Agl fRa9’, 2018 & ITE W U@
gl T IETSH; dQaS Al YD AR HIdZd VU $I
JFITARYT; UTET 3R HaT A Ipedl B (¢ d@9, AT S g2 T

| R nf e, R G, STR w3 Ae) yArer &1 U ¥ g 8 & Suaed
H e TR "l 3T # ‘oges; AgT f3aw, 2018 @ QIavR WR U UGEHI &1 IgHTe

_‘. e
A Zﬂ' fhar| SR 39 TR W AWHS Al HA¥he AR oI Fgl HiEsd Va' BT
JTaReT o |

08 RyawR, 2018
mﬁgﬁaﬁmmmﬂma%mmﬁm (m)—

\HC'(,‘(ICCb YXThIX, 2018
TS Wl Xl @I (LMRC) T [
ST IR droiae =l 3§ Sepe pavie dAvar il
% forg ufaftsq wRd™@ Hepie wE (ICI)
(TETS) — JAeRTCP JRIDIR, 2018 UK T |




29 fudawxy, 2018

dEES Al B U AR Ufaefied awddarn; e &
Jurdld dIR fHar 60 Hex &1 fagy e @4

TGS AEI 7 I TS Neld HaTed ¢ WR RIS & Ui 60 Hiey Wed w&id
W & T BT AHAdgdd T HRS T AR VIeTis Suafer siid @ |

22 3JdcdR, 2018

st RIdY | 2047 3R i Ag 9 A< AT AT, g9
o 3 vaa adie 9 39 arr fear

RIS HET BT 20d7 SR IffH 24 e F9d tove® & AT RS Rera ¢+ fafqmmor
WE F d@Ts @ fau @ &= R w21 s HER PuE, wed
139 / TAUHRIRT o1 311 R0 UIUTC aThTol, ¥Is3il, 3felkeid (i) 3R 31
SrfereTRaT o1 SURfY 3 e i | ¢+ BT Xar fha |

05 -Id+X, 2018

e & qread | 8 /Ul SR a1 gfaen
Ua & @ folv TauHRdY 3R @9 TR e

SRT W&

TGS TSl Vel BIARH (LMRC) 3R o+, TR 9 (LNN) 5 #gT o= #
AETS WG B TS IS & Aegq A 8 /FURT BRI & YA Bl GfaeTerid
g & ToTT [T S99 (MoU) IR BXITeR 6Rab 81T e |

16 -Id%X, 2018

s YHafidl grr st FaR dea @ Sifae
(Sfdex AT oed) @ 99e Surfy, S9a1 U 3R Sudfer

3 FAR BT, Yae a®, TRITSH ST Xl DRUANTA (LMRC) BT I URIAR BRI
7 2o A fafdre Aer Yot aRArSR iR N uRareHel & ke fwreT & SR
TeRfT fy 7T SR Ad@ TN & forg sEvra IHaRidl, o gr1 ua ufaftea

JRIBR—SIFeR 3T ocH (AE) | ARG foar 3T | SEe IHaRidt & 10d Serfa
FARIE & AR TR I8 AHATT [T 1307 |

19 fewR, 2018

TGS Al X HaiReE fafies grr fsfar aaar
TS BT AT

TGS ST X PIURIE -1 XS 3’ (UF gAoiel) & ey fAaex Ry s 4
TSI P URagT H AT YREM WR TR o & [Ty T <=1 Hwirs’ BT AT
T | $9 @ER W, Ffar & Ara—fuar 9 giuie R AgT fSur § Ay Wi gy
ANegat T Al PR BY Silaw & Tl &3 ¥ AfRASI DI YR&T, AR ATDRI
IR IS FLATRTPROT & IR H SIRRahel] UGT PR+ BT SITEdT [T |
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21 fewwy, 2018

TATHRIRI gIRT feaninl 3q wwrdsh advfie uRag waven ) SRR &1 o,
Al WIEl R Fgaa sHaal iR gRar siiisl & ddaaeiid 999 &1 AR

TGS HEl N BRUNIE ERT SIda
BIESYH & 1 qEAel grdifae aRas’
TR Uh BIYRITE BT AT febar 727 | ey
Gl @ Thedisd X% &l faenT Jif3ri B |
SeRdl @ ufd Gaeaeia a9 @ fv Jex e
AT TR BR ST (CoET) & IR § |
o fawel = emarfora far |

09 SI-a¥l, 2019
AT ﬁ;ﬁ SRT IR ITR—<RYT BIRSIR (BW—17) & REATAT AR taldpd udeavr S oaid

._pﬁ TGS LT X DA (LMRC) 7 Feigferar

; Wy 75 AT T H AGl o7 Ferax REEfeiT 3R
TG TIET B Aol YOI BT | Thiha S
fll oeTor SR TiereT Ry, REIR, $@ iR ¢
& fog 21 fafe sifRfen Rrewd, Rmaferr, B
TP SR SHIT BT UDIpa TRIET0T ATT—3TelT
SfaRfeT aRged & ded Tferdcs arsae W
AR GRAT B 3R STIT—3AAT el A febam 1 |

10 S-a¥l, 2019

UATHIAIRT &l ®RIRd A¢l ©IMEl 3R Al fsul @ ferw
ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 31X OHSAS 18001: 2007
o=l | g fear &

RIS, HET Nl DA Bl U MAAGAT W (SIS TR W ARANT Odb) 3R Jl
Ul & Hearer SiR AT 2 SRS I ADH AR TS (AMETHAT) 9001:2015,
JATSTFAT 14001:2015 3R TAARIS @RT 3R FRe JeATH @l (OHSAS)
18001:2007 JATOTYAT I FHAT(Id fohar 13T |

18 Ha¥l, 2019

AETSH HEl & SIR—<RIY HIRSIX (B9—17) & doid A= & I+ 13 AT
WAl 3 AT grar wWigpfa
TEAS HET XA BDIANTA (LMRC) T STR—TIRIT HINSR (9T 1-T) & doid AR S F41 13 Hgl el & oy 1 GRef sy
TS (NOC) ITW &Ra T 3R IUATT BTN R ol & | AU TIRUIE | Geigferd & anforisasd Fare g el 3 Ugdl aa@is
HAET DI IR I AT HaT | 317 FRef Hol e 78 & |

23 B4, 2019

Hyvf IR—<far ieR @ dF gl Fae & 95 AgHaRyE gRT s AT & JHvH

S TP OIF, BT AT VoId GRET (CMRS) 7 oS JET el HIIReE (LMRC) BT HRATH vavuie & geiigferm @ ¥ HiReR =
TR B WET ATl BT o/ AT Fare Y% B @ forg Wi uaT a1 |

—




05 |, 2019

UAUHIRHT §RT I GR&AT FTE, 2019 BT ATOI;
UAUHIIRHT STferapTiRAT 3R HHATRAT 4 GR&AT Bl
‘Ugefl UTAffi®mar @ div R A DY gl ol

oI, HET el IR (LMRC) ¥ 4 |, 2019 ¥ 10 HTd, 2019 T XIETT YR 4
W, 2019 BT IS BT | 30 HaeT H, T TTuHeIRA SfaRal ik ™
PHATRIT = BRI TR YT TRATSTAT Il TR 7R FATel1 & SR GRef Sur
TR T3l BT I 3R STHT UTedd HRe & foIT YR Braferd (e T7R)
IR AT 13U H U gRe ufo=r # 9T for |

08 T, 2019

TAUHIRYT gRT WYy aRuie 9 Jeiyferar & dyul STR—<femr siksik
(UBGI—N) LN ﬁfﬁ AR B BATA

TGS TSl Nel prae fiifics o eg s & ST & ot
@Ry =RoT Rig gars orss W HEgferT 9@ Yol IeR—afarer
BINESR (B9l 1 T) W AG a1 S B1 | & Wg A, A4
AT, 9RA o1 8 A, 2019 B HMYR A 39 YRASHAT BT
DL IS HA (AT YMR), AN MR e A, s e
TSP, A ST, IR I, A AN A=, A
TIHAT, IR U< WL a1 9gIen Sreh, w3, Al wear,
IRAR BTN, ITR I ARBIR; S JoreT UIeed, B AR =
7, SU. WER; 1 YA ced, ddbal R w3, I
TRBR; &1 G AN, 3T, ATIHTID et iR dleret
T3, IU. TR AR & P FIR, IS, Ae-Toleiol
(AES), 3.1, B TRATTY IURAFT # NGAT BHRIT & Ao
ST 2 T AT fham 3T |
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el & Ruld
dar

GTEH AT el BRI fofiies & g,

MY fASeTh! Bl 31 AT, 2019 BT FHIG fad a9 & RITURIErd oI@rasil, oRaTaNierd! a1 RUld 3R 99 R YRd &
i vd AeTearies o fowfOrl |fed wu & 631 arfie Rl TRgd $¥d gY &Y &I 31wd &ral 2 |

1. fa<ig uRomw sk srfugel=
31 AT, 2019 BT AT fa<T a9 & forw u= a7 faxira Rerfa

(g T #)

faazor fa<r avf 2018—2019 ot adf 2017—2018
B A 10890.14 7487.35
U JTel Y 2818.53 1616.72
T HeIgN 8582.34 4430.84
Terg: foxia a2y 211.46 82.64
TTTY: JUATE WHY 7S 344.82 (216.54)
PR A qd A (1) (7211.16) (2677.07)
SIS / (EemN): B g - 355.33
PR b yTATd g o™ (BT) (7211.16) (2538.28)
| SRferd i 3 siaRor - -
qo o | I fhar T o™ - -
= fara ffer 7 siawor

e J = Rfard S & Big i3y sialRd e &1 RieRy 78 &1 2 |

fa<hra ast 2018—2019 & feru w9 er

FHIET Ty AT 2018—2019 & QRT BUAI DI HATT BT B, TACIY AW HSA 7 BUT & Sl AR
TR PIg ATTeT ENT Bt BT RIBTRe T8 &1 2 |

2. @S Ul el uRAoET &) Reafa

HUHT AGTS H U gerics fUs A Ufectd SiRaUTe RRed & iR IR oRg=e, Hel ol IRATSTHT & Braf=aa=
% foTg IRA ARBR (Gol) 3R IR U< TBR (GoUP) &1 Uk HYad SUHH & | I§ MR WK (Gol) 3R
IR T3 THR (GoUP) & 50:50 & HIad T BT faIy JATSd ar8d (SPV) & 31k Hu=l 1, 1956
@ Sffa Ifea B |

—




AFAR TRTEEAT 3 NG A1 9 8 AT, 2019 BT si
BRIY 8 ¥, AR el I H3ll (WdH U9R),
AT 3R I BRI FAG, IR ARBR; 1 W
ATSH, AT IISTTe, SR Ua9T: o7 AnfY anfeea=er,
AR @A, SR YW R 6 el I
AR O fddal @l SuRerfa H o |y
ITR—aRNT BIRSR TR AIORTS TaTe B FHRA
5T | A SFATAT, A FETHAT 71 JIFRT H Uaidd
s a7 Ut ggaid Ried & w9 | Al X
GRATSTAT BT 1 Rt foar |

TERY =ROT R ga1s srgs W Geiyferar d@ 21 el

(4 1T iR 17 Yferacs) Afed )1 STR—aferT BIRSR (Wof 1v) FeiRa T9a | uge 9 A/ 2019 9 314
ST & foy qR IRE W A1e] 8 AT & | T 4 YT SR 17 Tleldaes Hel el B $fsad WA fafesT
BIIRTA H AfSTH FHTOTIS YT 81 37 & | HET AT 71 g ITR—<ME01 HIRSR H JGT Harsil & Yoo 8 IR
SeRewd wfdfssar € 2 3iR Jora, FHaeEdr IR A Jfinrd el W awes; @ WWpbia @ fafya ww
aTell THerpiadl 3R fSSIeT & folw g9 JaT @l HTH! ARTE & Sff T8 & | Tefiofdd, Bo—17 ¥ ofaa af e
I T | Bt gfy fears 2

TGS HGT ST BT Ugell Al &, Roras ear Rt 91.1 ThHuR & A1er F9iar fa & oIk gg & ghed e
DI IYHATT DI T | 34 Ig @S Agl @ A1 & forg I 91 ol R oy arfl, A< sy,
fSITer 3R AR i @1 Giaem va o= @1 7 | RaR & fSiiea fear s ok Agr anfai d& swar
Y foRaTRa B & forg, TTass Fe ¥ 3o [ yr=ford Hel W1 OR 310+ T e Bre SUANThAISI b
U IE—HTS GRAUT TS BRAT IR (a1 B | SIS BN -1 30 o gRenan o Rai T wafeqar &
el a1 & oY B8 Ugel Y& Bl & |

3. feiT i

31 AT 2019 BT, HUN & U Gl 80 HIF & o
e T erHaT 90 el /®er ® @ik fAeifRa wfa
32—35 fpH. / Her B, o ol 29 v / Sev1d &
{17 30 A< 31X 100 Web< BT feog— gsd IMATR |

TATHIRAT DI ¢+ ATHT U], HH AR WR 3R
TITRYT ATl & Hael H Sl Ferd, f[aeas=ii aiiR
RN & forg GlAersr e € | Taed Wil J 941 Pl
B ISl B aol Dl 7 | AS Holl [eH gl Dl
YOI T Sofl AT el © | o BT Y gonferar &t
R &R gfier dR R AT e ATSHIURR
JMERT 7 Herdt U Aoric Ried (TCMS) §RT {3 ST 2 |

HST A1 ¥ He@yol SU—JoTell &1 FRAR R & fofw siferifed ¢ Urcar (ATP), sifeiifed 27 Sl
(ATO), 29 ghIce Heorie RIed (TIMS) /¢ ®gldl Hvtie RiRed (TCMS), ddhed TR IR 3R

—

IR HIRSR BT IgdTe TARIE
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AEPHIURIR Bgles NoTvRed sfhiT, ST sfhT & SR fIsTell BT Uomell § a9 U9 &Ral &, Sl Sod
Graeratt arett dadr | e / &9 B Bl 1R I SHott gerar 2 | fhaer afeT RSred 7 dae ifdrw
ol Tl & dfed gfgdl &l et ff gedl 8, &R &F 3 &4 frivar, fafrder 991 990 U Bl 8 YT R |
AP Bob, WA Fiel, T TRE H IRTH AT ord drd, AT & ol wleh™ $HI SHA qd
I & oY geiasiFe a1 BIvor SR T T2 HoTmell, 3mard Rerfd # I o/ &k |aR yored],
Ferss Afdhe Telifas (CCTV) R 8iR geifdg s axaTel Ger iR §8 8 &I Iaatferd Ufshar 4 o & |
S 3T, Wt Il & T Il # FTd SHoll A9 GAREd a3 @ fory feors+ Fgia Riven yxafad
o 1 B, a1fh w1ed fsc e1RTe Bt & forv 2T &7 SUART faha ST 9 |

4. TRye=feir iR 9 =T

fRaR sifeiifed 51 dglal Rved (CATS) & Arf
"HRIMBIE 9% ¢ deldd’ (CBTC) W memRa
sy Rfel Rivew &1 swHTa fFar wam 2|
Pres JAfSAT Wi ¢& Afbe, sifcmfes <A
ST ReA (ATO), siferfed we AT iR
e ¢ Wew Aled JAfcHied g7 Gurido
Rieed (ATS) & 7109 H ¢h 9 o WaR Afed &d
Rafel @ 1 sffieifed ¢4 UicaR™ (ATP) a@-s,
THIIREIGH & ¢ dgldd Us Rt Rived @l 3
GIRRIT € |

IS YorTell giram &1 Tdedd Teheileh UR TR
2| T TE-Us Ruifege davT, e amenRd ik
SHT—VS FeTH DA M & | I8 Yo I A A HART Tai¥ B H 7S dxal © | ARICr I # 1 FRen
BT H FeTH € | R wige R I ST &1 AR & forg SRR fafest # ver a1 Nifsar ater wenfud &1
TS T |

TR DI 7EE B foly wieh™ @ 19 # Ud g BIF ol 37 © | I B ) I3 89 B9 SordT &, al
I BLleR Bl ARSI BhIF H b ARSI argery fa@rg ST 3R delaR S99 AT | 910 BR & A1l —
AT S TG Y DT |

fSTel amgft a7 B @1 Reafcr #, TeTuasiRAT F =g7c¥ a1 8 & dehald |fed Udb 3Tl JuIes (3rarferd fagyd
3mfch) zenfid fomam 2 | 98 gied fasren gt dg 8 @ Refa # <&F €¢ a& Rriar yomedl, <efiar @9
e oiR sifeiifed BaR worgee Riven & fafyafia faselt smafc gem o | ifaRed sraxer @ forg
T Jet § zenfid feu U 2 |

5. 3ffcrifed BAR v e

3iferifed BIR Borae Red (AFC) & Ud 31fA-d Braf=aae Atsel b 19T 7 § | TaSIghdT §6
AT AR B AE—Fies W Bl TN U 8, RTFHT STIRT @+, Hel & fedhe 3R o Wrse 3% Ao
(PoS) R THide deg ®rs & wU H b1 S Hevall & | ARITH gaTg ags A Fyferar e ¥l WMl w)
JATST AR TS QI TR YUHHT SUDHRUT AU 3fR A1e] fhy T F |

6. AT IR Ted glaemail 4 gfg
BT BT IELY ATEH] & ATAT JFHT DI ATGRID I & | §9 8G, I & QR 171+ U8l I TS &

—




MY TawT / T gR, 3TiaRe SiR qre ufeT,
AT B JATATST B¢ I UG B & oIy sde
UTed Gawmsil /Iyl ¥ gig o siferHfes,
IR PHoldel= Ied, Th- dfST 7eiH, dfge 3ifh
BU ® A WIET W EE WS B ar5—Hrg
BIECIEIN IR

ATAT B AE T & ol [ A7 & A1
TEATT

HE DTS Jord & foTy RATIA fhR1Y BT Foatra
I & IR H FEIR

AT, g2 3fR faIy wu 3 faegiT AR o7 |Re iR Refl & forg U AAftd 8 T &l 11

3 3R b, Tgell 3R TRC AT BHfdefac] db Hlex Idl Y- B B [l TeIdRT

SWIRIGT & AT, HUAT §RT AT AT TIMT R WIS Hal & wY H dd AaATg U&TH R B oIy Hek &
AT FHSIAT S & g1

Do fSfoTee areferavern o1 9gMd1 o & YRd ARGR & YA Bl T8N ol §U, DU 1 DIl
oI 31R WIIE HTS ¥ 370 YA SN /& | B 1 94 & SR 7+ I8l Bl &

— AT R JUA HET BTS BT JGATSE 3R TATHIRHT VT § Hier Ramst &< & forg fefdred g

fqhodl BT ATID G

— QI WIFI W WU eI+ 4T 7eiAi (TVMs) # Bfee / Sfie &1 &1 STANT B HeleNd Sldh
faep1 / TAIE TS RS A &1 BRI

— AT RIEI & SIH BISel 3R ATEH Adl dal R YaRid WRd fage R (QR) ®I€ & & A
DL I fdmh! /1 B RATs! GiAwT Y6 BT |

— B AT DTS AT BRA & T Bl 7 1 WIS Bre I fAf" BRI & Yae & foy a@=s; TR
T & A1 BRR AT B | 39 ITelTdl, TRg=Ts: Hel 3R fivaeaue = ff M W1 &re &F Aeg A
fafer Sroaeaget Harett & s o SifRed #rews g9 & fore T fhar 2 |

— @S Hgl A Sfde /wiee B Giawm ¥ sRfgd uise off A (POS) SfiFal &1 Joad @l & |
IRIET iU ST IR AReT &R JRefl HARad o @ oy 37 sramgf~e Sdigd # ARy
HIR TG T |

—

feme HRl W Ry wu & ke & forg gfaer
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TS IR JAMITT & T, DU F RIASH HGl & F41 ATAT BT U & FH I eHl TR o 3 SRIele <l
yar fhy | STIur # AETE SR W@ewdl 99Y XE@E & forg; Al @ STl AT P B A Ugel e
TIFET TR B B THIE BT ST 2 | THTS 3R Ieodl & Heed & IR H IR B STTed dR B o7
LIl R JaDhs ATCh (FEIT W) BT o 61 13 |

7. d&fedsd A9 B UBA

3T IR BT Y3 I & IGaed ¥, MBI U dhieud 3 & fofy el il ofik o=y |ial &1
AT I @ T @Il @ B | AR S Y9 B AT B ugEe SR Il @ T8 7, {5
f=forRad o1 wnfae foar Tar &

fagma=
TR faer w1 iR eI famg W= &=
HURT BT fabr
3iffted BTSaR Baed Bl AT
TR W &Il 0R &7
arfehT
HU fasmos, arforres famT ok fary, Tifhr 3R erar WRT &) T 3 rora T dr vE 7 |

8. SR YUY & fafya orext & Al uRATSI=rR &1 forsares

TETTHAT #7 TR AIET BT STeeTdT H 28 HRAN 2019 BT AU 98P H DI AHSd -1 HA: &I BIRSRI arei!
BITYR 3R SRT HET el RT3 Dl DT HoRI &l & Sl 11 6”& Y4 Aol 1S 3R A Felwey
&3 DI SIS | HIFYR 3R RT HGT Nl RATTAISN DI ARG TRBR 3R IR TS AIBR DI AIS[ET 50:50
HYFd WA drell Ul oRgTS Agl Xel DA (LMRC), 5 SR U9 Hgl ¥l HiuReE foffics
(UPMRC) & &9 ¥ giifad fawan 17 8T 8, §RT driifad far S | aRarssiisii @l qurar safey srgwre-
P IRG H 059 2 |

RT AT URATSTT H |1 7 fdgall I Je dTel &1 ISR B | et | A9 $%¢ IIC & 91 14 5 &
PIRSR # 6 Yferdcs AR 7 YA, 13 I 81, Tl 15.40 fHHI & ATRT e ¥ Bifeial [98R HINSR H
14 TIE, T4 Tferace B, fSeat SIgATfa dTd 8,379.62 RIS TUY BRI | JIFRT H BIRSR—1 & 3fald,
03 UfTdCs 3R 03 AT TCAT & ATl ¥ T A ST ARSTE T T4 6 fhHT ofd JATRET BIRER & =T
TATE |

PR FST H 1 qT BIRSR WA BT, AMLARET A AT HIRSKR (23.785 I 3716 w4 A Tferdcs 3ikR
311 w4 | AT & IR ST 22 W & iR PV fawafdernery | avi—8 BIRER (8.60 fHH) # 4 Tferdcs
3R 4 YRT T 2 | IRATSIHT BT AFATT TR 11,076.48 RIS S & AR §7 QAT IRITSTARI B
5 Tel H QU7 819 T 3TJH © | BIYR H BIRSIR—1 & i, 09 Tfeldcs T & IMMSIEC! BIYR I A
et T T 9 faedt o TR SIRSR &l g1 T 2 |

JUITCT 38l O ¢, Gbed, Sl M, T Weid R AT afe & forg fMfderg arsdr wigT
FRAT/ Bl A g9 UT B B 918 ATHIT BT ST Ahd! & | BIET Toidl | A& ferd URdrg GRbR Bl
JUATRT &R a1 TAT B |

—



9. HRITITAT 98 YERETd feur

BT BT ITR—GIET AT HIRSR (BT 17) B
PRISTAT \g ER@d feur 324 gerfer ,
MU HHY, SUIE TR RIS § T 52
wars A # AT far war 2 | feur # srferen
T8 e 9 arsHl, et Iref, aemfed
o 19T Wiie, four dere dex, RAfST 99 e
(RSS), ufRrer o (Schedl & ot &g) T
3=y gfaemsll H fIeawsia mgfaad giaem
€ | I8 Ul TaTuHaTRT &1 ygd f$ul 3R SR
TSI H ST TRE T Ugall fSul g9+ ST RET 2 |

S o b afex e A & A 2

10. ¢TEUIE TR A¢l fSUl wR Icsedr o forv &g (COET)

TATHINRE! BT Iheedl & oy da (COET) HIRIRA &
T & | I8 9949 giUIe R Al Ul & uReR & afax
AT far T 2 &R yauHeIRel & AU Reel &l
afRreror o5 & oy smyftrean AgT uflieror gl |
Iad 2] 39 Bg H IR U H Smr @ft Agr
GRATSTARAT BT FFTeA0T Heell STRed W B DI &wa
%Iﬂ@ﬁﬁm\%ﬁﬁ?ﬂiﬁ‘é’rwmmﬂ Gwncmﬁﬂgﬁfﬁ
Ao RRgeled SR SMMedd gl wAe € |
AT H 300 ¥ 31fdres Ufegait T UfRreror Uard o 4
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A% M 10 ARaRST & forg a¥ & UR" A Tf @ <R
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A gad o=l fIaRor TR &R U - 9 G of@id] Rebfel &I Feaar Ud guiar GHead &< & forg gmdr
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A e 8 SR TEMIRIES B RUIS STRI BT & 1A+ SARI 1 1 M 8 | ST SRaa Sed VIR BT 37T &,
Afh g RS T2 & T@id AT & TR Bl T3 RATINIET F EH Bl TeaHds TAdaar & 8 &l
TAT S B Y | TAqadT SRaTerS! A1 JfE W I B Wbl & IR T qeATsd A il @ afe, @fad T w9 |
AT ol HATHR, IAY o fa<i IRl & SR R SUATATS & 371fes ol T J9Tad =1 1 JATIeIT TUer Bl
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FEIY G € | 9 I8 1 R &
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BANI X DI SR Y& B D g gaie iR Sferd & | gamers] | Sl Tefdaaril Bl dl el T Bl
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2. SIAFTIH BT GRT 143(5) BT U S AR, B9 "I W H R B (RFD 1R HSTeRITIIED §IRT SR
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0T, GTOT AT ST HoR T8l 1T |
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fewqof TET P TIE B |

v. 99 & SR BUT A DIy STHRIRT WIDHR 61 B & AR 31 A1 2019 DI DI IRGAIPHA SHRIRRI T8I & AR
ST, SIS @Y &I1RT 3(v) & UTaN HU IR AR el 8l |

Vi. ®% RBR T BUAl §RT UG DI ST 81 ATl & Hael |, AT BT &1_7 148(1) & I ARTT Rebisi BT
R (TR 81 {61 8 3Tud 571 R Bg fCwofl TE BHI I8 © |
vii.  BH <1 IS STHNI 3R WISV & JJAR, Aifdfed <af & dde o:

F. PHUA AW AR R 9 W AN Afasy [, oAt I 9197, 319 R, [T &R, a1 ), ATl Ud JaT I,
AT o, ITUTE Yo, IUDR R I T Aifdfde <ai |fed sifdartad wifafts <ai &1 Suygad
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AT Yoo, IUTE Yoo, IUDR 3R T T Wil <31 & Hael H BIS sffaarntad <7 IR 37 8 Bl
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BHRY WATH SIFHNI 3R 84 & T8 SIMaR] 3R WG & AR, a9 & SR BUA §RT T HUN D
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HHA) fademy & forg
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(= Bud)
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dIc 18 — ATIR 2

(arE Jud)
faavor 31 914 2019 @l 31 91 2018 @l
GeH IR Y WR B SMd SUHAGE) & H 6T <
(30 fe&=t & @1 & <9 T3 %))
qH WR & AEHE SUHAMR) & B gHRT <
(30 f&=t & 1w & <9 I3 %))
T 9T < - 0.58
YHIA AR =T HAG T 20.46 20.33
g & fafdy o\ eR 803.39 340.66
Ec) 823.85 361.57

e 19 — 34 fa<ha Sgae

(eI Ju)
faaxor 31 91 2019 @I 31 9 2018 &I
BT
SHRIRRIT / SheRl 3R 3= I gferror f3r 7,354.14 6,959.34
PRI Yol SR YOI avgell & ofeR 20,225.65 18,318.96
I+ (@ <)
Eac) 27,579.79 25,278.30
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(arE »ud)
faaxor 31 9 2019 @I 31 4 2018 &1
ELSS
Y Yo 3R PR 1,495.02 1,020.93
HHARAT & T 252.68 146.04
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qff @reR) & forg < 6,868.52 ]
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BT
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Gl APHalDHRIl 21.91 0.64
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I IT:
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Tl 3T
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FoTaR{l STATY 129.01 396.03
$ 9¢ W R AT 477.22 288.00
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(T BuA)
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ool < 1,447.45 660.82
SUPHRYT HATAT AR IIRET 2 57.36 15.13
BSAGINT = 298.43 164.05
Ul Hare T iR SgRevT Ty 70.18 21.30
TCIA HATe 3R AFREVT Y 218.34 70.62
TR IR e 9.57 5.18
9 = 14.24 13.49
e 2,818.53 1,616.72
dic 25 — HHARN) fdamm g
(T BuA)
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g 98 @ faw T 9 @ ferg
qas =T @R 3T T 4,008.12 2,042.37
afgsy = 3R U9 I | sfvre™ 452.27 287.38
Gl BB Y 346.93 314.96
TS # sfere™ 109.79 133.56
Erl 4,917.12 2,778.27
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(T 3u)
faaxor 31.03.2019 &I 31.03.2018 B
e 98 @ fow | wura 9 @ forg
¥5 gIR 2.25 1.25
SIS 0T TR AT 209.21 81.39
e 211.46 82.64
T 27 — AgTH IR FURNET &I

(eI Bud)
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i 9 @ fav | gura oo @ fag

gy & fay Jeae™ 3R ForEne
%) o uREufkm 8,383.11 4,276.82
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SAThIM, e 3R TIR Y 57.95 88.36
I, 3Mafdd, FHERYS IR uf¥amei ) &g 0.73 0.71
TETUIETh] BT UTReI S 3.79 3.79
=99 iR IR 144.09 123.18
BRI FATa AR TR & 52.41 95.08
TTH 3R PINIR Y 0.85 0.81
fafqer e 0.85 50.93
AT IR AR I 186.93 130.36
fdeToT SR Wit 692.10 11.16
anfaey R Rweric a9 94.32 74.10
SMSCARNT R Sifd 9b Iy 156.14 142.52
ifafere =™ 0.19 0.05
IR, RS, I R g 151.97 233.55
HHI 3R FThol 0.49 0.14
g3, fafde ofik o =g 11.81 9.11
MBS R = JaTy 151.39 107.19
fovmm, a8 3R &R 45.16 43.63
S o ARG 4.22 25.29
fel ga1 SaR—=erdl &1 99T 0.13 0.01
Eac) 1,916.68 1,255.95
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W TP Uhdl UCCaR oldidh Afed U SRl & [orH UScaR &l J4l ool & forg aREufRr ik
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UR SN FT81 H+1 BT AT B Fabell & [orIa] Al ad FURT HH g Bl & |
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TIPS S ThCIBRUN UL U &1 T, fb §8 YU 1, Tl faavon &1 R iR 8 uud
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3T BT B T AT, B SR, YR PR HTCH, I PR BHIST AR B &I B RN TR AN
f3paT ST 2, ST81 $ UUH 12 & T84 AIPR STAR UR AFREr & |

D ITATdT, T DIg AT AFRET PR ITAR H ! ATl iR A & ol <31 a1 ured fobedt ey
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FR ATl IFRETar oR A AR BN |

HUAT HMET BT et MR faxfi fdavolt wR g9 wTa, Ife B 8, BT Jeuids aR BT 8 |
29.3 o@idA AR fahg faavor IR B 31 IR

AUl DI DAT

HOA & I faa=or Hu=t 1, 2013 &1 &RT 133 & TEd fAfdse, HUAl (TR @i " ®)
2015 (J21 HeNfAa) & ded AEYRT, AR @i AFDI (Ind. AS) 3R YR H AET=IAT W
i RAgIdl & SIJHR ol@idh & UG MR WR TR fhy 7Y 2 |

foreirer faramor YR S0 (INRY) # TR 5T 77 8 i1 Uit hl wrRiicds JaT 1 2 |

31 AT, 2019 B FHAG q¥ & fa<iy fJaRer IR &<+ & oy e ded 9 f&=id 27 o, 2019 &l
3NfArpd 3R JrgAIed fohaT |

TIR SR I S BT AR
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ergie feral § e 9 T B |

FATIHT YIS AT
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IHET BT HANT AR yge &1 foig
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S T ¥ A= &1 Favdl & | ST ol FHI—H7T IR FHIEN &1 Tl 2 iR oaids STA # Hehee S
rafgy # A=y by 11t €, R S |iferd fby S & SiiR wids &l orafer ywifdd siell & | araifde
AROTHAT 3R STFAT & S STeRY BT 9 S1afdy 7 7= forar i 2 fores aRom gfener 8 € |

fa<ia faa=ont &1 T3t &1 9gM & forg, fa<ia faa=ont # 717 @1 T8 R[N W Ag@yul J91d STe arell
IR AT BT AR B H S, AfRdar ik fForiges fofaf & Feaget &5 & IR § SRt f=
TR B:
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AT 3R BT &1 Ay &1 MR 6 & a1e fohan Sl & | U= ) IRFuR! & IuIR Sita
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M. AMHS IATY / IRAIRTAT: SMHRAD A3 BT Uehe el Teml | Sad FHIfad Tl
& g H fHAT ST & olfdhd S9a i@ @l gfte e a7 31ftres g widsy &1 gede & afeq
B T 9 B | &Y Sl S 8 aRE | B & Frg=or 7 92 8 a1 5iet fhdl Aioper i &1 Ao
HE! @ s & afeate & e # TE S o 9% a1 wiet i o1 fagas i srgAr T8 faar o
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MR TR T ST 2 |

T JTIH Bl ARG UR g1h! AHIET MR AT TG JFAT ST & (70 AHRIST fam S & |

g, gRWINa @ Ireadr: U= H aR9INT A 3G AT & | B S0 BHAR! T IGST Aol
& qEA IRAT St 981 F979 &I 91t 3fere™ & A1ead i 59 AT &l Ao adl 8 | Id
Y & i H e TR TR HU B <Idl MEIRT (SITAT AT HIST UG BT STIRT Hb) B
ST R |

. dHifes @ iR 1f |fEa gaamvE: aREuRy o1 99 & gbe, Fad aREfia o™ g ®
ot saret 7 enfiet IR BT Bred IR AT uRFuRil R gfawd (Fad aRrfd o <aar o
Fae et 7 enfier JIRRT BT BrS®R), B JeTua H ARAISMS & AH U GTRd 3fSid H FHF B0 4
Sfie a1 wfee Fxa 39 rafd § w1 far sirar & s 9 vfed 81 € | gAAu= 31 918 31 rafdai |
< 1 1 H gAaiiod T8l foar S 2 |

4. 9IS &1 =1 udiegor: Fufy, 995 iR SueRvr o, e SR Jeusm™ / Foreiee iR Jaar, afe
BIS B, AT AN R afvid fBam Srar 2 | aTa # Imand e R 377 miferey o, ik aR¥fufy &t
9 3R8d START & oy SR BTerd H o & ol TR Udel oiTd |Afed SHdT TR 4o
MAA BT R |

B. IARTd Hx uRFURTAT &1 "r=uar: RAfIT B aRFuRRT B 71 fU S &1 T Bu=il @
AT B B AT MM BT HHTIAT B 3MThel= UR MR Bl & oI forw mRerfira o alR¥ufRy &1
SRINT a1 S 6a | g9 3retral, fawi At a1 e W & owra & ferivor § Aeaget fofg
3Uferd BT & |

IRIFT & Feaer § RAIfET orafdy & 3iq § gg=1 137 FefSrd et § Fafid & Sl 2 |
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294 He@yel d@is oAl &1 faazor i faar = 2
P, BRATHD AR TEAHIT 5T

i faaRor R T — INRR), ST U & HTITHAS 5T & § IRqd by 70 2| faceh ge1 4
e BT oifed fafrRl RS9 # Hiser My &) w 4= fear o 2| faeeh ga1 o9 &
FHTET UR YTKT A4 3R BT BT AT AR BT [GaR0T A1 Brieie goll, forad i Fafer a1, § 417 foa
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@, Uy, 993 AR SuSRT R 3pyd uREufrar
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T gRASHT & o ¥4 At Gl @ forg arm= uREufia iR yonferal &1 aa-a A ! /
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€. Igddl ®I e il 9 gra dwEn faarer sk gwel squRefa 4 e orf &
dH-a] TS & TR IR YOI 8I1 UR Yoilgpd fHAT SIar 2 |

T I S Al g8+ 2g @iel 9 dTel ¢ T & o URFURTIT BT YoliboT Husil § gRHETd
AD YRATAT Afhamall, R ATemRedie & AR T UhR ¥ $H9@] quidl JHred &
IR U T P AASl-h SYANT & oY Wt & oIy HST Yerd JRef 3gad gI_T Si+ard FeiiRa
3TUEAT3T & STUTe & TS fhar ST 2 |
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H YT 31T A el R (AT ST &, 3R A1 31R 811 o faaror 4 fafdw /31 3 ofR 817 & iR
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= |




295 M

®. DU D oY YA WRIE &g H B g WP YA & oy SATe—HoT AT FH0T & 9T Y H 4T
IR BT 9 & FoTT ToT—art FefIe=eT FE0T AT 7T R |
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ST I TATHT / AReIT <IT BT fH BT Peoll Al & forg Feorenterd fhar a2 |

M. TATHIAIRY! §RT TS Y A Gel fSTa Heol BT Afdd USaoT e f&ar 7137 8, &I 31 forg fhy
Y YT B AR TR eRdie far T 8 |
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T 7T <1, 31: 32§ TUH 101 H AT BE & MTAR 1/ — SUI & AFeN! oI TR SIRI I@T AT 2 |

. uRHuRT & fafm | ot 1 &l o A & ST Jog W A1 fbar S 2 | a1 & S e
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3Tl T RIRTT 311 WY & T @i AT ST & 3R S $$ UUH 20 & HIGeTHl & TR
ERNIERERIRCIGIES

9. RIS 99T @fRBAT (PAPs) & Goai’d @ oFTd 3 Hafed ufrgfd, ufoRenmus seife &1 srifie
Gofl 3 &5 feba 31k ORT 81+ R Hdferd gRAufral &1 drrd d SireT Sirdr € |

B, WHR I Fges urad 9 et Wi TagaeRdl & o Afkd & &1 o Y & Sfd o W)
A BT ST © | SFRId Hog @1 T R A @1 TR @l ARG Bl JTd) S &9 &1 Fdel a1 &
3TTYTR TR T I 2 |

296 braele goln:

F.  goirra aREuferal o FEfomdiE € ok sfed ST 2 TR R €, @ ord § uRasrr / aReufy
P FoIU Tcera: TR 317 UcueT 31} 31cgel <y il 2 |

Q. RIS 8 YIerd: IR YATAeh, IATeT 3R A= SHUR @i (Fael 3) Bl goiigpad
aR¥UREt & SuTd # Jrdfed T S & |

. oioT Srafer & e e IR S Heg e, i S (Sfaad, «arot e srelieRer 2o 3R e
SR U &9 & SR ST & YT <ITo1 & 3TelTan) STfe &l AT & SR &g 3 [l foar
TATE |

. Hod e Afed qral B okl STgHIE IR WIPh WR fHar ST 2 | aRel & &1 d@ie Sifas
et & frroe™ wR fFar S g |
207 fHIvT & SRM <191 JTd e

9 & SR Y BI Ts Aed TRAURHRT & G 3 A0 & SR 191 (IDC) HT e dre] [y S aret
HEW @ 3fd # 3Ed BRI Yo @ ol H ATe] B T8 IRHURT & b & Igurd H o SI1am 2 | 3=
AT H, TSR HT Jrdie 3ifH W & GolldxvT & ARG & AR TR a1 STam § |
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208 HIETH / FOUTENES

F.  HURT, G IR IUBROT WR B AAFIH, 2013 BI AT 1| 7 FeiiRa aRFuirdl & STanf Siad
P AR R I BT Urae fBar Simar 8, Ry FreferRad aR|uirl /geal & dedg 4, S8
ITARA Sa SUHN §RT AT i & MR R et far smar &

%9, gfR¥iufa Sy Sfraer (ad)
1y RIferT weid 30
T 1 RIferT Wi & geh— g My, Fed SUHRYI, 5, 18
AT Rven
& TEheley 30
1 (Ehele & °Th — 88 o 7
2 (heley & "geh—ey AR o9 e, Rel, TR iR 8
=T iR
a3 (helel & gch— Y TTh 15
kil Tefldex 30
AT 1 Tellder & Hch — She JY /e, TR, Vel 20
HIT FUHRT
[q 2 Tollder & "cdh — gReTl R =1, gigReT o /&= 8
@3 Tellder & "edh — dicded, Ralol 10
A4 Uellder & gcdh — Y TTh 30
Ell TUHHT & bCdH
30 1 WA (PIedead FE BIS) 7
32 JUAS! (Picdead TS TIh) 5
Sl 3 oY gcdh 10
g BIEIEC ISR 3
TP SERSE 2
S I 15

TREYRTA & Tedl @) ygaE & oy faarRa aucs:
T IRFURT & Hee # 10 TRI SU AT JH Jo& D IRFURRT iR F=&1 IRAURT & 10% & 31w o
qTel TShl W &) gSPHIh vl of o fear Tar 2 |

TTH BT BT Siae et aRHAURT & Sita aa Hfid fear T g |

—



IREURTAT & FHE SUATH Sl dTel Heedqul Tehi Pl T Ul I Faferd gfcrerd o1 faear 7 oxd
BY, U 1 SISl TTT 2 | RIY Heah] AT 0 Gl Bl Gl IRAFURT A e ST T e |

I, $& BRI (IR A1) 3R I URFURTAT BT TeHIHRYT A8l fhar 77 § Fifdh e T—TeT gchl

CIRECIEACEER RN

T, SRR T, FdeToT / JRET SUSRUN, ST UOTel, HTaferl SUHRYT, HeiteR iR FeIRI iR
T E |

5000 / — TU AT HH DI FURT, FIF IR IUHIT AR 3P IRAYRTAT & TeATHS Ugel W R &
B ERIE & Y H ¥ ORE W RO PR QAT TATE |

B! AT, 2013 BT ! || B JTAR URFURT B A AN & 5% B JARTE I DI I
AT SITT & 31 Heldl BT S 2 |

B 39 Q7 ¥ JAUIfIe MR R o an 11 8 59 s uReufr ST & oy aR o |
Hrsar uRAufrl, S geg gReufrdl &1 ffde 317 8 H Haed / SHekil R s 9 uReufl &
Y IUAT SHET IR AT TR |

Gofipd @ TE e WG SR e anTdl W erTell a9 werdt @ andfds W
T / wReAa, ST T Ugd 81 O Hederd [T Srar g |

AFCIIR ¥ A & MfH o™i BT &= H I gY, S8 3 UREURT & WU 3 Yoilgd fdbar 17 8
3TR TR @ UGN TR 5 Iuf B1 7Sy # Foreierd fHar T s |

I Hel, T Wi U & Uy 81 8, TR 3 UV I & 99 H oid IR G9TRd fhar Smar 2 |
299 faqefr gar

. (o<l gaTall # Sifehd e BT ol e BT aRRI WR F=ferd [y a) IR &5 f6a1 SIrar € |
. faeel getell # oifed wifesd aal &1 RUIfT arRRg @1 §e faf My &R ©R SrIcas gar d wuidRd fear
ST |

T Afed et & e a7 vuiaRT W S A 3for 396 SO 819 & a8 § oy a1 81/ priefier
goll, ST Y Rerfy &1, # /1 foy o € |

. RO 99 §6 (EIB) ¥ 01 YRA WRER (Gol) ¥ e weradr (PTA) & w9 3 u1w foar 1 2 |
FOEIAT R A<l a7 H (Ul STR—FST Bl WRd ARBR DI FATE R oi-ad AER R AR b
ST |

29.10 URHURTAT &1 JHA

TS JTIF ARG TR I8 el $Hel & forg aREURral @ ag=1 I o F#ien @ S 2 &
3@ iR & HRST & AR R JHAM BT Bl Adhd © | W MFe R B Joar &1 4 fan
ST STt 1 fopell aREufcT 1 a8 <IiRT SHa! a¥gell A IR ¥ 31f¥e 81 | HURT &1 aegell A Iy
et faep! Jou a1 ITART e, ST 41 31 &1, © | SUARTT Hod & MMHer B FH, AT A= &
THS! TaTE BT Yohl & ARG ITHT AN BT STINT GRS I oI TR B & ST & | I8l § A JhArT
BT 3T 39 AT T graer fram a1 uRRefaal & gRads & 3R W Soiel ST & f aReufrar @ <fdr
=1 IR & <1fdres 9 8 R a7 FuiRa far S 6 318 Jaae ugel 71 faar 13 o | gaa, afe
Pls B, DI Y 3R 81 & faaxor § ar=g fhar Srar 2 |

—
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29.11 XToid AT (Ind AS 115)

1 319, 2018 W, BU -1 §8 UTH 115 “UTED| I A48 H I[oid” DI 01, o I8 FeiRa &1 & forg
U AP WURET & g & fob IS BT fohe=T 3R dd A= T ST 2 | §8 TUH 115, € UUH 18 XoiRd
3R g€ YU 11 Fior argde T UfaRenfUd e 2 | Ul 7 HeRl scdhrd TR fafel &1 SUANT R gY
ST YUH 115 DI J[UAIT &, S 1 3B 2018 T YT &} by 1Y el W R foa 121 2 | Faft ercdpra
IRTAEA A & AR, JoA® oRd $ qaATdl U | FEEING T8l fbar R & | Fraa—qe,
fARad—7g AT srgddl ¥ o, STel yaei[ Tl B WHg & QR Yof fBaT SI1er & &R el A9 a1
R &1 Arfedar & w0 H B8 Iffedar 72l €, &I gofar ufrerd & SR 7= far Sirar & | 59 /79 a1
3ifeH AfeddT & wU H AMREdr 81, a1 QAT SIHRETAr BT T 89 db TG AT AT &R &l
S 7 | ot @1 e # wfd & "oE & forg S A anTd &1 SudnT fRar T § F®@ife 39Ye &R
IATCHAT & 121 T HEET 7 | SIRET0T ISR DI fAf{Rd TEREma wawen o 3@y # A fHar = 2 |
ATFH BT T W B & fa<ig faRon IR BIg uqTa 781 ueT |

F. feHe /I A IO BT D! TNIE DI ARG 3R FC BIS & AFel H aRd(dd ITINT & Jed ©
YR TR 977 fhar Srar 2 |

. BhY Bl AT I 3T BT I MR TR A1 fham ST 2 |

T Teldil ST 3R SISIRTR / THSISIR UR TSl 311 B, 12T &1 75 1M1, AY &R 3R dabi gRT SIRI 1%t
THTOTYS @ TR AT TS Bl oIl § ol Y FHI AU AR TR A1 fHT M7 & | THSIRR W)
SITSTTT TST T T4 3TR BT+ fqaxor # 71y fdbarr T € |

g, Hufy iR foRe W T U IF & A1 # fiRy R I &1 AsHayRS / UecaR / Rargaemy
SR & A1 A1gae FHsi & T ofR 2l & SR U= 7197 fohan T 2 |

. SUIN by Y I H Ao | UIeyd [IoRd Bl AJEe TTdl IR ARG YIS MR WR oI
fopa STaT 2 |

29.12 HIeR[A!

Fred A1, UfheT ArRfl, TR IR W &1 goTid1 arTd & fw1aw iR g a¥gell a7 Jou wR o Siran
2 | AT @ ArTal § @RIg ot Al AR SR AT BT S HIfaT I iR Refd # o # arg @ 18
3 AT M & | WIS BT ATl 7 Yeebl 3R BRI (A8 H B BTN I et I & 3fATd), AT bl
3T AR ATV TR R T 2 Al VI Hd WA © | TRIG BT AN BT RO R H AR
e, G 3R 3T T aRGRAl Bl Bl o STl 2 |

29.13 STH4l R TAHal TATHT

JATUH ¥ bl 3R Tba FHGA! H bl H R SR Tbal AR I FE T HH B HeT URYe aretl
TP eI STHTY TS &, S Jed # aRadH & T30 SiRed & refiF 2 |

—




29.14 HHTANY faqa am

TR 21 B | U Il bl aRaIf sferer™ Ao @ wu # aiffed fasar Siar € aaifes eu aikTe SR
TR fU U 33eT & MeTdT Bis 3R SR Tl f9Teh & | U 39S Bl aaTRAl gRT YT B TS JaT &)
3rafdr & foru oy 3R B1fe faavor # gaRd fhar Srar 2 |

S # IR fRdam T=gE) IS & | SUAT 30 HHAR! T8 I=CT AT & d8d R Siia 9
o 1 q1i¥ep STerer= & Aregd ¥ 59 AT BT fTaIor Rl 2 | 9dd 99 & 3id § S19ifehed dR IR HY=1
P T FRERT B S § |

drifehes ATl SR BT Afed, gAY uREURT @ A1 & gvra, e aRarii @ <aar R fHae @are
# enfre IRMT 7 Brea) iR IioHT uREuRmEl W wfawe (Fad aRaa ar <gar & faa s |
ST JIRRIT BT BISHR), BT JoTu= H ARSI B ATEH I &R 375 § FA w4 4§ ST A1 DS I
I fafe H w7y fhgn S ® forad 9 ufed 81d € | AT Bl 91e o JAaferdl # A A1 81+ § gaified
TE fpar Smar g |

WAied gfeedl, @ 9y & ofd I aRE Jeil & JIaR o™ fordT ST AT FHa bRl BRIAT ST 1Ry, DI
Y PHARI A AT ST & | a9 B 3T H TG shaR] B YRR YA B S arell AfRed
IR & wY H e gfeed! 31 siferd anTd U= e i 1R &1 J7ue fham ST & |

e gfeedl, e 99 & 3fd | aRE HEM W 31d T Tdb oI ST AT THATBROT BRI DI U] B
ST ©, B 3= QeI HHAR] A /9T Sl & | s a9 & 3 § dHifhed wU A DUl DI <l
fRetRa @ i 2 |

29.15 411 ]1d
ST 1Al BT <74l Bl TP TR MR TR @i fhaT ST ¢ |

29.16 QT I

IRHURTET & Foi Bg YoINTd @ & fol§ ARSNI / IR—ARBN AT 1 AR F IIEH Bl RA 4
IRIAT IO’ B AR TR ST ST & | 39 GREURTAN TR I8 & gurd  dafd aReufRrl &
Sita # g2 ufd af o1 & w7 AT fhar S B |

RGN / IR—ARBRI IT = UTABRON H TS H T Bl A IR BT fIaR0T § ‘317 1’ o & dgd
A fHaT ST 2 |

FUA gRT IR—AS® I U Bl R, TRAURT 3iR ™ BT ST Ahed AT H & b ST iR
siafifed aREURT & U ST S 3R o™ &1 Wod & SR IR 31 fdavor # e favar Sz |

RIS BRI B SR T TRBR A U faciia Feriar sriehd goll (CWIP) | ST / Bkl &l 718 © |
2917 YREURTAT &1 JHEH

TN SRTT | ToT 3R SUR &) IR B Gael § I Bl T8 TSP NI M 8 3R 37 YHTdT AT &
P MR TR A IR I faavor § ywiRa far S |

—
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RN AT H {422l JaT SR A I 814 dTel 39 AT T (A7 SR e 8, ST8i T I 1ol T
& FATITST & TR IR AT S € |

IR 7997 6 (EIB) ¥ 0T WRA ORGR ;@d%@ A ol §rdr (PTA) & AT ¥ IRA™ S0 | 91
BT T B | WRA WRBR §RT UG $I T8 FbRAT T (PTA) 450 fAfera= IR (3,50,200 g 30 &
W)Eﬁmgmﬁ?wzﬁmﬁElBWW?WWH%WWHWW%I
FET Pl WIRA ARPR GRT HIY TRET §RT AR T T 2 | 9IRT ARBR & GoleId Wil & AR ROl
BT AR St & ATH A fHAr ST | IRT ARGR A e fIHRT H31er (MoUD) @ 3799 ATSTHT doic
A IR 39 3 707 &7 | gabich! WR st Y facel go7 § SAR—9e1d &I Rd ¥R & Fellg WX o e
® IR IR A AT ST | 9 & SR, DU 1 IR ERBR A BRI AR & WY H 1,68,000 AR
S0 (fUrerel av 98100 <IT) 1 1T T B8 © | Y & SIRTH B 7 TSl & foIg 399.72 G ¥ (fUsel a
259 T) BT UTaeT fhar 2 |

EH TRFURT B IFfIgor A1 Ao & {77 SRS SuRy ArTd &1, U1 uREuRy & avTd & 2y & w0 #
TG TH Yoligrd fhar ST &, W19 ad gRFURT 1o sfeed SuaiT & forg qar =18l 81 9l | sées uRReufy
I8 IRGYRT ST 3704 sRed SUdNT & fore JUR 89 & SMa3de ®U I g I9 ofdl 2 |

3= I S 1T 9 37afy # e ) Iy 2 ROrad 9 wfed g1 € |

29.18 3refi=ver FoT

AR TRBR AR IR TG ARBR A U T el e 0T AT IR—ERPIRI 0T (I I F0lT) Bl
I & 91 FhId AT § | 39 F0l B Sreaifers SUTRAT & TR R AT a1 71 7 | SRy F07 <arof
T © | ARBNI AT B AR, HUT DT URATST & oG I fbY TT R THE A1 501 HT gl &
18 B AT 0T BT G BT SURIT & | bl DI 1Al BT ARETAT & AGQOR, BUA 1 TRBRI
STefITReT 0T BT I T PRAT MALID T THN ¢ |

29.19 MY
SRR BT FEIROT SRR AMAFTH, 1961 & WALl & TR (BT ST © |

SR BR DI T Jeaual fAfd BT SUIRT PReb BI ST & | SARANT BR TG AHIGAT AT B
AT RN JART & forg gol w0 I 719 D1 Sl & | AR BR yRAURTAT BT 59 A1 I A foban
ST & o5 Avaa: SfafifRd o B, mgad ax HST (THTE! B THARY) AT Bkl AT SRAT 3feR
HiI®T 3§ PR I 31T & ATUeT SUANT fbar SITgrT |

AT IMRIATT HR URFURTT BT Ids RUIFET IRg IR gA:FeiRd iR 39 W1 a6 A f6ar ran 2
o Fwad: wfasr # &R A o 9 IR o) aREURT &l g g aa |

T PR 3R RN HR AT 3T B X BT AT AT BT H A1 {1 ST 2, 37 @7ueh 3117 (OCl) I1
3fFad) § ycerd: 9=y 9l W GefSd &l Brsay, o ardal & 59 siRfians a1 gfaady § 7=y fhar sidr 2 |

29.20 UTTET, ATHAD I X ATHRTD IR aRTAT

DI YU T6 7Y a1 S7ar & o ol gl & aRUTERa®y BUHl &7 Ale] SR (Bl a1
FoTTcH®) Bl 1R I8 F9d &1 b R & FARITA & forg SHmeEi & afgare siferd grm forae Hae # e

—




frea a1 SIFAT AT ST A | ATaeril T (ERT A9 &l TR R ST & FHE & forg geed &

AT AT & MR TR fHAT ST 2 1R a0 Hod W B ol &l Il | ATHRAD IR BT Jdhe
Ydg / ¥qad faerEl & Mo & SR wR AT S © | Iie Joud dRRd R 3961 AHIET BT S §
3IR I e STAM Bl SR & oY AAIAIIST (a1 ST © | 3 RHe qRAuRl o1 71 81 fhan
ST forg faxiar famor 3 gere favan Sram 2 |

29.21 A®<l ¥arg faavor

Tpel vaTe faaRor YRR oRgi 996 (Ind AS)&7 & 'Fddl ydre T faaror R [uifRa smrcuer fafr &
SR TR frar T 2 |

29.22 fa<fra foraa
4T STl BT Tl Bl WP UR SR TR ST (AT ST © |
®. AT, YRS A9+ AR IMT=ABRT:

foriir aReuferal SR i Saamil &, Bul & forad & AfdaTHe TIae &l Ut g9+ IR 71 fda
ST 2 3R MRS AR TR ofFa dlTd gRT GHRIMSTT ST Hod TR, 3R H oI iR 81 & AT 4
ST gea (FVTPL) W afierd faxira uReufrat & Bredms, A1a+ far Siar € |

foriir aRFURTT T 3= @1 Il 2 oid foxiTg uREURTAT & el HaTg Bl a8 DR FHI 8
AT 2, A1 99 i aREufy ok al Ayl SiRew ok ReaR fdRd g oa 2 | faeh faxia
YT DI T4 I (BT ST & 59 I8 Ha, Jaid, RG& DI S| AT FHIS 81 S © |

. fo<ia aREufkmay &1 aaffexor i gzargadt amo=

T A9 & WS A, TRMAS Al W i aReufat o feafaRaa sitrr § affea fear
ST &

Y9I TS A (EIR) BT SUANT el 8T 3FL T UR fa<irg gReufrar
T AT I & A A S Jed (FVTPL) WR faxiia aReufRkr
. I FYS 3 & A I I Jod (FVOC) TR i gReufrat
THAETdITe @ srerrar wl faci aReufrat &0 9 &9 e RAET fafy R Jaam & aiemd= € |
fepelt ferirar aiReFaiRy @1 ol  Thdicdige # A1 w8l far war € |
. fa<ira Qgare &1 aeffevor i gearaadt wma=

forTT <ITaAl 1 AU gETeaci IR UR JHTdT @7t fafe o1 SUANT Rad gY SRURNIET oTTe OR fhan
ST &, Riarr gwarcidiee # AR I A1 fa<ia Qadmeil &, S v A1 g1+ | /I o™ AT 81
Afed Sferd Jou W &y o1 & | T geuet facii foradt o1 oraia=t Twdidive # faam Sirar € | U=
fepe) ity <ararall &1 Ul  UhHdIETdIger # 1A el fobar M e |

—




29.23

29.24

qri¥e faaor 2018-19

g, gHuTdl 1S SR (EIR) @Y TVHET FR=TaR &) Sl @:

o< aREufrat 3R faxia <Iamd, 79 IR 9I9TR SR UR 7S] 7T &: 399 Al § SeMesrR foradl
P ATT N D IR B |

o I R aRRequfrl ar fa<ia <gamall & forg: fa<i av &1 Joaira # Seed Suared Jafe &1 SBI-
MCLR /3T¥R &R |

e Ruifér:

AT e Pl Gr=g YelTel (197 ell (CODM) Bl UaTH &l T3 3ridRe Rulfér & sy i fear s
T | DU ® YEeT fAC9Td BT HISTSIH & w9 # forfeed fhar T & ok a8 JeE! & ided, U= & o<l
a9 3R Reafd &7 et H=A iR FfAT fvig o7 & forw STRERY € | HuAT 7 WRMSIgH gRT |FHiferd
I B R TR TGS H AT Yol G & JaTer SR XERE@1a” &7 U Ja-a @ fafed frar 2|

AT, I A—re], FfTHIoT:
HUAT AT/ TR—=Te] TTHRN & AR TR JAT05 H TRAURTIT AR SAATY T Bl © |

[T UREURRT 3R TIATY U &AM Y=TelT dgh iR HUAT A, 2013 BT 3rgega 1l H FeifRa
3T AGS! & AR ATe] AT IR—ATe] & wU H dHihd B T8 € | ITQl @1 TP iR qdhal AR Tl

FHDBE] H THAEPROT 3R D! Wifeq & forg gREURRT & 3ifeRree & d/9 & §99 & IMUR W), Hu o
IRAURRI iR TRl & @Te]/ IR—aTe] aiidRvT & Jaled ¥ 9RE Wel &l 9T Jdared ash HuiRa
frar 2 |




30 fa<ia faavon uwx fewfOrar

(amE Bu)

B faawor 31.03.19 31.03.18
Eal )

1 IR NeAd gRT A1 T hiRkAT TR 124.00 124.00
2 dIUUATA gRT <1dT fhar T € 21.00 21.00
3 faTer {AR Ured & QT A I Ha T g Nl 4.00

JRIEUT (3TGTeAdd! AT WTRS)

4 HZT Vol gRATSHT & ot TATHIIRYAT & gxdiand i 2554.00 2554.00

% foy Su. o W@ uRass i §RT 100% Fdhd
TR R HAT AT YA BT 2554.00 ARG SY BT AR
HIIIST 3R 30 99 & foy arfies Rarad e

5 HET el URASHT & oIt TauHem=ell &1 gxaiaRd 4 N 108.00
% forg g1, sreifwfe g fafcs, d@Ts grT
100% HHA &R TR AN AT A BT 108.00 ARG T
JAfAIRET FATaST IY. ARBR & UF 4. 692/ AS—7—2019

fa=T 14.06.2019 & AR IE < 7T&l B

6 TGS TS AMSS R FHINCST ATS I YA BT 2440.00 2211.00 2440.00
g BU fHxmar (T 4. 3905/LMRC/CPM/1/AAl/Land/
2019 &% 16.07.2019 & IR 228.62 TR YUY B!
AR g IA & AR W Tol @ T8 B | SHBT R

MHRAG <IAT # 2T AT B)
7 TISIUHH! d ¥ Ul Aol & IJAR JUas] H 0T U 1220.85 2960.00
8 TISIUHH! d6 A Yol aeell & IR RN 4 T 95 1894.33 2231.00
9 TGS WSl X URASH & Ja—ufRad dRISR & 9.00 9.00
SR & gRIE & fog 4. faeell 7gl X Baies
10 | fEor @ & IR VeId @ IR YA B 1.67 14.00

JaRR Neld Bl 7F Yodb 14.00 ARG B0 BT Jhe
MHRAPG <TdTd dR TR fhar ar o | 9§ & SR
YAt Neld - IR BT FET BRa 10.17 ARG T
PR T 99 & SR 1017 G BYY BT T b ATUE
8.50 ARG U BT AR BT A fHaT A7 | ART IR
YA B Tg AR & 1 & AR BT Tbe DHRAD
AT @ Wy ¥ fhar T B

—
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11 XA A TR URITAT BT A Bg QAR Neld Bl 7 175.00 895.00
Y[ 895.00 AT FU P UheH MMBNAD <Idl &
AR W far AT o1 | 9¥ & SR YaR Xerd 7 IR0
AT PRD  955.00 G TUY R &I | 9 & GRM
780 TG BUY BT AR HIAM BT TS | ART R T
B AR & 9 & AR BT Udhed AMHRAD Iqdl & w4
# forar wam 2 |

12 | SRS YW & oY TAUHSIRAT & gRIaRd A &g 285.00 285.00
J . BRiIeT 6 fafics, oaTs gRT 100% ddHd
TR W AR Y YA & 285.00 ARG BUY AfTRET FaHIS

DI AT
13 | SUYIRT BRA & FHel cifdd 3rarerd! HMHel & dae o 5.00 5.00
14 | WY ATEN I HAR SHREFAR UL o1 3R UeluwaRsd fol. 0.89 Nl
@ fd STeTerdl qHel & Hay
15 | SOREIS H SIRYA ST, YA BT 4H & ITANT 2953 Mgl

P HeT H IMHRAG <IAT | SR VoId §RT 161.19 AT
SR H1 R ARG TS B[ 131.65 AR TUY Dl AR I
AT ® AR W WHR B T8 | 7 73 IR WHR B
TS I & I FAR Bl MHRAB <IAT $ IR R AR
forar T B |

16 | AR Yod gRT AR ¢ qfdefor YRl & daer 7 | gakax 26.00 Nl
Nd §RT 6.25% I &% I I THR AR T R Y=
3.125% P! &R W BT TAT| AR BT SR YA BT T H
IR B | ART R e & 78 AR & g & 3R &1
Tdhed MHRASG AAT & ®Y ¥ fbar 7 7 |

17 | M¥&R adiet ([4d. 2013—14 | 2016—17 D) 174.76 Mgl

# FERINGT M9 1 1 & SRR ITIRT 7 1. RIRfeT I fafics &1 <a fHw &1 9gar v
JT 3729/LMRC-L-6/2014 faAid 21.6.2019 & AIH I T ARRL S, oRg=e; &I 0T & forw 9o 1ar
2 | 399 WX 3ifore ol e R SHBT ieieh = fohar SIrgaT |

ATH RIS URGURTAT: 37751 BT ARG § U B URT BT 3T HD YRAURRIT 8] & |

2. ufdEgand: 31 A1, 2019 ®I YolNTd @@ § 1 8 99 &R uraem = &y Ty fac= qa1 orgesf |fea
&l I AT MR 55,000.00 AT B ({431, 169725.00 G TU) ¢ |

= ]



3. wifafere d@adas! o Jram:

(cre vud)
faa=or 2018—19 2017—18
SETIRIET Yo 2.00 2.00
PR G Yoh 0.80 0.80
sl
Bl 2.80 2.80

4. U A ARIYRT AT TS BRI BT oAb (BT € RTaeT FHRIGH ShaRl gRT SUSe 1Y T faavor &
JITER TR 17100.00 TR FU (fU.d. 11053.00 TRT TUY) BHI BRIV Yol Alad UrdTs B a1 111 4 far a1
2| $HD JATET HU 7 31.03.2019 Th IR U TRBR A 17100.00 AT SUYY BT AR & ARIGRT I PR

T fhY 2 |

5. 31 91d 2019 Bl &4, Y AR FegH Il & [ae A AT

(" vud)

. §.| faazor 2018—19

2017—18

1 ol ammgfciandl &1 T FapTan M
@) HoIeT
W) S W I 1

4|4 A

2 qeH, 9T 3R #euw Igd fdera Afafgd, 2006 BT R
16 @ Had H SMYfadl &I Fd f&d | W gIae &1 T
RIRT & A1 =TS B

4|4 A

3 YA PR H < (@9 & SRE fbg Fa 7 9 R fay T
Y YIAM) B FAT & ol < IR qIrae Iy fohg e,
g 3R oW Qe faem «ifdfrad, 2006 @ dEd fAfde
) v I I S ) v e I

4 gId IR I 7 {6y Y g1 &t &1 i

4|4

5 3Tl a¥ # ¥ 99 IRIG, 519 T ged, g 3iR T
S e ifafFem, 2006 @1 GRT 23 & Ted el AR
Y B AR R SRAPA & Iqa ¥ IWAd & JJAR
BIC I DI I TSl &I aRAd H  IAE el [haT
ST, T TS DT < AR YA ARG BT AR

4|4

—
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IR €T D] &) Udbed IVETY

6. AR AW A (3 TCH)—1 G99 7 Udhe: fa<ha faawon &1 yrgfaa<or: gl yeeT |
HUT S Goll Tae BT WTAfAd e IRYRE I Bl MAHTH HIAT € | BN FOLS(ITC! ST BT SUANT
HRA BY Yol Bl R BT 2, ST A1l BT Bl Yoil gIRT [A9TITT STeipTield 0T & | 30T Sfdac! guTd

: QUCIREE)
faazor 31 ATd, 2019 31 9Td, 2018
Ea) E|
(®) BT FT 4,61,205.00 2,75,405.00
(@) Bl goll 2,04,100.00 1,89,792.00
FoI: sfdad] U (b /@) 2.259 1.451

FUA B Yol YEEE & Sqavd o, Yol # SR Yol ofR srden Sifad ¥R smaeH ¥ wnfie 21 For
# drarfers FoT iR SenRat e €

7. ARAH d@l 4 (3 UTH) —17 “AINIl” B G A Hbed

®. DU A BHATRAT B oIy TRER <fiot / fR1y R fo7g € | A &fioT FaReITy 3 IR IR IRER w5 4 F8dd
Al R TG Bl &, 9§ & SR HU 7 183.53 g TUY (fU.d. 206.87 G TUY) & <ol fhvIy &l
AT T B 3R & 1 Har rard & forg ot farg & o & dea wnfie s 2 |

(e v93)
EEIGE RS UH a9 ¥ U 9 9 e ig a9 9
e LY R uig ad q HA 3fere
9Te] a9 (2018—19) 51.86 12.00 66.00
fUwel a9 (2017—18) 120.49 78.10 69.00

W HUAl A Il A aReuRR uféal &I gREred ofiel 3R WR ol R o § | IR—FR&d R0
GRET eflol & T&d U ST RIAAH ofiol [T =i feam 1 &:

(cirE ©ud)
EEICE RG] Udh a9 ¥ Ueh a9 9 Aftra gig 9§ ¥
e 1l IR uig o q HA
e a9 (2018—19) 961.98 3531.49 3846.64
fUgel a¥ (2017—18) 0.09 259.31 2605.93

T HYA BT GRISHT BRITAT TSl HTA, STHUT dI0TR, EORTIS, dd-d d Red o@qs; faadr
AR (LDA) & URAER # RId 2| SR uRER & P17 ¥ Hefod Jgar orfl vy & Ui
faarre= € | 59 uRRefaal #, @18 foxmar ywiRa =781 fhar 71 € 8k S9a §RT 39 Al R 3ifaH

Aol foTT 99 R $9dT oiRgidh AT STe |

—




q.

b.

B! A URATTAT & BRI 5 SRART Uee / fhR1g R 4 o1 2 3R 9 @i d & SR, ool
/ ThRTT UR 100.65 &R B ({431, 113.92 TR TUY) BT YA (a<iT a9 2018—19 H fhar AT 7 |

8. URAI &€l 4P (Ind AS)-19 “HHARY 19" & G§¢ H Ybed
fafor aRIT SHaR @t o AreTTrsil & AT faaReTr fF=Tgar &

wfasg fofer:

DU B Wiy (e 1 yeier &=y widsy (i smge g7 fban Sirar € | due ga—fHeiRd <R R wfds
ffr 3 YT sfere™ FHRell B | ST BT UG MR TR AT a7 ST § |

Jgd:

BT B VP URATNT A UG AT & | TP HHART Sil Ui ATel T 39 AP B FRaR Har
USTH AT 2, 98 STfafiar, Rmrus, fshrae iR fermdar a1 91 8 W WaT & ¥3S gof a¥ & oy 15
& & 979 (15 /26* 3ifcH 3MERT HeT I 3R HEMTS da+ AR FAEMS ¥<1) BT ST UG B Bl
THER B | 39 SEQYT W TP HIfT 918 TS © |

G ST BT Yae= WRAT St 97 5974 (LIC) g7 foham STl 8 g forg oei = ARex Uifor e 2 |

29 It BT fauIyor ST §RT {61 ST © | $€ UUE—19 & dad ITUTerd SIM®NT & dhe diHifhd
AP & ATAR AR T A B SR TR < Pl A [HAT TATE |

ATy, FHU AR Siae 97 fT IR @0t 978 AT & 1R A1 # sfere ™ v <& 2|

gfafgfaa aret weriRal @ SifaRad TagAIRdt SHHaRAl & Hae #, Ul 7 TSl & #regd |
T AT ot 8 R U SHar) a1 & Ydd ot 9y & forg uee &1 @ oifw smeRa 907 &
FAGS BIIGI BT THaR © | T8 AT H TRIR 81 AT HaATGIT ST 7 Ugel & TR YA A7 2 | I§ o™
uiE a¥ &I FFRAR 9T & 978 UT 81T © | 9 A1 &1 Jaee Uaie il gIRT fasar 97 & | fasT av 2018—19
S SR TR BT < 133.73 AT B, U4, 188.93 TRI U & 3fTETH & SR UR AR B T8 B
T T faawer A fam T 8

(= $u)

faa=or f¥r (emE $ud) af¥ (e $ud)

faa. 2018—19 faa. 2017—1s

EIGESEIRSIE] 126.76 185.16

Tt Wi 6.36 3.77

A 133.12 188.93
UIH:

HHANT LR UM AT BT TGeH FeibaliesTT HaRIe it 3f$Ar g1 fhar S 8 | I8 Arorn
IHfeTd B IR HUN BT IMA@ AMIhd FHARI & Ho 99 B 2.5% & A T QAT © | a1 &g
AT ¥ 3R BT UG AER TR HHAN] AN & d8d GHeIPd [Ha1 S © | Jfafgfaa arel
HHATRAT © Fag H, Y G DI T ol FIST /R TRHR & RIAT & AR B Il 8 AR
I UG AR UR T ST & |

g

DU Y HHATRAT BT AT Geel o (Ufyfd srguRerfa |fzd) &iiR srdf—aa+ gedl e &l 8, Sl
Ty 3 AT 30 AT 37R 20 &1 H AT BT € | B AH<IBROT AR Gl Wil H el $T AdRd I8+
TR U dhole] 9y H U g 31X Afafdr wR s1feraa™ 300 a1 &1 gfecal (IR—TaaidbRor Ay 3R fa=

—
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UM B AT—dd Gfcedl Aled) BT THaIBRT BIAT & | $H WA DI SIAT dHIfhd JeIh B R TR
A= B STl © | wfAfrgfad arel SaenRal & deaer d, ged! da- e S o (9 ol el da-
(FEITS 9T iR faRIY 90+ Afed ot 909) & 11% B &R F I © AR SHST oI U AR TR
fopar ST 2 |

AT & AfIRaT TeuHsR™ HHaATRAT & | 3, Gl AHaIdRoT BT dMifhd Jedidd Uh
i gRT fohaT 71T 3R TEJAR oikdT afeli iR faxirg fdavon # =1 v ¥ S wra fag 1 & —

TG SR gl THSIHRoT B ToETRN & uRIH 71 o 2:

Fraa aRwrfa @ <l
QUcRaE))
faavor G=gd (feauifya) |ged (R—fauifya)
(e $ud) (e Tu)
IRETYT & 1R &1 9aA Hed | @na. 246.45 627.69
fua. 265.98 624.26
Ao Rl &1 3fd qo 1. 437.07
faa. 286.01 -
IIoTT | Srferery A7 (%mer) 14, 190.61 -627.69
fa. 20.03 -624.26
RINEI C{qdldﬁ U SITHT THIATSTA l1.d. -152.72 -343.50
fua. 76.63 139.91
gl Fael aRu9f¥a o9 qiRcs | =na -42.94 3.42
fa. 210.19 442.56
FiorT uREuRa § daed
faawor A=gd (faauifya) | gedl ([R—faauifya)
(o Tu) (amE Bu)
99 & IRY H gREufrl &1 4. 286.01
I g . 94.93
IrorT gR¥ATREl @ IRMe Sferd 1a. 0
R ISRIRISE fua. -1.63
T 31 (+) 1. 21.45
fa. 6.17
Irorr aREYREl R ufowd, & | =ra. 1.96
IR BreaR (+/-) fua. 1.23

—



Tt gRT IR (+) 1. 127.64
faa. 185.32
AISHT ARIERI §RT 3P (+) 14,
fug.
I by T A () a1d.
fug.
FIAT FANH (+) IR Fged (<) | =na.
fua.
AR () 14
fug.
a¥ @ 3fd # gREuRRmal &1 14 437.07
Stada e faa. 286.01
g fa o <Rl § daeq
faaxor T=gd (fauifta) | ged @R—faxuifia)
(AITE BU) (A" JUd)
Y & IRY H gRwIvT f&a o 1. 265.98 624.26
FIN] faa. 48.38 181.71
1] HaT AR (+) 13 111.28 300.11
fua. 136.59 290.84
TS AT (+) 1. 19.94 46.81
fa. 3.15 11.81
SHIfh® AT H aRac 1.4, -116.36 -241.56
™ (=) /' (+) fug. 60.87 129.83
fa<irr srgml # gRad= | o™ =14, -110.04 -263.60
o (=) /=1 (+) faa 108.41 177.31
FqHd FHRISH (+/—) 14, 75.64 161.66
fug. 91.41 -167.23

—




THUR & o™ (—) 3R 81 (+) 14, - -
fua. . .
IrorT gfer TR gRT *fere ™ (+) 1A, : .
fua. - _
AT BT I () 1. - -
fua. - .
FIATT [ (+) iR e () 4. - -
fua. : .
FATET (-) 3. - -
fua. . .
af @ 3id # uRwifa fga am | =na 246.45 627.69
HIDR . 265.98 624.26
T It g1 # A= R o @
faaxor T2 (fauifta) | ged @AR—faxuifia)
(AITE BUA) (AT JUd)
e HaT AT (+) 1. 111.28 300.11
fug. 136.59 290.84
TS ART (+) 7. 19.94 46.81
fua. 3.15 11.81
ST 3T (+) 13, 21.45 -
fua. 6.17 -
e aRWiYa o <Iar w® ra. -1.50 46.81
IEEEECIN| fuq. -3.03 11.81
el a1 amTd (+) 4. - -
fa. . .
THIETE AT (+) AT BT 1. - _
fua. - _
AT AT B A A e A 214 109.78 346.93
. 133.56 302.65

—




3T ATID I H HIRT T T8 AT

faavor T (fauifa) [gedl @R—faaufya)
(T BU) (T BU)
3 ATIE AT | A FHol A Gl -152.72 -343.50
fa. 76.63 139.91
Jrer uREufar § frder a1 siof
fraer a1 g gRATSr aREuirl & IFId Joa a1 %
31 I AT H AT Gl TR0 100%
dHifhs srgar
faazor d=gdl (faaifda) gedl (IR—fa<rurfya)
ggad fafer =14, AT SdhTs fse fafer AT SdhTs Wise fafer
foa. AT SahTg hise fafer AT SahTg hise fafer
B EICH 7.50% gfer a9 7.50% fer ay
. 7.50% 9fT 99 7.50% 9fc 99
a4 gfg & EICH 8% ufal a9 8% ufT
fOa 10% 9fcr & 10% 9fcr a9
AR TEYoT / EICH 3.5% ufcr a 3.5% 9 a9
CLERS IS
fOa 0% ufcr oy 0% gfel &y
g X 1.9 | MEYUATH 2006-08 JUeAS! BT 100% | STETYATH 2006-08 FUAS! BT 100%
U9 | smguTeiud 2006-08 YUE BT 100% | ATETTATH 2006-08 TS BT 100%

. GdeTefiaar fagavor 3R g | Irar:

1. Gagaeferar fageryor

AT A H 31 9T 2019 &I GATK | 31 AT 2019 B AT
gRad= fa<ia o (arg v9d) | fa<fig o (ar@ vuR)
g 0.50% (20.91) (49.06)
-0.50% 23.69 55.50
ERECIFSCH 1.00% 49.93 116.59
-1.00% (39.57) (92.92)
o JaTpifcr & 1.00%
-1.00%
Fafbedr garemif &” 1.00%
-1.00% - -
g = +3ay (0.12) (0.29)
39y 0.08 0.21

—
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2. gAIfrd fad o garaE

%. 9. AT BT ay gl ThaIbRoT F=gd
1 31-A1-20 21.91 0.86
2 31-414-21 40.02 8.71
3 31-A19-22 23.01 7.76
4 31-419-23 23.98 8.43
5 31-ATd-24 25.00 10.54
6 31-419-2025 9 31-4719-2029 159.97 64.97

9 WRIN d@i® AFS (5 vud 21) “faceh ga1 fafra <0 A uRads & yve” @ 999 4 ude:
B, o™ 3R B fdaxor #§ wfse fafvm sidx f¥r (Maer) 0.013278 oIg ¥9 (3. 0.01287 oRT ) 2 |

g S /HISeTsyl FHESH! § AlfGd Aal @ WUIaRYT & BRUT 1010.46 oG $9 (fU.d. 824.00 g
Tu) 1 fafa ofax ¥ wfmfera 2 1

10. 3 UUH 24 "G4 us UweAl ” & Heg H UdbeH
(®) = ydga H1ii®:
1. #ll FAR BIE, 9 s
2. &1 Ao s, quidTfors Feers (Gad g ShRgaer)

3. 3 Hew BAR, PidbIerd Faerd (I wib e Rew)
4.t 31T HId AR, QoidTierd fFaer (faw)
5
6

. 0 G BAR, Yoiaifera Maera (TR@me) (25.10.2018 ¥)

(@) H&fera varl (W ydgad H1ffal) F Su S ATl BT Udbe:

faazor 2018-19 (AT@ JUA) | 2017-18 (ATE@ JUA)
I R W 232.80 123.16
qfgsr (A o s fAifer, I=get oik 20.12 18.11
SECICIE I RN S|
=T AT 17.85 16.32
o (A arrg A i) 270.77 157.58
SR uTRsIAE & orfaRad,
1. QUIBI® Qe Bl Sl & I & IR Tl & & DU & WIHE Bl BR D ITIRT (ol
PIEISIRIEDEIIEEINECRIER S

2. f33 2018—19 & SR BT 3T=T UeT & AT 3T Blg oI-e ol (b7 7T |

—



11 S UUI—33: 3ol Ufd IR & e § Ybe:

1. o 37 Ui WUAR DI 0T 3fFC! IRRYRST DI AR @ & Faal o™ a1 81 H o/@afd & SR
IHIAT SfFac] IR BT T HIRT AT | AT DR DI STl © | UfT TR afAf3ig ol &1 ToHr &
ST T BT AT 37AfS & SR IHTAT IRRT Bl IR & HIRT A bl FATAINTT e S=7 anfav |

(atfera =T 100 / —BU TfY TRR)

faazor 2018-19 ((TF ¥UA) | 2017-18 (TG TUA)
™ UG B f3aRoT & AR R, 94 -7211.16 -2538.28
3rafey qHRArSHl vd fUsel auf & @R

RISl & 916 a9 (ARg TW)

I Sfdac IR @ A IR de:

ol 1923.21 997.45
KGR 2021.79 1586.62
e 35 Ui IR (FHR) -3.75 -1.70
(3ifrd e 100 / —Bu URT WR)

JafHf3a aroid Uf IR (JUY) -3.57 -1.60

12. ARG dWid H-D YT, ATHRAD SIdr AR ATHRTS IRGURTA & Adel § Ube:

(@ ud #)

faaxor 01.04.2018 &I a¥ & IR a¥ & TR 31.03.2019 &I
IRMS Ay qfg / siavor SLDIR sifow ey

REUREISAESASIE 696.97 85.71 74.19 708.49
=2p) 1259.20 1378.63 1139.42 1498.41
Bl 1956.17 1464.34 1213.61 2206.90
faa—or 01.04.2017 &Y a¥ & RE a¥ @ <IRE | 31.03.2018 HI
IRAS oY qf& / siaror YA sifos 2w

SEUREISESICH 231.31 514.39 4872 696.97
D] 424560 1147.80 4134.19 1259.20
E| 4476.90 662.18 4182.92 1956.17

“
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13. s Uy 107 “fa<iia foraa: ydea” & Geer & Udbed
fa<ira forea
1. gvfiar fa<da faaa
SroNaR fa<iia fored! &1 98+ 9o 741 IR &

fqazor 31 A1 2019 & IITAR 31 A1 2018 & AR
Forenfera | gwdIdY UohdY | Forenfoa | uedid
EINEG] fua | anias ARTd fiua
(ar@ ¥) | (@m= H) | (@ #) (ar@a ®) |[(@rE H/)
BEUT — — — J— —
3=y fa<ira uReufr 174843 - - 650.38 -
(dle 5 9 9 W)
IR U - - - - -
Tl SR Dbl A 126792.43 - - 119127.86 -
(Are 8 <)
Ex| _ — _ _ _
SURAT (AIe 14 <) 461205.00 — — 275405.00 —
3= fo<i <aamd 28789.60 | 28788.20 - 25905.39 |25901.92*
(AT 15 T 19 <)
IR < (Al 18 <) 823.85 - - 361.57 -
Hd - — _ _ _

*317 faxirr # Sari ok Iresn! | ufenyfar iRt wfiafora € |

2. SfUd 4ol UaTIHH:
ot Rerfer & faavor # S Jou W #1971 78 fa<iia Jufrat ok <adTd S Je uaTgehd & O
wRi H affed @t 78 8 | A @ forg Aewayef g qe @1 fammeiiadr wR emRa b R Ry fag
T E:
IR 1: Qi IOIRI H FaE (47 foradl IR Sgd Hed (GRS difes A aRikg FeffRa o i
b |

TR 2: Aihd IRI § RIAR &1 fby 7 i foradl o1 3o ge FeiRd &= 7 Jearia adb-ip]
BT AT ST 2 T AT RO II6TR $9YS9 BT YART 98T 3R JFATawId 1S BT YANT
g g |

W} 3: I T AT AP Aedyol $9Ycy [GaR aoiR $YSH UR AERT el 8, AT forad &1 Sferd
o UGTH & WX 3 H qHfid fohar S & |

“



3. FUrENfeE darrta W wifda fa<ha uREuRmn / <aand e foag sfaa ge uaes fear 1@ 2:

(ar@ #)
fara=or R 31 9wrd 2019 @I 31 9rd 2018 I
Feorenfera Sfaa | Fvrafea Sfua
IR 1 IR qed
fa<hra aRufr:
T TR 2 — — — —
= foxfa uR<ufram TR 2 1748.43 1748.43 650.38 650.38
([Ale 5 9 9 <)
el - - - -
fa<ha <¥amg:
= fo=ig <Idmg TR 2 28789.60 28788.20 25905.39 | 25901.92
(Are 15 9 19 <)

4. fua qea FaiRa o9 @ fov ygaa qeaiea ae-a 3R ufspar

1. 12 A ¥ HF gRugEd arell fa<i aREURRT 3R <aamei &7 98+ Jed S9dT Sfd oI S
T AT ST 2 |

2. FOTINET AT R FebTet 7Y o= iy aREURAIT iR <uarei & Sfd geg &1 FeiRer d@ieT
T AT & SR IR GE &R BT SUANT HRd §U hal YaTe Bl Ge gIRT fbdT S 2 |

13.2 fa<ira siifew gaa=
3. fa<ia Sifes R
U ORI foreal & ey # AR SRgH! 1 3awd & | 5ol & AFAR HUsl Bl [T gR{uRm iR
YA HWR FEY § TS ¢ | SIREH & G IR IIoIR SIRIH, 0T SIREH fR TRerdl SiiRgH 8 | U+l

BT SRIH Faer 1ReR A< IRl | WD Bl HF TS HUA D ofg I FLIH AW & TAhal HaTg bl
Aiha U F GRIET PR TR Dl © | U b THeT T4 Ao qol foxig SReH| &1 goie i faam T &

ECAC IS IEES IIECE: |

IR SIRgH U BT <2l JaT SIREH 8 | BT B Pls TSl &% SIRIA 61 © adifs HUT BT ol
ST I U FH0T Bl YA et Bl AIAROT a1 & SR IR &7 &% A1 fAfdad <ol av w2 |
A1 &, HUH BT Hed SRgH A1 21 2 FIfb B & U Geae fo=ig IREuRT 721 2 |
I SAR—aeE BT SIRaH 9RT & d18x | GURT FIF IR IUBRY & AT & HROT ¢ | [ ga1
SR & JRETT & g HU=T & T DTS RN fored 78 2|

T, wfse wifem
ST SIREA FHTIeR UTSt §RT A IIE BT gh & IRTHARERY faxii JHdr & SIRgd o Hefid 7 |

HUT 1 fafde foxii foradl o= U9 SiIRg SaTeR0T & fol enRal @l ¥, el o wiferar, ufenyfa
ST TS BT Udbe [T | RUféT arig 1R siee SRed &1 ifdraan Tt 987 WU 9 74 JdR Bl

“
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g ol & T qea A 2 |

— AHE] AR Thal FAG

— IR YT

— FEOTNRIT SIITd U= ATUT 78 37 fa<iig gR&ufrar |

HU AR ATED] 3R 3T PSR Ul BT g DI R Bl 8, AfdTd dR IR Iferd e,
TEN) shfse ST 3 fafed Hl § @R/ IT UTEh! 3R 7 HISex gl wR Ruld urad iR START &
S 2 |

pfse SifReH ygaa

THdl AR Thal GHG

TH4! 3R FHa! AAged J Hafdd sfec SR &1 ydge FMieRl &1 g arftsas dof S v
Rord d &1 e AR & 2129 €, % Yaa fohar S @ 3R 571 d9fdhw Hdel &) Iera|r SR i
e BT ST 2 |

I fa<fra alRkeufrai
3= faRTrg URAURTAT BT AU SRURITET NI UR T ST & 3R $9H $ls JHd Fel & |
g sfse oA

B T SR IR JATRIT ST JHAT BT UTGET B 2

AR YT

IR AT BT JHAT T4 BIAT © Sfd YT §IRT IR TR AT & foIY HRIQ 7Y GGl [aeetyor &
IR WX Gl AT | A ST © | DUl B I H SIRIad 941 fa<ira aReufral e Jaam
TE1 83T B 3R oI allerel yes R arial iR < €, a1 SfSe Joran ars 2 |

Feorenfera srfv R 3= fa<iig uREuRkray &1 |+

HHAR] 0T W AT ST SIRGH BT 0 AT ST 2 difch 0T I AURT 3 Grfard & o foy
FHHATRAT BT F0T HoR (BT ST 2 | 379 3 fa<iig uREufrl | Hafta shise SRaA &7 yaer Ul 1T
B FRIR 9Gell @1 FIRET 3)as fHa1 ST &, Said NidRe F==er yomell I8 gHkad a=dl 2 b
IR aRifya et & fiar 8 | g9 fach aRfufrl o) v RaféT akg o fasiy Jaar &
TR 12T & | BAR faaR 3 R arig! = wf SwRiad faxira aReufral o et sfee a2

. dxeldT Sl fRayg

AR TRAT SRRl DI TR AR AR AT ey STFATT & SR TR Bl S & | DU & aRerdl & TqE
AT Thal AR THa! Fed, Yol H Icu=l oI, SISl U ATHdBIeTeh 0T, TSl o FelTeer F 0T,

YRR Yofl 3R TETH & |
B9 FThal FaTel &I FRAR FRRFT &fR Tehal 1R el FHgedl MR @R 37U+ TReTdl STo’al Bl
T4 B &, BT B IR B fofg faet Feal Sevdl $1 a1 Suae Fdhal ¥ I SR © |

JFTTf T TReAdT 3TUeT H Heed: fAfder TFaR, <7 o™, HHaR] <3, UfagRYT 3R Iid RarféT arig &
TR HREAR & A FTER & AR Icaa ST IR et 8l € | 89 U TeudbIfeld aRerd]
SJUEITY G-I Rl & Ty el 3TR Tehal Foged! H Ul Ao 1Y R & |

“




B FHI—HT WR AHpIfereh TR JAUTTAT BT JAThel 3R AR FAE & HAIH H DT Tdg
FRA © | AR IR—ATe], SIS H Sl 0T, ATol Jal FARel 0T, RO R SHRIRAT iR

HHART T DY TIATY I & |

14. s RUIfér (Ind AS 108)
YT B IRATAAT H, 3 TTH 108—TRATAT W & dad JAT uferd RuIfeT dRITR / HiMiferd @s & dad |
BT Uh BRIAR TS — HET Vel G BT YaTer AR IERETd 2 & |
S UTH 108—UREATE WS § URAINT e edIv” & AR WR, G Yarer FuRIddl Bl & Hrhle
PHRATR |
TEIAR, $7 @A &3 & AT TGN IR BT T8 7, o9 §8 ud 108—aRared @ & 0x7 13 4
ATATHS T 6 MR IR gRATT fham Tam &
(e #)
faaor 2018—19 2017—18
HIR—§IaT ol 1079.96 435.45
R-—BIR i o 424.05 119.95
Amfore @s
P IRT b HdR TamerT HRal 2 3R fafde Sikaat iR ufdwer arer anfefe Aeie & wemer F8) &xal © |
$feTY, 39 Udhel YITIfoTh T H HaTferd HIFT ST & |
UG UTed] & dae A JaT
31.03.2019 BT FHTT I8 H U UTEH—SIIRYT B fAfies o HUT & IToTd § 10% T 31feh, 221.47 G
YR BT ARTET T |
Uoel 99 & afidel Bl =Te] Iy &I TR H JATATI T4 & 1Y, Aaedd B R, Y-850 / I FaRerd
/ gt farar T 2 |
BRI FAIRHI BT Aot RUE & AR
$d I.YH. YT s HUAT s dsd & fag 3k S9Ia1 3R 4
IS YhrSccd

Th3TRT: 0007731

g0/ — g0/ — 80/ —
(shed graen) (FIR ®3Q) (35T ®ia )
RIEC yder fevrs e faa
e, 9. 408990 SI3MSTH: 02908695 SIBMSU: 07228424
JRIATEUA: 19408990AAAAAAB402 y
80/ —
M AEGTS (gear d@r)
fa=Ti®: 27.07.2019 HUAl Afed

“
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Indian Audit & Accounts Department
Office of the Principal Accountant General
(Economic & Revenue Sector Audit), U.P.,
"Audit Bhawan" TC-35-V-1,Vibhuti Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Lucknow - 226010

(amfie Ud XTSI <IETaRIE), S
"ATfSe wae" SRAI-35-V-, fafar wos,
AT TR, eET19—226010

e - .91 /s @1/ LMRC /2018—19 / 188 fadi®: 28 RiawR, 2019

dar ¥,
g fAe e,
9IS Al ¥ dRURIH fafies
yemafe ¥waq, fafts gvs, mudl R,
RG-S — 226 010

ERIEU

TAAE HU! IS 2013 T ORT 143(6)(b) & NI aT@S gl Yol dRURYA feifics &
31 AT, 2019 B FHC I & Q@RI R 9RT @ 9d Yd ARTETINIETd BT SIhl— WOl HFl
AR, 2013 BT 9RT 143(6)(b) & Fa=Al & FTERVT H HHIAI BI TS HAT 968 & FHET T[T DY
Tq ST &I S 38 & | HUAT I ATHII 96% & FHeT 391 SIdb—{CwfOrll & WRd {3 T &1 arefaes
forfey @ e < |

The Report has been prepared on the basis of information furnished and made
available by the auditee. The Office of the Principal Accountant General (Economic and
Revenue Sector Audit), Uttar Pradesh, disclaims any responsibility for any misinformation
and/or non-information on the part of auditee.
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31 91 2019 B WHTW gU 98 & l¢ d@ss AGl Xl HIUieA fafics &
fa<ia faaron wx Su arferfrm, 2013 Y &RT 143(6) (W) @ idd 9Rd &
9% vd aererErues &1 feufory

31 | 2019 B FATK §Y Y & folY TS, ALT Nl DU ferfice & iy fdaror syt siferfra¥, 2013
(erfrfe) & siaefa fFafRa faxia RUIféT el & AR TR &A1 BUAl & YaeH &7 SaRaNId 2 |
A @1 gRT 139(5) AT 139(7) & I 9RA & RIFG T4 Asla@INied g1 Fgad Hifafde
SIETINIETD JATATTIH B GRT 143(10) & A FETRT AQTIRIET TR AT & AR TATIH DI LRT 143
@ T WAH oRATIRIET TR AR i faaxoil w39 erad a3 & forg Saver 8 | fiFied 27 Jerrs
2019 I I9TdH! IATONIET RUTE & AIEH | AT fohar ST Ui BT € |

Y, R & FRI5® 3R AETeIETIRIETd B TR |, 31 ATE 2019 BT AT Y & folU I+, HST Xl BIARI
fofice @ faxiia faaxor @) e &) aRT 143(6)(@) & ST TR IGTIRIET B & | TE X IETaNIE
QifAfEd oRITIRIETD & BRI UAT BT < 991 Wiz WU I B T © R GITAT Fifdedh r@rierani iR
HUHI BIHDT A YBATS AR BB @idhd Rapret &1 Fafrd Sia a6 A 2 |

U TRATINET o IR TR, H AT BT &7 143 (6)(W@) & i+ FAfeTRad Seoiag Tl &1 ool
PRAT TS B S AR &I 3 371Y & 3R S 4 ToR H iy faavon ik Gefoa oramdien Ruic & daad”
SEER SR IC K RICICRDE

&.  fa<ha Rerfa ur fewformn:
qor 9
CR LY
I AT *FATY: (1T ¥. 20): 89.59 HRIS TUA
IR Veld (NR) 71 28 HRaXT 2018 & 31U UF & AIEIH I AR WAHl IR N Bl [ Bl TR BT Bl
IFART & oI HUT A 34.30 PRIS BUY & URIHA Yoo Dbl AN BT | IFH I HUN 1 2015—16 B
TR 33.06 BRIS SUY ST fPU | 1.24 BIIS BTI B cifdd A9 BT AMBRAD <IdT [SE@RT 7T © |
Tfh, HU IR YAd DI 3 AR BT A B & forg e 8 3R wder gy oifierat # +ff g4

AR a1 M1 &, o afedi # 8 MHRAS SIdT & wd | ST ST 781 & | 39 IR
FTe], AT & AT B Hrieie Yol (CWIP) U H 1.24 BRI S BT HH 3ich {1 AT T |

3fdad 3w <uang
9Tl S FATY
3= fa<ira Saaid (Ale 4. 19): 275.80 HIIS U

(2) (i) SR YA 7 IEMETIR IR STANTST ¥eld I & 414 ¥eid ol YA & oy verd are o -ifd &
AR BUA H 9.55 BRI B B URITHA Yodb Dl AT B | BTN, BT =1 g9 B QR 7.80 BRIS
B BT YA BT 3R WY 1.75 BRIS ST DT D RHAD I D U H @i (T |
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Ffth BUA SR X BT 57 Yodbl BT YA B B [oT7 G 8, HU DI 7.80 PRIS U DI
IO 9.55 BRIG BUY BT XTI IR Toi HRAT AN off | $HS UROMAT: i uRFuRrdl (A
BT START B & SADHR) 3R 2Te] AN H 1.75 RIS TSI U BT B4 3ieh (a1 T 7 |

qY¥ 2017—18 & foIU IRT & FRIFF 3R HeTeiaT TieTsd o Rurd § fewof fey o= @
qIS]E DUl GRT DHadt ATREH FIRTHS HRATS DI T3 & |

(i)  HSA XeTd Yagd BT URR, BORASl § BU §RT ARIN—SRASl YT faedR
& forg 1 & SUANT & oy ITR Neld =1 Xerd a1 §RT SN AT feenfHcel & 4R, 1.
61 RIS BYU & ATAN Yo DI AN DI | BUAT 7 ThUeld BT I 1.32 PRIS Y Bl Il
WIHR BR &l & AR a9 B R 3 IRAYRT & w4 H YfH BT ITINT B & AEBR DI
USHIepd fehaT & | 219 0.29 RIS BUY DI ATHRAD Il & WU H ST TATE |

T HUAI IR NeTd BT 59 Y| BT YA B & [T G &, HU Pl 1.32 BRI Y D
IO 1.61 BIS BT DI YRI AR Tof R+ AT oY | 37D YR o URAURRN (A
BT ITINT B & AfABR) 3R AT ITATAT H 0.29 BRIS TUY BT HH 3T [HIT TAT T |

(3)  3ra are uRHURMI: (Al 4. 11): 16.56 HRIS BUA

HET DI AR A (AT 1T 8.86 HRIS TUY HT I ATMAS © o1 71 WM & T WR a9
o SITQT | fd, ' IR 3 Rl ¥ Adha A7 [l o= ki uReufl & wu 4
N AT €, Sl £ YU 32 @ Qe & SR §8 3T ATe] URHufrat (Fre—11) @t
oI 3= foxiy IR|URTAT (Ale—9) & d8d ST ST =Ty off | 3/ UROIH: 377 T
TRETRTAT H 8.86 BRI ST BT AfD b= fhar TATR |

Ty 2017—18 & foIg YRA & A= 3IR FeTeRdl wWierds & Rurc # 3T g 9 & aras
HUH ERT PIS GIRIHS HIRATS o1 DI T8 & |

¥, YUded R fewforar
fo<ia faavor W fewfran (Ate 4. 30)
ATH D TIATY

@) SR WY AN Ud faer aRye (UPAEVP) H B4 WReR /aRye gRT v g fofa &
JUTE H T T HIRST ATS & oy IR a¥ & foly Haex 9 3R Haex 19 H HHLT: U
BFCIR 3R 38.268 71 AR YA M@ & & | (A9 Pl A 15.01.2016 AR 01.07.2016 BT
T8 A 4.04 T T 3R 6.18 TG TUY AR BRI UR Srafed o1 75 off | Jarggdrdr 9
FHSIAT (IS BT 3R DI & I Bl SRR FAT B, <ifeh 70 =7 1 a1 |Heirar
enfed foar &R 71 €1 o/ I BIg AR BT A fbar | U= 7 R e Aafvige &
AT ¥ fR1g & FHIiReT BT AHer SoR © S S9a fory Aot mftravor 2 |

“




Tfh HUAl HT JUTSAU DI fIRIT & A HT AioeT S 2, gafelt 39 109 37 &
IRTITH 10 B Gy H MHRAD IdT & wu § If3d fhar S arfzu |

fa<ia faavor ur fewforar
= sfdad) (Ae 9. 13): 92 BRIS vUA

(5) SWRIGT H HUAI B AT YART B ITdcH B ol TR Yoll 3R & oy HUT §RT IR
TQY WRBR ;Bdvag | UK 16.00 HRIS TUY (HRENT 2018) A € | HUAT DI AfAB Goft
100 BT & 20 HRIS AR H 9IRS BT 78 &, ST DUl g1 Uel &1 gRI IRe ¥ ayafed
R QAT AT 2 | 59 UPR, B 79 AP UIR SIRI 781 B UG 5Td T Bl Dbl ATt
Yol T | 121 fHaT SIrar | HU= §RT i@l W fTwfOrif § 39 T2 & Udhe fha

ST AT T o |
HRd & 9 3® Ud HeTaaraiers
@ fag sk s 3k @
AT: AETS (craa f¥=er)
fe<rie: Rrdex, 2019 YT ARTAETHIR
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HU-T I 2013 @ aRT 143 (6)(W) @ favia Awsh Ruid & Gad #
U9 9. § W1 /HUN €T/ TATHIARYT / 2018—2019 / 188 fa-Iid 28.09.2019
& HIEgH A Y9 b SN

31 FTe], <IAM: (AT H. 20: 89.59 TS TU)

IR VAd (NR) 7 28 HRAR 2018 & AU UF &
AT 9 IR WM W VoAd B [ DI IR B Bl
AT & foTY BUN & 34.30 FRIS TUY & TR
Yob DI AN B | SAH F BUAI T 2015—16 B
TR 33.06 BRIS BUY ST B | 1.24 BRIS U
@ ST U BT MHRAD e fa@mar 7m & | 9fes,
BT IR NS DI $9 R BT A B & foIg
e 2 iR Hee g1 ifferal # f 38 WierR fhar
AT 7, oikdT Ifedl # 39 SMHRAS <ual & Wy A
Tl Sferd 78l | g URoTHG: ATe] <dd B
|1 & HRIEE Yol (CWIP) UR1% H 1.24 IRIS
TY BT HH 3 fHar T2 |

Y 2017—18 & foI0 YRT & S R A-rerar
WRieth H Rard § /T fHg 99 & IrasE du+
ERT BIS GIRTHAB HNATE T bl TS 2 |

(®)

)

.| dEE® BT el TATHIRH &1 ST

1. (@) fa<ha Rearfa w= fewforn $S QUH 37 H ool & AR ATHRAD IR DI TRATT
Tl U _ BT HH forar oy |
NEESICINCR I DI IMHRAD I &
gaae ¥ TR

el TeRl W e wwIfad 1iia 3R foraer iRkda

Jfas 3§ g3 TRE BUH B AT F R VB AT AWD

e e afed 8 a1 8N A I &, A1

T7e], ST T freelt Temsil 9 Soue fhg A 78 ®

FRifh:

() I8 G99 T © b anfrp ol &l AThR -
qrel ATl BT 9fgars TR & AR & forg
Gﬂﬂ'f%ﬁm;m

(i) <RI &1 Il &1 vt favaa=iaar | |9+ \8t
o ST T |

TATHIR &7 faoR § f g7 TRl &1 mefRed
TR BT GRUTST & TEd STfSrhaT = 2fHet fahar
2 Fif I8 I MEHRHS TS ofdr 8, 39 =Ror #
ey fAf¥ea 71 & | S0 ol SuRT AT B |

IR VAd o UIUHRIRAT g1 uRares Igaedl
(@forigsd TRt & forg =721) & for SuarT & oA
arelt A o forg, fafe Tl W verd A & IR o
AT B TAITHSIRI WR SIgH &1 Y &% Al H
BRI &R R A & TR oM & YATHIRA &
IR R faR B & 918, Yd B YH W IRITHAT
R Bl BCTAR SIS TR A2 34.30 BRIS S0
PR (AT | TATHSIRAT 71 2015—16 & QIRTH VeId A UR
PR DI AFAN B ol IR YT Bl 33.06 BRIS BT
BT YA AT STd 15% AT HR ANL o7 | 59 419,
faei 01—07—2017 ¥ SIYACT YHTEl B3 31 1.24
TS TYY BT AR BT R STae] F Fafd & i
TATHRNRAT & STAR VeTd Bl o el o7 Fiifds Y
2015—16 H B PR AT AT AT | TATHARA] & Haer
1 faaR 2 {6 Amel a1 FHIET B ST | A1l T
fraRef 2| SR Ydd gRT AR MY UNR @l
TAUHIRAT 5 316 b R =8 fbar 2| e,
IR Ned §RT AR TS 1.24 RIS BUI DI M, e
AT G BIFT & PHROT 31.03.2018 BT ATHRAD AT B
AR IR RiE 8 © 7 % 91e] AaT & AR W | AHA Bl
3HfcH Y Y ST IR S e <1 A1 T ST |
=1e] foxT @y 2018—19 # A RHAS <Iar & w0 4
ST Udhed fhar 1 2 | (SRl WR ORIt &1 ust
.12 <)

‘“’




gfdad v Sgang
qre] *FATY
3=y fa<ia qaad (Ale 4. 19: 275.80 HRIs TUA)

(i) SR AT 7 IR 3R STl Yeid I

% 41 ¥ o g & forg Yerd 91 @1 Aifd &

FHUA H 9.55 BRIS ST & URITHA Yo

BT HIT BT | BT, BUHT 7 99 B SR 7.80

BRIS BY BT YA fhar 3R AN 1.75 RIS
BT BT MBRAD SIAT D ©T H IGIh 6T |

Ffh HUN IR YA BT 39 Yob! BT AT B
% g qTe1 B, HUAI DI 7.80 PRI BT DI Tl
9.55 TRIe TUY I QX IR Tof Al AR o |
39 UROTAT: 3Fd IREURR (H &1 STIRT
PRA B AHR) 3R AT T H 1.75 BRIS
TY BT HH 3 fHar T2 |

99 2017—18 B 10 R & RI=IH 3R A-Terl
Wed H Rure § feoofl ey oM & qrasE
HU GRT BIs GURIHS HIRATS el DT T8 2 |

SRRYA S HUH, ORIl § HUAl R
IRAT—goRaTo 4T faedR & foau 9 &
ST & Iy SR Yd 7 Ydd 9l §RT SIRY
iforra faenfrdel & og9R, 1.61 BRIS U B
STFAMT Yewh dI HIT B | BUT o TepUaiy wd 3
1.32 PRIS BT Bl IAT WHR B ol 8 3R a9
% TR 3P UREURT & wU H A BT TN
TR B JTBR BT Yo a2 | T 0.29 TS
BT T HRAD I b ©T H T TATE |

Ffh HUN IR YA BT 59 Yobi BT YA D
P foTT 91T B, BUHT BT 1.32 RIS ST Bl IO
1.61 BRIS SUI B T R Tof HRAT @M12Y o |
39 UROTHT: M UREURRT (A &1 STIRT
PRA B SMBR) 3R AT AT 4 0.29 FRIS
TY BT HH 3 fHar AT 7 |

(ii)

IR YA Y DI A & ARARITT TR VeId dr€ i o 4
2005/ TAYHATA /18 /8 faid 10.02.2005 B AGIAGR 12 /
2005 ¥ SH / @S §RT ORI Afdhdl XS Bl 7% Ui a9
M TR IR PR BT 2 | R 5.2 ((FITT-—5) |

YT 91 & 9ad uRYA & URT 5.3 | wer 47 ¥ 5 g @
AIS[ET & ST & 918 154 Yod ad f6ar ST amfey |
Y GOIR B UF 9. 198 /Hd IVRER (i) /2019 &ATH
21.06.2019 (3l ) & AR, YA Pl & 39 9T 12 /
2015 & FHM © | A1 &1 $99 Bs gig e T8 B TS 7 |

ST, Y B AR BT 0T R T, TATHNRE! 7%
fer o @1 <X ¥ gfyg BT EiHT T HRIET T |

IR BT IMHRAG ST & wU H LT TR |

ETRIET & &9 | g 91d s ol & fdb HUl 1 3R
aREURT (Srgafcrar) & w9 # 7.80 RIS T BT RIS
fopar 21 erofif, SR Yeld @1 AT Neld dle b A 4.
2005 / TAIUHYA /18 / 8 f&11d 10.02.2005 & STTHY &1 BIFT
SR fig # Al v fhar T & | STR NeTd gRT 1.75 RIS
YR BT AT AT BT HY=T 7 W fhar R fHue &
el foha B, safeTy SeRHd <Iamell @ wU H Ydhed HR-T
B! T | 31T, TIITURIET §RT S9! AR BT ST el ©
5 o g1 Sfed fvar a1 ® ife S W Hwel gRy
gl Y feoqoft & 1 ot |

31 Are] UREURTI: FIe 4. 11: 16.56 BRIS DU

ST § $HU §RT RT AgI, SEEe Agl,
TREYR ¥, BFYR FgT, 8RS AT, IRIRY AT Y
3R ¥ fohar 737 8.86 HRIS $UY &7 Y A & O
391 el & A WR ae fhar e | |, I8
IR o= wRere W Adbe v fhelt ey fa<irg
aREURT & w9 H 9l AT &, TAfY, §€ UTH 32
DI AYET B AR S8 31 AT IRFURTT (Ale—11)
P g o fa<ig uRwuRmal (Ale—9) & dsd
I ST AR o |

9 IROTHT: 31 ATe], URAURTIT # 8.86 IS TUY
BT AfAh 3 fbar AT R |

PUHT GRT T AEIST BT 3R A T Bl TS 8.86 PRIS
T8 FHSII DI HUNET H AIS[GT I&eldl B JJAR IGell
A TR 2 | gfd TATHIRT o1d il HgT # uRkafdd &
TG, I8 T gREURT &1 Wit Enft &R axgelt A
T8 2 | 9f T8 A e a1 foedt ey faxirg aRkequfy
H gell I 81 2, STy 59 o st uRReuRmal &
IOIT 3T A7) URHAURTIT & d8d eI T 2 |
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q9 2017—18 & foU 9Rd & fiFed SR

HeTorE] WeTd & Ruid ¥ sfd fer 99 &

Tl_gél aq%aiﬁq:ﬁmﬂﬂéﬁa?cﬂmméaéﬁaﬁ
|

(@) uyde W fewlrn
fa<ira faa=or R fewPr (A< w. 30)
ATHIBIH IdT

IR TSI M Ud faard aReg (UPAEVP) 1 S0
WRER /IREE gRT fog 77 fofa & argurer
T @1 BIRET 1€ & oIy R a8 & foTy Haex 9
3R TR 19 H HHI: Uid 2N AR 38.268 I
Hrex 4fy smdfed &) 7 | T @1 a8 Y 4.04 ARG
I R 6.18 ARG YU ATRIG R WR HHI:
15.01.2016 31X 01.07.2016 &I 3dfed & T8 oY |
RS s Frofa &) iR Suwt &
YA B AR A D, cfb 9 4 7 ar
Fsiar fAerfed foar 3R 9 81 o9 d& dis Iy
BT A BT | U 7 R e Aafisie &
aegq | e & iRer &1 AT SR ® W
Iaa foru foriae urferevor 2 |

s BT B JUTSA BT fIRTT & YT BT AaT
TR B, Sl 3 UUT 37 & URTUTH 10 & Ay
H M RAD I B w9 H R fohar s anfav |

IE HHAT SR TSI AT fJbrd IRy Bl T 2.52 RIS
I P fBHRIT & IR UMGEE & 9 H § SN T §
JRIT TR R |

C’N‘EINQ‘\IZHQ’), qubllﬂi, \HIQ’)IQ"'IC’O RN Sﬁ?’ 61|4°R“'|¢>
IREURTET TR € UTH 37 & ATAR IdT Bl G by
ST 1 ARTEAT HR A &

PIS AT AT BT ATl T8l I SO Uh IaH aIfded
g, e fAuem & anfdfe o urd &= arel G @
3PS ¥ 9fafg e B SHIE B |

Ig &9 <1 AT © b SR u<er A vaH e uRue
SR BT TS fhv1y &1 77 fopeft auenRe v & Jwsia &
faeT 3R qR1 TRE A UpeRwT o |

3¢ A, TaAvHRRR 7 otk e Aiige (U3 9.
377 / TAUHITRA—Te—6 / 2014 fid 07—03—2018 §RT)
A" A fHR1T B IR B7 A 9T 33T 8, S U gRT
< fR & forg frorias mieer & wu 3 geifed 8F |
Bacl fhRelIdRUT R € | SHD 3TATal, Ig AT Hdex 9
IR Haex 19 9 9 & <7 fg & FaRor & forg Ifera
UIIHRT & U offdd 2 |

TSIUH gRT fRrr 9 fhU S R HU-1 SHBT ADih
BT |

fa<ha faawor R fewforar

= gfaad) (A1 4. 13): 92 BIs vuA
IWRIFT § BT & gfdac! I/RT & 3Maed & fou
WHR (GoUP) & 9T 16.00 HRI€ UT (HRax)
2018) RS € | HU BT AP Yol 100 3T &
20 BRIS IRT F fauforg & 7 8, e Fu gRT
g 8 ) aRE ¥ armdfed @} femr war ¥ g4
FHUA DI ARG GOl BT FART T fwar e |
HUAT ERT TRl IR fewforay # 39 a2 &1 Udhed
o ST =fey o |

SIATIRIET §IRT SH®! ARTEAT B I Fahehl & b UTfergd
IR Yol # gig | GrRT 61 3R URT 64 AR 3= AN
| B T BT, o wRenm & Al H
TRacie /| AU BIdT & Sl $oilYd / USIgH &7
T HEEHS & T BN S ToneH /Soied §
HIfed foy ST & 1Y U riaTot @ wU # 1R I
2 | 3TTYd, et Y WAl U by e fachi faawort
H I AT B | Ui SITH, 2013 BT Hae=
famer 8T | e e dea Bul @ A d8d H
IFD AR B fory I fawg U= HEwd g €, I8 e
fceret ot Rard # yaee fhar T g |
U A 3T B 3R Hueit ST, 2013 BT IRT 134(7)

g 3rfereer foar & {6 faxiy faaxor 1€ &) Rard &
1T STRY, UATRT AT IBTIRTT fHham ST |
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